
 
 
 
 
 
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 

November 1, 2024 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



          Six Mile Creek  
  Community Development District 

  475 West Town Place 
             Suite 114  

  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
www.SixMileCreekCDD.com 

              
  

October 25, 2024 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District will be held Friday, November 1, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance World Golf 
Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida 32092.    
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments (regarding agenda items listed below) 
 
 III. Consideration of Bond Matters for Series 2024 
  A. Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 
 
  B. Supplemental Assessment Resolution, 2025-01 
  
  C. Resolution 2025-02, Ratifying Ancillary Documents Related to Series 2024 Bond  
  
 IV. Discussion Regarding License Plate Reader 
 
 V. Brightview Report 
 
 VI. Sitex Report 
 
 VII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Engineer Items  
   1. Ratification of Change Order No. 9 – Trailmark East Parcel 3 
 
   2. Ratification of Change Order No. 21 – Trailmark Phase 12 
 
   3. Ratification of Requisition No. 90 (2021 Bond Series (AA3, Phase 2) 
 
   4. Ratification of Requisition No. 171 (2021 Bond Series (AA2, Phase 3B) 

http://www.sixmilecreekcdd.com/


 
   5. Ratification of Requisition Nos. 85-91 (2023 Bond Series (AA2, Phase 3C) 
 
   6. Ratification of Requisition Nos. 75A-80A (2023 Bond Series (AA3, Phase 3) 
 
   7. Ratification of Requisition Nos. 1-8 (2024 Bond Series) 
 
  8. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 82 2024-2025 General Consulting 

Engineering Services 
 
   9. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 83 Public Facilities Report 
 
  B. Ratification of Agreements / Proposals 
  1. Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 2024 Audit 

Report  
 
  2. Sitex Aquatics for Aquatic Maintenance Services for Fiscal Year 2025 

(TrailMark)   
 
  3. Agreement with Jax Utilities Management, Inc. for Concrete Services  
   
  C. Approval of Minutes of the September 11, 2024 Meeting 
  
  D. Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2024 and Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2024  
 
  E. Assessment Receipt Schedule  
 
  F. Check Register  
  
 VIII. Consideration of Proposals from Brightview for Landscape Improvements  
 
 IX. Consideration of Proposals for Landscape & Irrigation Maintenance Services  
 
 X. Discussion of License Agreement Regarding Recreation Pond 
  
 XI. Other Business 
 
 XII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
 
  B. Engineer  

    
  C. Manager  
 
  D. TrailMark Reports 



   1. Operations (RealManage)- Report 
       
   2. Lifestyles (OnPlace) - Report 
     
  E. Reverie Reports (First Service) 
   1. DFH Updates 
    
   2. Operations  
      
   3. Lifestyles  
  
 XIII. Supervisor’s Requests  
 
 XIV. Audience Comments 
 
 XV. Next Scheduled Meeting – November 26, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
 XVI. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



                                           
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 

for the Series 2024 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 4 

 
                                   September 25, 2024 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   2 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Executive Summary ......................................................................  3 
1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits ........................................ 5          
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology .................. 6
           

 
2.0 The Series 2024 Capital Improvement Bonds AA3 Phase 4 

2.1 Development Plan Overview ....................................................... 6  
2.2      Bond Description              …………………………………………… 7 
 
 

3.0 Assessment Allocation 
3.1 Structure ......................................................................................... 7  
3.2 Assessment Allocation .................................................................. 8          
 
 

4.0 True Up Mechanism     ............................................................................. 9         
  

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls     ......................................................................... 9  
 

6.0 Additional Stipulations………………………………………………………10        
 
7.0 Appendix 
            

 Table 1   Development Program        
            Table 2   Infrastructure Cost Estimates  
            Table 3   Series 2024 Sources and Uses   
            Table 4   Benefit Calculations  
            Table 5   Series 2024 Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations   

 Table 6 Assessment Roll 
  

Attachments:  Legal description  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   3 

 
 
 
 1.0 Introduction 
        

1.1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 The District 

 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the “District”), 
a local unit of special-purpose government, was established 
by rule number 42GGG-1 adopted by the Florida Land and 
Water Adjudicatory Commission on March 7, 2007, as 
amended on August 11, 2021 and May 23, 2022. The District 
encompasses approximately 1,360 acres of land located 
within the unincorporated area of St. Johns County, Florida, 
and was established for the purpose of, among other things, 
financing and managing the acquisition, construction, 
maintenance and operation of major infrastructure necessary 
for development to occur within the District. 
 
The TrailMark development located within the District is a 
master planned, amenitized, residential community. The 
planned development will include approximately 2,278 
residential units composed of single-family, patio and 
townhomes. 
 
1.1.2 Assessment Areas 
 
The District has created three (3) separate Assessment Areas to 
carry out its financing program. Additional Areas may be 
created over time.   
 
The District previously adopted its Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2022 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3, 
Assessment Area 3 Phase 4, Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C dated 
September 21, 2022 (the “Master Series 2022 Report”).  The 
Master Series 2022 Report allocated the maximum level of 
assessments to Assessment Area 2, Phase 3C (“AA2–3C”), 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 3 (“AA3-3”), and Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 4 (“AA3-4”).  This report supplements the Master Series 
2022 Report for the purpose of allocating the assessments for 
AA3-4 that will secure the $5,790,000 Capital Improvement 



   4 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 Project Area (the “Series 2024 
Bonds”).   
 
Assessment Area 1 consists of approximately 153 acres and has 
been developed into 152 residential lots, all of which have 
been platted.  
 
Assessment Area 2 consists of approximately 543 acres and is 
planned for 1,281 residential lots.  Assessment Area 2 is being 
developed in 3 Phases:  305 lots have platted in Phase 1, 398 
lots in have platted in Phase 2 and 396 lots have platted in 
Phase 3A and 3B with 182 additional lots in Phase 3C planned.  
 
 
Assessment Area 3 consists of approximately 550 acres and is 
planned for approximately 840 residential lots.  367 lots have 
platted in Phase 1; 75 lots have platted in Phase 2.  203 lots are 
planned for Phase 3.  197 lots are planned for Phase 4 which 
will be subject to the Series 2024 Assessments securing the 
Series 2024 Bonds.   
 
1.1.3 The 2007, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2020, 2021, 2023 and 2024 
Bonds 
 

                        The District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted the 
Improvement Plan for the Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds 
dated December 1, 2006 (the “CIP”), as supplemented by the 
District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007, the Supplemental 
Engineers Report for 2014 Capital Improvements dated 
November 12, 2014, the Supplemental Engineers Report for the 
Series 2016 Capital Improvements (“2016 Engineers Report”)  
dated April 12, 2016,  the Supplemental Engineers Report for 
the Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated June 5, 2017, the 
Supplemental Engineer’s Report for the Series 2020 Capital 
Improvements dated June 2, 2020, the Supplemental 
Engineer’s Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvements 
dated January 19, 2021, the Supplemental Engineers Report for 
the Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements dated 
September 10, 2021, and the Supplemental Engineers Report 
for Series 2022 AA2-3C, AA3-3 & AA3-4 Capital Improvements 
dated September 2, 2022, the Supplemental Engineers Report 
for the Series 2023 AA2-3C & AA3-3 dated June 5, 2023, the 
Supplemental Engineers Report for the Series 2024 AA3-4 



   5 

Capital Improvements dated May 24, 2024  (collectively, the 
Engineer’s Report”), which describe the public infrastructure 
improvements financed in part by the District’s issuance of 
Bonds secured by special assessments levied on the lands 
within the District (the “CIP”). 

 
The District has previously issued its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “2007 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 Refunding Bonds 
(the 2015 Bonds), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2016A (the “2016A Bonds”), its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds Series 2017A (Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the 
“2017A Bonds”), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2017B (Assessment area 2, Phase 2)(the “2017B Bonds”), 
its Capital Improvement and Refunding Bonds Series 2020 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) (the “2020 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, 
Phase 1) (the “2021 AA3-1 Bonds”), its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) and 
Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) (the “2021 AA3-2, AA2-3B 
Bonds”), and its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 
2023 (Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3) (the “2023 AA2-3C & AA3-
3”) to finance portions of the CIP.  
 
This Report addresses the assessments securing the Series 2024 
Bonds, secured by Special assessments levied on AA3-4.   The 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental 
Engineers Report for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements 
dated May 24, 2024, (“2024 Project Engineer’s Report”) 
describes the project, which will be partially funded by the 
Series 2024 Bonds. It is anticipated that the proceeds of the 
Series 2024 Bonds will be deposited into the construction fund 
account for the assessment area securing the Series 2024 
Bonds.  The assessment areas securing the Series 2024 Bonds 
are Assessment Area 3, Phase 4, which includes 197 lots (the 
“AA3-4 Assessments”).  

 
                      A detailed estimated Sources and Uses of funds for the Series 

2024 Bonds, broken out for each assessment area is contained 
in is contained in Table 3.  

 
 
 
 



   6 

 
 

 
1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits 

 
Improvements undertaken by the District as described in the 
CIP create special and peculiar benefits, different in kind and 
degree than general benefits, for properties within its borders 
as well as general benefits to the public at large.  

 
As contained in the Master Assessment Report the benefit from 
the CIP was based upon $131,449,000 of construction costs for 
the system of improvements. The 2014 Engineer’s Report 
estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP, in part 
because it describes additional improvements. Because the 
CIP is a system of improvements, the additional improvements 
increase the overall benefit to all developable lands within the 
District. Notwithstanding the additional improvements 
described in various Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the 
benefit findings and methodology contained in the Master 
Methodology Report still apply and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
Benefit per assessment area and product type is outlined in 
Table 4. 
 

 
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

 
Special assessments under Florida law, to be valid, must meet 
two requirements. The first requirement is that the properties 
assessed must receive a special benefit from the 
improvements paid for by the assessments. The second 
requirement is that the assessments must be fairly and 
reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. 
 
Florida law provides for a wide application of special 
assessments that meet these two characteristics of special 
assessments.  
 
 
 
 
 



   7 

 
 

 
2.0 The Series 2024 Bonds 
                      

2.1 Development Plan - Overview 
 

The Developer of the property within the District has defined 
the land uses for the property. The land uses are described in 
in Table 1 (Appendix) (“Development Plan”) associated with 
the AA3-4 Assessments. The Development Plan may change 
dependent upon future market conditions.  
 

2.2 Bond Description 
 

The Series 2024 Bonds are planned to be issued with a thirty-
year term and an average coupon rate of 5.28%. Interest is 
capitalized for 7 months and the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
(“DSRF”) is equal to the annual Maximum Annual Debt Service 
(“MADS”) of $386,260. 
 
The Series 2024 Bonds are to be issued at a par amount of 
$5,790,000. See estimated bond terms on Table 3. 
  

 
3.0 Assessment Allocation 
 

3.1      Structure 
 

The debt required to finance the CIP is allocated to the 
benefited lands within the District consistent with the Master 
Assessment Report. As noted above, the 2014 Engineer’s 
Report estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP 
increasing the overall benefit to all developable lands within 
the District. The Series 2024 Bonds fund a portion of the 
improvements described in the Series 2024 project Engineer’s 
Report (the “Series 2024 Project”), which describes 
improvements for each of the assessment areas securing the 
Series 2024 Bonds.  Specifically, the Series 2024 Project consists 
of the improvements associated with AA3-4 which are 
estimated at $10,358,000.  The Series 2024 Bonds will provide for 
construction funds in the approximate amount of $5,109,676.   
 
 



   8 

 
 
 

3.2 Assessment Allocation 
 

Based upon the CIP, the District’s assessment consultant and 
underwriter determined the amount of Bonds required to fund 
the infrastructure costs. 
 
The CIP consists of roadway improvements, potable water, 
wastewater, landscaping, monumentation, signage and 
community recreation improvements that benefit all lands 
within the District. The CIP consists of a system of improvements 
that benefits all developable property equally. The 2007 Bonds 
were issued to finance a portion of the acquisition and 
construction of the 2007 Improvement Plan, which comprises a 
portion of the CIP.  The Series 2024 Bonds are being issued to 
fund a portion of the CIP.  
 
The AA3-4 Assessments will be levied on 67.52 gross acres in 
Assessment Area 3, Phase 4. 

 
As land is developed and platted, the AA3-4 Assessments will 
be allocated on a first platted basis to developed and platted 
lots with an identifiable folio number. The Series 2024 Bonds are 
expected to be allocated to and fully absorbed by the 197 
planned lots for Assessment Area 3, Phase 4. 
 

 
4.0 True – Up Mechanism  

 
In order to assure that the District’s debt will not build up on 
unsold acres, and to assure that the requirements that the non-
ad valorem assessments will be constitutionally lienable on the 
property will continue to be met, the District shall determine the 
following. 
 
To assure that there will always be sufficient development 
potential in the undeveloped property to assure payment of 
debt service after a plat or site plan approval, the following 
test will be applied. The test is that the par debt per 
developable acre remaining on the undeveloped property 
within Assessment Area 3 Phase 4 is never allowed to increase 
above its maximum per acre level.  



   9 

 
The AA3-4 Assessments securing a portion of the Series 2024 
Bonds are anticipated to be in the principal amount of 
$5,790,000. AA3-4, planned for 197 units total as contained on 
Table 1, are 67.52 acres. The maximum debt per acre is 
$85,752.37. Therefore, at the time of platting, if only a portion 
of the parcel is platted, then the remaining undeveloped 
property within the parcel cannot exceed a per acre debt of 
$85,752.37. If the remaining undeveloped property has debt in 
excess of $85,752.37 per developable acre, a true-up payment 
will be due upon platting or site plan approval. If the entire 
parcel is platted and the assignment of debt to the platted lots 
is not sufficient to absorb the total debt a true-up payment will 
be due upon platting or site plan approval.  
 

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls 
 
Final assessment rolls reflecting the allocation of special 
assessments securing repayment of the Series 2024 Bonds are 
attached hereto as the lands to be developed into 197 lots. 
Table 5 provides for the Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments 
AA3-4. 
 

6.0     Additional Stipulations 

Certain financing, development, and engineering data was 
provided by members of District staff and/or the Developer. 
The allocation methodology described herein was based on 
information provided by those professionals. Governmental 
Management Services, LLC makes no representations 
regarding said information transactions beyond restatement of 
the factual information necessary for compilation of this 
Report. For further information about the Bonds, please refer to 
the Master Trust Indenture and or the Supplemental Trust 
Indentures. 

 



TABLE 1
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Development Program Series 2024
AA3-4 (Unit 13)

LAND USE ERU
AA3-4 
UNITS

AA3-4 
TOTAL ERUS

43' LOT 0.8 93 74.4
53' LOT 1 89 89
63' LOT 1.2 15 18

TOTAL 197 181.4

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 2
Six Mile Creek CDD

Infrastructure Cost Estimates AA3-4

Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
AA3-4

Total Cost 
Estimates

Master Infrastructure
Traffic Signal 1,000,000
Common Area Landscaape/Hardscape 485,000

Neighborhood Infrastructure
Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations, and Force Mains 3,069,000
Stormwater Management 2,559,000
Neighborhood Roadways 1,492,000
Street Lighting 200,000
Water Distribution System 1,103,000
Common Area Landscaape/Hardscape 450,000

Total Costs (approx.) 10,358,000

Information provided by England, Thims & Miller, , Inc.
Supplemental Engineer's Report Dated May 24, 2024

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL  MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 3
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Sources and Uses Series 2024
AA3-4 (Unit 13)

Sources: SERIES 2024

Bond Proceeds - Par Amount 5,790,000

Total Sources of Funds 5,790,000

Uses:

Construction Funds AA3-4 5,109,676
Debt Service Reserve Fund 50% MADS 193,130
Capitalized Interest 166,346
Cost of Issuance 205,048
Underwriter's Discount 115,800

Total Uses of Funds 5,790,000

Principal Amortization Installments 30
Average Coupon 5.283017%
Par Amount 5,790,000
Maximum Annual Debt Service 386,260
Capitalized Interest Through 05/01/25
Maturity 5/1/2055

Notes:
DSRF based on 100% of maximum annual debt service (MADS).
Provided by FMSbonds, Inc.

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 4
Six Mile Creek CDD

Benefit

AA3-4 (Unit 13)

Development Type
Number of 

Planned 
Units

ERU Per 
Unit (1)

Total 
ERU's

Improvement 
Costs Per 

Product Type

Benefit 
Per Unit

Allocation of 
Series 2024 

Par Debt 

Series 
2024 Par 
Debt  per 

Unit 
43' LOT 93 0.80 74.4 4,248,265 45,680 2,374,730 25,535
53' LOT 89 1.00 89 5,081,929 57,100 2,840,739 31,918
63' LOT 15 1.20 18 1,027,806 68,520 574,531 38,302
TOTAL 197 181.4 10,358,000 5,790,000

(1) Based on the Supplemental Master Assessment Methodology Report dated September 21, 2022

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 5
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations Series 2024
AA3-4 (Unit 13)

AA3-4 LAND USE
AA3-4 # 
UNITS

PAR DEBT 
PER UNIT 

SERIES 2024 
AA3-4

TOTAL SERIES 
2024 AA3-4 
PAR DEBT

SERIES 2024 
AA3-4 NET 

ANNUAL PER 
UNIT

TOTAL SERIES 
2024 AA3-4 

MAX ANNUAL

SERIES 2024 AA3-
4 ANNUAL PER 

UNIT GROSS 
TAX BILL

43' LOT 93 25,535           2,374,730          1,703                158,422          1,812                   
53' LOT 89 31,918           2,840,739          2,129                189,510          2,265                   
63' LOT 15 38,302           574,531             2,555                38,328             2,718                   

TOTAL 197 5,790,000         386,260          

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC



TABLE 6
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Assessment Roll Series 2024
AA3-4 (Unit 13)

PARCEL OWNER
ASESSMENT 

AREAS ACRES PAR DEBT
MAX 

ANNUAL

LEGAL ATTACHED SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC AA3-4 67.52 5,790,000 386,260

PREPARED BY GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-01 
 

[ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 4] 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE DISTRICT’S CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024 (2024 PROJECT AREA); MAKING 
CERTAIN FINDINGS AND CONFIRMING AND ADOPTING AN ENGINEER’S REPORT 
AND AN ASSESSMENT REPORT; CONFIRMING THE MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT LIEN 
SECURING 2024 BONDS (2024 PROJECT AREA); ADDRESSING THE ALLOCATION 
AND COLLECTION OF THE ASSESSMENTS SECURING THE 2024 BONDS (2024 
PROJECT AREA); ADDRESSING TRUE-UP PAYMENTS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
SUPPLEMENTATION OF THE IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) has previously 

indicated its intention to undertake, install, establish, construct or acquire certain public 
improvements and to finance such public improvements through the imposition of special 
assessments on benefited property within the District and the issuance of bonds; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) previously adopted, after notice 
and public hearing, Resolution 2023-02, relating, in part, to the imposition, levy, collection and 
enforcement of such special assessments for Assessment Area 3, Phase 4; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with the terms of Resolution 2023-02, this 
Resolution shall set forth the terms of bonds actually issued by the District, and apply the adopted 
special assessment methodology to the actual scope of the project to be completed with a series 
of bonds and the terms of the bond issue; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2024, the District entered into that certain Bond Purchase 
Agreement with FMSbonds, Inc., whereby the District agreed to sell its $5,790,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (2024 
Project Area) (“2024 Bonds”), and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with Resolution 2023-02, the District desires to set 
forth the particular terms of the sale of the 2024 Bonds and confirm the lien of the levy of special 
assessments securing the 2024 Bonds.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX 
MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 SECTION 1.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  All of the above representations, findings 
and determinations are recognized as true and accurate and are expressly incorporated into this 
Resolution. 



 

2 
 

 
SECTION 2.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant to 

the provisions of Florida law, including Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, and 
Resolution 2023-02. 

 
 SECTION 3.  FINDINGS; ADOPTION OF ENGINEER’S REPORT AND 2024 ASSESSMENT 
REPORT.  The Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community Development District hereby 
finds and determines as follows: 
 
 (a) On November 16, 2022, the District, after due notice and public hearing, adopted 
Resolution 2023-02, which, among other things, equalized, approved, confirmed and levied 
special assessments on property benefiting from the improvements authorized by the District.  
That Resolution provided that as each series of bonds were issued to fund all or any portion of 
the District’s improvements, a supplemental resolution would be adopted to set forth the specific 
terms of the bond and certify the amount of the lien of the special assessments securing any 
portion of the bonds, including interest, costs of issuance, the number of payments due, any true-
up amounts and the application of receipt of any true-up proceeds. 
 
 (b) The Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report 
for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated May 24, 2024, attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit A (“Engineer’s Report”), identifies and describes the presently expected components of 
the infrastructure improvements to be financed in part with the 2024 Bonds (the “2024 Project”), 
and sets forth the costs of the 2024 Project as $10,358,000.  The District hereby confirms that 
the 2024 Project serves a proper, essential, and valid public purpose.  The use of the Engineer’s 
Report in connection with the sale of the 2024 Bonds is hereby ratified.  
 
 (c) The Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2022 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3 (Unit 12) and Phase 4 (Unit 13), 
Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C (EP3) dated September 21, 2022, as supplemented by the 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2024 Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 4, dated September 25, 2024, the latter of which is 
attached to this Resolution as Exhibit B (collectively, the “2024 Assessment Report”), applies the 
adopted Special Assessment Master Methodology Report dated March 30, 2007 (the “Master 
Assessment Report”), as supplemented by the District’s Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report, Final Numbers dated June 28, 2007 (the “First Supplemental Assessment 
Report”), Second Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital 
Improvement Bonds Series 2014A and Series 2007 dated October 15, 2014, Final Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the 2014 Refunding Bonds and the Remaining 2007 Bonds 
dated November 14, 2014 (the “Refunding Report”), Final Numbers Special Assessment 
Methodology Report for the Series 2016A and 2016B Capital Improvement Bonds dated April 22, 
2016 (the “2016 Assessment Report”), the Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology 
Report for the Series 2017A and 2017B Capital Improvement Bonds Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2) 
dated November 14, 2017 (the “2017 Assessment Report”), the Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Capital 



 

3 
 

Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A) dated 
June 12, 2020 (the “2020 Assessment Report”), the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated February 10 2021 (the “Area 3, 
Phase 1 Assessment Report”), the Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) dated September 14, 2021, the 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District First Supplemental to the Adjunct Supplemental 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) and Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B) dated July 20, 2022 (together, 
the “2021 Area 2, Phase 3B/Area 3 Phase 2 Assessment Report”) and the Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2023 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 Phase 3, Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C dated June 14, 2023 (“the “2023 
Assessment Report”) to the 2024 Project and the actual terms of the 2024 Bonds.  The 2024 
Assessment Report is hereby approved, adopted and confirmed.  The District ratifies its use in 
connection with the sale of the 2024 Bonds.  
 
 (d) The 2024 Project will specially benefit all developable property within the District, 
including Assessment Area 3, Phase 4.  It is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the portion 
of the costs of the 2024 Project financed with the 2024 Bonds to the specially benefited 
properties within Assessment Area 3, Phase 4, as set forth in Resolution 2023-02, the 2024 
Assessment Report, and this Resolution.   
 
 SECTION 4.  SETTING FOR THE TERMS OF THE 2024 BONDS; CONFIRMATION OF 
MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT LIEN SECURING 2024 BONDS.  As provided in Resolution 2023-02, this 
Resolution is intended to set forth the terms of the 2024 Bonds and the final amount of the lien 
of the special assessments securing those bonds.  The 2024 Bonds, in a par amount of $5,790,000 
shall bear such rates of interest and maturity as shown on Exhibit C attached hereto.  The 
estimated sources and uses of funds of the 2024 Bonds shall be as set forth in Exhibit D.  The 
debt service due on the 2024 Bonds is set forth on Exhibit E attached hereto.  The lien of the 
special assessments securing the 2024 Bonds shall be the principal amount due on the 2024 
Bonds, together with accrued but unpaid interest thereon, and together with the amount by 
which annual assessments are grossed up to include early payment discounts required by law 
and costs of collection. 
 
 SECTION 5.  ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS SECURING 2024 BONDS.  
 
 (a)  The special assessments for the 2024 Bonds (“2024 Assessments”) shall be allocated 
in accordance with Exhibit B, which allocation shall initially be on an acreage basis and further 
allocated as set forth in the 2024 Assessment Report.  The 2024 Assessment Report, considered 
herein, reflects the actual terms of the issuance of the District’s 2024 Bonds.  The estimated costs 
of collection of the 2024 Assessments are as set forth in the 2024 Assessment Report.  
 



 

4 
 

 (b)  To the extent land is added to the District as presently contemplated by the 2024 
Assessment Report, the District may, by supplemental resolution, determine such land to be 
benefited by the 2024 Project and reallocate the 2024 Assessments and impose special 
assessments on the newly added and benefited property. 
 
 (c)  Taking into account capitalized interest and earnings on certain funds and accounts 
as set forth in the Master Trust Indenture and the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the 
District shall begin annual collection of the 2024 Assessments using the methods available to it 
by law.  Debt service payments and semi-annual installments of interest are reflected on Exhibit 
E.  
 
 (d)  Section 7 of Resolution 2023-02 sets forth the terms for collection and enforcement 
of the 2024 Assessments.  The District hereby certifies the 2024 Assessments for collection and 
directs staff to take all actions necessary to meet the time and other deadlines imposed by St. 
Johns County for collection and other Florida law.  The District Manager shall prepare or cause to 
be prepared each year a tax roll for purposes of effecting the collection of the special assessments 
and present same to the District Board as required by law.  The District Manager is further 
directed and authorized to take all actions necessary to collect special assessments on property 
using methods available to the District authorized by Florida law in order to provide for the timely 
payment of debt service. 
 
 SECTION 6.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.  Pursuant to Resolution 2023-02, 
there may be required from time to time certain True-Up Payments (as defined in Resolution 
2023-02).  As parcels of land are platted, the 2024 Assessments shall be allocated as set forth in 
Resolution 2023-02, this Resolution, and the 2024 Assessment Report, including, without 
limitation, the application of the true-up process set forth in Section 8 of Resolution 2023-02.  
The District shall apply all True-Up Payments related to the 2024 Bonds only to the credit of the 
2024 Bonds.  All True-Up Payments, as well as all other prepayments of assessments, shall be 
deposited into the accounts specified in the Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
October 1, 2024, governing the 2024 Bonds.  
 
 SECTION 7.  IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK.  Immediately following the adoption of this 
Resolution, the 2024 Assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the Secretary of the 
Board of the District in the District’s Improvement Lien Book.  The 2024 Assessments shall be and 
shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien against all benefitted property as described in 
Exhibit B until paid and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, 
municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.  
 
 SECTION 8.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to record a 
Notice of Series 2024 Assessments (Assessment Area 3, Phase 4) in the Official Records of St. 
Johns County, Florida, or such other instrument evidencing the actions taken by the District. 
 

SECTION 9. CONFLICTS.  This Resolution is intended to supplement Resolution 2023-02, 
which remains in full force and effect. This Resolution and Resolution 2023-02 shall be construed 



 

5 
 

to the maximum extent possible to give full force and effect to the provisions of each resolution. 
All District resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent of 
such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 
 SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of 
a section of this resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that 
such other section or part of a section of this resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon 
the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this 1st day of November, 2024. 

 

ATTEST: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
 
______________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman 
      

Exhibit A:   Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated 
May 24, 2024 

Exhibit B:    Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2024 Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 4, dated September 25, 
2024 

Exhibit C:   Maturities and Coupons of 2024 Bonds 
Exhibit D:   Sources and Uses of Funds for 2024 Bonds 
Exhibit E:   Annual Debt Service Payment Due on 2024 Bonds 
 
  



 

 
 

Exhibit A 
  



 
 
 
 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEERS REPORT 

For 
SERIES 2024 AA3-4 CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

 

14775 Old St. Augustine Road 
Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

904-642-8990 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E 22-397-01-901                                                                                            May 24, 2024 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 24, 2024 
 
Mr. Gregg Kern 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida  32092 
 
 
Reference: Supplemental Addendum to the Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006 

ETM No.: 22-397-01-901 
 

Dear Mr. Kern: 
 
Pursuant to your request, England, Thims & Miller, Inc. has prepared the enclosed report in an effort to provide 
information regarding the anticipated capital improvements to be funded in the year 2024.  This report is a supplement to 
the adopted Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, and the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports 
dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016, June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017, June 3, 2020, January 19, 2021, 
September 10, 2021, September 2, 2022 and June 5, 2023. 
 
Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments regarding this report. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC. 

 
 
 
Scott A. Wild, P.E. 
 
SAW/shb 
 
Enclosures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
t:\2022\22-397\22-397-01\22-397-01-001\_projmgmt\financial\2024 supplemental engineers report (aa2-3c_aa3-3 & aa3-4)\2 - cover letter.docx 



 Page 1 
  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Six Mile Creek Community Development District (The “Six Mile Creek CDD” or the 
“District”) is a 1,289 ± acre community development district located in St. Johns County, Florida.  
(Refer to Plate 1, location map).  The land within the District consists of a parcel within the Saint 
Johns DRI, referred to herein as the “South Tract”.  The authorized land uses within the District 
include residential development as well as substantial open space and recreational amenities.  The 
full development within the Six Mile Creek CDD boundaries is anticipated to include 
approximately: 
 

TYPE Acreage 
Acres 

Residential 
Units 

Residential 780± 2278 
Amenity Village 7±  
Community Park  30±  
Neighborhood Parks System 17±  
Wetlands 357±  
Upland Buffer 98±  
TOTALS 1289± 2278 

(Refer to Plate 2 for the map of the District boundaries and Plate 3 for legal description of the District.) 

In anticipation of development within its boundaries, on March 30, 2007 the District adopted its 
Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, which describes master and neighborhood 
infrastructure improvements that the District intended to finance (or advance finance), construct, 
install and/or acquire within and adjacent to the boundaries of the District.  Subsequently, the 
District adopted the Supplemental Engineer’s Reports dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, 
April 12, 2016, June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017, June 3, 2020, January 19, 2021, September 10, 
2021, September 2, 2022 and June 5, 2023.  The purpose of this report is to supplement the existing 
Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports in an effort to identify infrastructure 
improvements that will be funded in whole or part with proceeds from the issuance of the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 AA3-4 related to the next phase of development within the District. 
The proposed infrastructure improvements are within Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4), which is 
referred to as Phase 13 of the TrailMark development. The anticipated costs to construct and/or 
install the Series 2024 AA3-4 Project are set forth in Table 1. 
 
The unit distributions for previous assessment areas are as follows: 
  
Assessment Area 1     Assessment Area 2 (Phase 1)  Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2) 
43’ lots 20     43’ lots  160  43’ lots     69 
53’lots 32     63’ lots    63  53’ lots   216 
63’lots 81     70’ lots    21  63’ lots     34 
70’ lots 19     80’ lots    61  70’ lots       8 
Total  Lots      152     Total Lots              305  80’ lots     71 
         Total Lots  398 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Page 2 
  

Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3A)       Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3B)          Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3C) 
43’ Lots  57     43’ Lots  91             43’ Lots     71 
53’ Lots  62     53’ Lots  83             53’ Lots      78 
63’ Lots  62     63’ Lots  41             63’ Lots     33 
Total Lots            181             Total Lots            215                     Total Lots              182 
 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1A)       Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1B)          Assessment Area 3 (Phase 2) 
43’ Lots  76     43’ Lots  108  63’ Lots  75 
53’ Lots  74     53’ Lots                61  Total Lots  75 
63’ Lots  45     63’ Lots                         3 
Total Lots            195             Total Lots  172 
 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 3) 
43’ Lots  119 
53’ Lots   64 
63’ Lots   20 
Total Lots  203 
 
The anticipated unit distribution for the Series 2024 AA3-4 Bonds is as follows: 
 
 

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2024  
AA3-4 Bonds 

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4) 
Lot Size (Feet) Number 

43 93 
53 89 
63 15 

TOTAL 197 
 
In comparison with the Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer’s Reports, the Master and 
Neighborhood Infrastructure costs have been updated to present the estimated cost for the Series 
2024 AA3-4 Project.  
 
Plate 4 depicts the limits and area for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4).  It also depicts the currently 
anticipated lot mix and total unit count for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4).  Plate 5 provides the legal 
description for Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4).   
 
The limits and areas of Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2, 3A, 3B, and 3C), and 
Assessment Area 3 (Phases 1A, 1B, 2, 3, and 4) are also depicted on Plate 4, together with the 
existing lot mix and total unit count within Assessment Area 1, Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2, 
3A, 3B and 3C), and Assessment Area 3 (Phases 1A,1B, 2, 3 and 4).   
 
 
 



t:\2022\22-397\22-397-01\22-397-01-001\_projmgmt\financial\2024 supplemental engineers report (aa2-3c_aa3-3 & aa3-4)\4 - background 5.24.docx 
 Page 3 

 

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The following sections of this report describe those Master Infrastructure Improvements that benefit all 
Assessment Areas.  These include transportation and miscellaneous other improvements, such as common area 
landscape/hardscape. 

 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 

 

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain master transportation facilities 
necessary for development within the District boundaries.  These improvements have been designed and will be 
constructed to St. Johns County standards.   
 
This total proposed improvement consists of a proposed traffic signal at the intersection of Trailmark Boulevard 
and Pacetti Road, and associated pedestrian improvements.   
 

MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS 

Utility Improvements 

The Six Mile Creek CDD financed, designed and constructed certain water utility infrastructure necessary for 
development within the District boundaries.  These improvements were designed and constructed to St. Johns 
County standards, and are owned and maintained by St. Johns County. This includes construction of master lift 
stations, water mains, force mains, and gravity sewer mains. It is anticipated that the cost of construction for these 
improvements will be partially reimbursed to the District through the utility agreement described below. 
 
In accordance with the Six Mile Creek Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reimbursement Agreement adopted 
January 29, 1999 (“Agreement”), St. Johns County will reimburse the cost of construction of the transmission 
components of the water and sewer facilities located within and adjacent to the Six Mile Creek CDD.  This 
reimbursement will be paid from one-third of the connection fees collected by St. Johns County at the time 
connection fees are paid.  The reimbursement for a completed portion of the infrastructure must be completed 
within a 12-year period following the construction of the improvement.  It is anticipated that $4,311,421 (of which 
$894,438 has been received to date) of the master utility infrastructure cost will be reimbursed to the District 
through this Agreement and that the District will use the funds to construct additional portions of the 
improvements described in the Improvement Plan.   
 
Common Area Landscape/Hardscape 

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain common area landscape and 
hardscape improvements to benefit the development within the District boundaries.  These improvements will be 
designed and constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District.  
Landscaping will be installed continuously along the length of the Loop Road and within other areas of the 
District.  These improvements also include soft costs for all common area improvements. 
 
  



t:\2022\22-397\22-397-01\22-397-01-001\_projmgmt\financial\2024 supplemental engineers report (aa2-3c_aa3-3 & aa3-4)\4 - background 5.24.docx 
 Page 4 

 
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The Series 2024 AA3-4 Project includes the cost of the neighborhood infrastructure improvements for 197 single 
family units in Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4), as depicted on Plates 4 and 5. 
 
The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance certain infrastructure improvements for each neighborhood 
within the District boundaries.  The improvements include complete construction of the basic infrastructure for 
each neighborhood, including but not limited to: clearing and grubbing, earthwork, water and sewer underground 
utility construction, drainage, stormwater management, grassing, sodding, underground electrical conduit and 
neighborhood street lighting.  
 
The cost estimate for the roadways included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements is based upon curb 
and gutter section roadways with variable pavement widths, within variable width rights-of-way.  The clearing, 
grubbing and earthwork estimates include all work necessary for the complete right-of-way area, and include 
utility easements for underground electrical conduit for roadway street lighting.  Disturbed areas within the rights-
of-way, which are outside of the paved areas, will be sodded and/or seeded and grassed in order to provide erosion 
and sediment control in accordance with St. Johns County standards. 
 
Stormwater management cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements provide for the 
attenuation and treatment of stormwater runoff from the project roadways in accordance with St. Johns River 
Water Management District and St. Johns County standards.  Costs include detention pond construction, outfall 
control structures, and any site fill required to provide a complete stormwater management system. 
 
Water and sewer cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements consist of the 
underground water transmission system, wastewater (sewer) collection system, and the lift station serving the 
development.  Costs include piping, manholes, valves, services, and all appurtenances required to construct the 
system in accordance with St. Johns County Utility Department, and Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection standards. 
 
The neighborhood infrastructure improvements have been designed and will be constructed to St. Johns County, 
St. Johns County Utility Department, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, and St. Johns River Water 
Management District standards.  Roadways shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County.  Water and sewer 
facilities shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County Utility Department.  The neighborhood street lighting 
shall be leased from FPL by the District, and the electrical cost to operate it is presently expected to be paid by 
the District.  The District shall maintain stormwater management improvements.  
 

BASIS OF COST ESTIMATE FOR  

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The following is the basis for the infrastructure cost estimates: 
 

➢ Water and Sewer Facilities have been designed in accordance with SJCUD and FDEP standards. 
 

➢ The stormwater management system has been designed per SJRWMD and SJC standards. 
 

➢ The engineering, permitting, construction inspection and other soft cost fees have been included in the 
estimated cost.  

 
➢ Cost estimates contained in this report are based upon year 2024 dollars. 

 
➢ Costs have been included for street lighting and electrical conduit on all roadways in accordance with 

FPL standards for the Series 2024 AA3-4 Project.  
 

 

 

 



t:\2022\22-397\22-397-01\22-397-01-001\_projmgmt\financial\2024 supplemental engineers report (aa2-3c_aa3-3 & aa3-4)\4 - background 5.24.docx 
 Page 5 

TABLE 1 

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR  

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE  4) 

 

Improvement Description 
Estimated 

Costs 

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE  
      Traffic Signal $1,000,000 
      Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $485,000 

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE SUBTOTAL $1,485,000 

NEIGHBORHOOD  INFRASTRUCTURE  
Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains $3,069,000 

      Stormwater Management $2,559,000 
      Neighborhood Roadways $1,492,000 
      Street Lighting $200,000 
      Water Distribution System $1,103,000 
      Common Area Landscape/Hardscape $450,000 

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUBTOTAL $8,873,000 

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE & NEIGHBORHOOD 

INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL 

$10,358,000 

 
 Infrastructure Improvements Permit Status 

 

With the exception of the SJRWMD Environmental Resource Permit (ERP), all permits 
necessary for construction have been obtained.  The SJRWMD ERP is anticipated to be issued 
in June, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



t:\2022\22-397\22-397-01\22-397-01-001\_projmgmt\financial\2024 supplemental engineers report (aa2-3c_aa3-3 & aa3-4)\4 - background 5.24.docx 
 Page 6 

 
  

 

 

APPENDIX 

Description 

 
Plate No. 

 
1 Location Map 

2 District Boundary Map 

3 Legal Description – District Boundary 

4 Assessment Area Master Plan 

5 Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4) Master Site Plan 

6 Legal Description – Assessment Area 3 (Phase 4)  

7 Sanitary Sewer Lift Station 

8 Sanitary Sewer Forcemain  

9 Stormwater Management Plan 

10 Neighborhood Roadways 

11 Street Lighting 

12 Water Distribution System 

13 Sanitary Sewer Collection System 

 
 
 
 



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



Si
x

M
ile

Cr
ee

k
Co

m
m

un
ity

D
ev

el
op

m
en

tD
ist

ric
t

Pa
rc

el
“A

”

A
pa

rt
of

Se
ct

io
ns

31
an

d
38

,T
ow

ns
hi

p
6

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
,t

og
et

he
rw

ith
a

pa
rt

of
Se

ct
io

ns
6,

38
an

d
41

,T
ow

ns
hi

p
7

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
,S

t.
Jo

hn
s

C
ou

nt
y,

Fl
or

id
a,

be
in

g
m

or
e

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
de

sc
rib

ed
as

fo
llo

w
s:

fo
ra

Po
in

to
f

R
ef

er
en

ce
,c

om
m

en
ce

at
th

e
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n
of

th
e

So
ut

he
rly

lin
e

of
sa

id
Se

ct
io

n
41

,T
ow

ns
hi

p
7

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
,w

ith
th

e
W

es
te

rly
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

lin
e

of
C

ou
nt

y
Ro

ad
no

.1
3a

(a
10

0.
00

fo
ot

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
as

no
w

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
):

th
en

ce
N

or
th

71
°0

3'
40

”
W

es
t,

al
on

g
th

e
sa

id
So

ut
h

lin
e

of
Se

ct
io

n
41

,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
10

65
.5

9
fe

et
to

th
e

Po
in

t
of

B
eg

in
ni

ng
;

th
en

ce
co

nt
in

ue
N

or
th

71
°0

3'
40

”
W

es
t,

al
on

g
th

e
So

ut
he

rly
lin

e
of

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

41
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
30

30
.7

5
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
N

or
th

60
°1

3'
49

”
W

es
t,

co
nt

in
ui

ng
al

on
g

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

lin
e,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

17
34

.0
2

fe
et

to
th

e
co

m
m

on
co

rn
er

to
Se

ct
io

ns
41

,5
an

d
6;

th
en

ce
So

ut
h

03
°2

4'
47

”
Ea

st
,a

lo
ng

th
e

Ea
st

er
ly

lin
e

of
sa

id
Se

ct
io

n
6,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

30
52

.1
0

fe
et

;t
he

nc
e

So
ut

h
03

°2
0'

35
”

Ea
st

,a
lo

ng
th

e
Ea

st
er

ly
lin

e
of

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

38
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
20

86
.2

5
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
N

or
th

86
°5

9'
59

”
W

es
t,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

86
3.

15
fe

et
to

th
e

w
at

er
s

of
Si

x
M

ile
C

re
ek

;
th

en
ce

N
or

th
46

°0
5'

12
'W

es
t,

al
on

g
th

e
w

at
er

s
of

sa
id

Si
x

M
ile

C
re

ek
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
14

30
.0

0
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
N

or
th

45
°0

6'
48

”
W

es
t,

al
on

g
th

e
w

at
er

so
f

Si
x

M
ile

C
re

ek
,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

19
73

.0
8

fe
et

;t
he

nc
e

N
or

th
15

°5
2'

42
”

W
es

t,
al

on
g

th
e

w
at

er
so

f
sa

id
Si

x
M

ile
C

re
ek

,a
di

sta
nc

e
of

63
9.

84
fe

et
;

th
en

ce
N

or
th

07
°0

8'
17

”
Ea

st
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
54

0.
00

fe
et

to
a

po
in

t
in

th
e

di
vi

sio
n

lin
e

be
tw

ee
n

Se
ct

io
n

6
an

d
38

;t
he

nc
e

N
or

th
89

°0
7'

35
”

W
es

t,
al

on
g

sa
id

di
vi

sio
n

lin
e,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

54
0.

00
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
N

or
th

01
°2

0'
11

”
W

es
t,

al
on

g
th

e
W

es
te

rly
lin

e
of

th
e

N
or

th
28

ac
re

s
of

th
e

N
or

th
ea

st
on

e
qu

ar
te

r
an

d
N

or
th

w
es

to
ne

qu
ar

te
r

of
sa

id
Se

ct
io

n
Si

x,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
26

65
.8

0
fe

et
to

a
po

in
ti

n
sa

id
Si

x
M

ile
C

re
ek

;t
he

nc
e

w
ith

th
e

w
at

er
s

of
sa

id
Si

x
M

ile
C

re
ek

,t
he

fo
llo

w
in

g
fo

ur
te

en
(1

4)
co

ur
se

s:
co

ur
se

no
.1

)N
or

th
21

°4
6'

57
”

W
es

t,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
11

5.
71

fe
et

;c
ou

rs
e

no
.2

)
N

or
th

04
°0

3'
00

”
W

es
t,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

47
1.

70
fe

et
;c

ou
rs

e
no

.3
)N

or
th

15
°3

0'
16

”
W

es
t,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

53
0.

00
fe

et
;

co
ur

se
no

.
4)

N
or

th
74

°1
5'

52
”

W
es

t,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
16

0.
00

fe
et

;
co

ur
se

no
.

5)
N

or
th

31
°5

4'
28

”
W

es
t,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

14
7.

65
fe

et
;c

ou
rs

e
no

.6
)N

or
th

14
°5

4'
52

”
W

es
t,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

65
5.

70
fe

et
;c

ou
rs

e
no

.7
)

N
or

th
58

°3
5'

33
”

W
es

t,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
33

6.
17

fe
et

;c
ou

rs
e

no
.8

)N
or

th
38

°5
3'

09
”

W
es

t,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
29

1.
63

fe
et

;c
ou

rs
e

no
.9

)N
or

th
07

°4
7'

32
”

Ea
st

,a
di

sta
nc

e
of

48
0.

55
fe

et
;c

ou
rs

e
no

.1
0)

N
or

th
31

°0
4'

47
”

W
es

t,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
88

.7
4

fe
et

;
co

ur
se

no
.

11
)

N
or

th
20

°3
8'

46
”

Ea
st

,a
di

sta
nc

e
of

21
9.

13
fe

et
;c

ou
rs

e
no

.1
2)

N
or

th
32

°5
6'

28
”

W
es

t,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
14

1.
49

fe
et

;c
ou

rs
e

no
.

13
)N

or
th

08
°2

5'
22

”
Ea

st
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
51

5.
92

fe
et

;c
ou

rs
e

no
.1

4)
N

or
th

15
°0

6'
25

”
W

es
t,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

65
1.

10
fe

et
;

th
en

ce
N

or
th

77
°4

5'
24

”
Ea

st
,l

ea
vi

ng
th

e
w

at
er

s
of

Si
x

M
ile

C
re

ek
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
22

51
.5

5
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
So

ut
h

40
°0

6'
20

”
Ea

st
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
35

60
.0

3
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
So

ut
h

85
°4

5'
56

”
Ea

st
,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

42
60

.6
3

fe
et

to
a

po
in

ti
n

th
e

di
vi

sio
n

lin
e

be
tw

ee
n

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

38
an

d
Se

ct
io

n
37

;
th

en
ce

So
ut

h
01

°0
6'

48
”

Ea
st

,a
lo

ng
sa

id
W

es
te

rly
lin

e
of

Se
ct

io
n

37
,a

di
sta

nc
e

of
25

8.
39

fe
et

to
th

e
So

ut
hw

es
t

co
rn

er
of

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

37
;

th
en

ce
So

ut
h

89
°4

0'
57

”
Ea

st
,

al
on

g
th

e
So

ut
h

lin
e

of
sa

id
Se

ct
io

n
37

,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
11

79
.7

9
fe

et
to

th
e

N
or

th
w

es
t

co
rn

er
of

a
30

.0
0

fo
ot

w
id

e
dr

ai
na

ge
ea

se
m

en
t,

as
re

co
rd

ed
in

de
ed

bo
ok

18
2,

pa
ge

13
3;

th
en

ce
So

ut
h

37
°0

5'
42

”
Ea

st
,

a
di

sta
nc

e
of

93
0.

18
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
So

ut
h

12
°2

3'
05

”
W

es
t,

al
on

g
a

lin
e

pa
ra

lle
lw

ith
an

d
ly

in
g

50
.0

0
fo

ot
W

es
te

rly
of

w
he

n
m

ea
su

re
d

at
rig

ht
an

gl
es

to
th

e
W

es
te

rly
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

lin
e

of
st

at
e

ro
ad

no
.1

3a
(a

10
0.

00
fo

ot
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

as
no

w
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

),
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
14

82
.9

0
fe

et
to

th
e

po
in

t
of

cu
rv

e,
co

nc
av

e
Ea

st
er

ly
,h

av
in

g
a

ra
di

us
of

23
92

.0
1

fe
et

;t
he

nc
e

So
ut

hw
es

te
rly

,c
on

tin
ui

ng
al

on
g

sa
id

pa
ra

lle
ll

in
e

an
d

al
on

g
th

e
ar

c
of

sa
id

cu
rv

e,
an

ar
c

di
sta

nc
e

of
60

4.
31

fe
et

,s
ai

d
ar

c
be

in
g

su
bt

en
de

d
by

a
ch

or
d

be
ar

in
g

of
So

ut
h

05
°0

8'
51

”
W

es
ta

nd
a

ch
or

d
di

sta
nc

e
of

60
2.

70
fe

et
to

th
e

po
in

to
f

ta
ng

en
cy

of
sa

id
cu

rv
e;

th
en

ce
So

ut
h

02
°0

5'
24

”
Ea

st
,c

on
tin

ui
ng

al
on

g
sa

id
pa

ra
lle

ll
in

e,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
86

8.
99

fe
et

;
th

en
ce

So
ut

h
87

°5
4'

35
”

W
es

t,
le

av
in

g
sa

id
pa

ra
lle

l
lin

e,
a

di
sta

nc
e

of
94

4.
62

fe
et

;
th

en
ce

So
ut

h
02

°0
5'

25
”

Ea
st

,a
di

st
an

ce
of

75
9.

38
fe

et
to

th
e

Po
in

to
fB

eg
in

ni
ng

.

To
ge

th
er

w
ith

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
de

sc
rib

ed
la

nd
s:

Pa
rc

el
“B

”

A
po

rti
on

of
Se

ct
io

n
5,

To
w

ns
hi

p
7

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
,S

t.
Jo

hn
s

C
ou

nt
y,

Fl
or

id
a,

be
in

g
m

or
e

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
de

sc
rib

ed
as

fo
llo

w
s:

Fo
r

a
Po

in
to

f
B

eg
in

ni
ng

,c
om

m
en

ce
at

th
e

N
or

th
ea

st
er

ly
co

rn
er

of
Se

ct
io

n
6,

To
w

ns
hi

p
7

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
,

al
so

be
in

g
th

e
N

or
th

w
es

te
rly

co
rn

er
of

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

5,
sa

id
co

rn
er

ly
in

g
on

th
e

So
ut

hw
es

te
rly

lin
e

of
Se

ct
io

n
41

of
th

e
A

nt
on

io
H

ue
rta

s
G

ra
nt

,T
ow

ns
hi

p
7

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
;

th
en

ce
So

ut
h

60
°1

3'
49

”
Ea

st
,a

lo
ng

sa
id

So
ut

hw
es

te
rly

lin
e

of
Se

ct
io

n
41

,a
di

sta
nc

e
of

14
17

.2
8

fe
et

to
th

e
N

or
th

w
es

te
rly

co
rn

er
of

th
os

e
la

nd
s

de
sc

rib
ed

an
d

re
co

rd
ed

in
O

ff
ic

ia
lR

ec
or

ds
Bo

ok
51

21
,

pa
ge

71
0,

of
th

e
Pu

bl
ic

R
ec

or
ds

of
sa

id
co

un
ty

;
th

en
ce

So
ut

h
01

°2
2'

46
”

Ea
st

,
de

pa
rti

ng
sa

id
So

ut
hw

es
te

rly
lin

e
an

d
al

on
g

th
e

W
es

te
rly

lin
e

of
la

st
sa

id
la

nd
s,

23
20

.3
2

fe
et

to
th

e
So

ut
hw

es
te

rly
co

rn
er

th
er

eo
f,

al
so

be
in

g
th

e
So

ut
he

as
te

rly
co

rn
er

of
th

os
e

la
nd

s
de

sc
rib

ed
an

d
re

co
rd

ed
in

O
ff

ic
ia

l
R

ec
or

ds
Bo

ok
37

81
,p

ag
e

15
56

of
sa

id
Pu

bl
ic

R
ec

or
ds

;
th

en
ce

So
ut

h
88

°4
6'

30
”

W
es

t,
al

on
g

th
e

So
ut

he
rly

lin
e

of
la

st
sa

id
la

nd
s,

11
04

.6
3

fe
et

to
a

po
in

tl
yi

ng
on

th
e

Ea
st

er
ly

lin
e

of
Se

ct
io

n
38

of
th

e
Jo

se
Pa

py
G

ra
nt

,T
ow

ns
hi

p
7

So
ut

h,
R

an
ge

28
Ea

st
;t

he
nc

e
N

or
th

03
°2

0'
35

”
W

es
t,

al
on

g
sa

id
Ea

st
er

ly
lin

e,
0.

28
fe

et
;t

he
nc

e
N

or
th

03
°2

4'
47

”
W

es
t,

co
nt

in
ui

ng
al

on
g

sa
id

Ea
st

er
ly

lin
e

an
d

al
on

g
th

e
Ea

st
er

ly
lin

e
of

sa
id

Se
ct

io
n

6,
a

di
st

an
ce

of
30

52
.1

0
fe

et
to

th
e

Po
in

to
fB

eg
in

ni
ng

.

Su
bj

ec
t

to
an

ea
se

m
en

t
fo

r
in

gr
es

s
an

d
eg

re
ss

ov
er

an
d

ac
ro

ss
th

e
So

ut
h

60
fe

et
of

th
e

ab
ov

e
de

sc
rib

ed
pr

op
er

ty
,(

as
to

Pa
rc

el
“B

”)
,p

er
O

ff
ic

ia
lR

ec
or

ds
Bo

ok
37

81
,p

ag
e

15
56

,o
f

th
e

Pu
bl

ic
R

ec
or

ds
of

sa
id

co
un

ty
.

C
on

ta
in

in
g

13
59

.9
3

ac
re

s,
m

or
e

or
le

ss
.

VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



LE
G

EN
D

:

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

2)
(2

01
7

)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
1

(2
01

5
)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

2)
(2

01
7

)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

1)
(2

01
6)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

2)
(2

01
7

)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
3

(P
H

A
SE

1A
)

(2
02

1)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
3

(P
H

A
SE

1B
)

(2
02

1)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

1)
(2

01
6)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

3C
)

(2
02

3)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
1

(2
01

5
)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
1

(2
01

5
)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

3A
)

(2
02

0)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

1)
(2

01
6)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
3

(P
H

A
SE

3)
(2

02
3)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
1

(2
01

5)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
3

(P
H

A
SE

2)
(2

02
1)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

1
(1

52
.2

0
A

c.
)[

20
15

]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

2
(P

H
AS

E
1)

(1
12

.6
8

A
c.

)[
20

16
]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

2
(P

H
AS

E
2)

(1
58

.3
1

A
c.

)[
20

17
]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

2
(P

H
AS

E
3)

(2
72

.3
0

A
c.

)[
20

20
/2

02
1

/2
02

3]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

3
(P

H
AS

E
1)

(1
73

.6
2

A
c.

)[
20

21
]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

3
(P

H
AS

E
2)

(8
1.

11
Ac

.)
[2

02
1]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

3
(P

H
AS

E
3)

(1
07

.1
8

A
c.

)[
20

23
]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

AR
EA

3
(P

H
AS

E
4)

(6
7.

52
Ac

.)
[C

U
R

R
EN

T]

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
2

(P
H

A
SE

3B
)

(2
02

1)

A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

A
R

EA
3

(P
H

A
SE

4)
(C

U
R

R
EN

T)

V
IS

IO
N

-E
X

PE
R

IE
N

C
E

-R
ES

U
LT

S
E

N
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.

LO
TS

43
'

53
'

63
'

70
'

80
'

TO
TA

L

20
32

81
19

-
1

[2
01

5]
15

2

16
0

-
63

21
61

2
(P

H
AS

E
1)

[2
01

6]
30

5

69
21

6
34

8
71

2
(P

H
AS

E
2)

[2
01

7]
39

8

57
62

62
-

-
18

1
2

(P
H

AS
E

3A
)

[A
G

E
R

E
ST

R
IC

TE
D

-2
02

0]

91
83

41
-

-
21

5
2

(P
H

AS
E

3B
)

[A
G

E
R

E
ST

R
IC

TE
D

-2
02

1]

71
78

33
-

-
18

2
2

(P
H

AS
E

3C
)

[A
G

E
R

E
ST

R
IC

TE
D

-2
02

3]

76
74

45
-

-
3

(P
H

AS
E

1A
)[

20
21

]
19

5

10
8

61
3

-
-

3
(P

H
AS

E
1B

)[
20

21
]

17
2

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

AR
EA

-
-

75
-

-
3

(P
H

AS
E

2)
[2

02
1]

75

11
9

64
20

-
-

3
(P

H
AS

E
3)

[2
02

3]
20

3

93
89

15
-

-
3

(P
H

AS
E

4)
[2

02
4]

19
7

86
4

75
9

47
2

48
13

2
TO

TA
LS

2,
27

5



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



VI
SI

O
N

-E
XP

ER
IE

N
C

E
-R

ES
U

LT
S

EN
G

LA
N

D
-T

H
IM

S
&

M
IL

LE
R

,I
N

C
.



 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 



 

 
 

Exhibit C 
Maturities and Coupon of 2024 Bonds 

 

 
 
 

  



 

 
 

Exhibit D 

 
 
 

 
 
  



 

 
 

Exhibit E 

 



 

 
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



1 

RESOLUTION 2025-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT RATIFYING THE APPROVAL AND 
EXECUTION OF THE ACQUISITION AGREEMENT, COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT 
AGREEMENT, TRUE UP AGREEMENT, COMPLETION AGREEMENT, RESERVE 
ACCOUNT RELEASE AGREEMENT AND NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 
DISTRICT’S SERIES 2024 BONDS; AND ADDRESSING CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit 

of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install, 
operate, and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has adopted a report of its District Engineer, as may be amended 

and/or supplemented (“Engineer’s Report”), which sets forth the scope of the District’s capital 
improvement plan and the improvements which are to be constructed therewith 
(“Improvements”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the District has acted to finance a portion of the Improvements through the 
issuance of its special assessment bonds as described in more detail in Resolution 2025-01 (the 
“2024 Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the 2024 Bonds, the District entered into 
the Acquisition Agreement, Collateral Assignment Agreement, True-Up Agreement, Completion 
Agreement, Reserve Account Release Agreement and Notice of Assessments (collectively the 
“Ancillary Documents”), copies of which are attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the execution of the Ancillary Documents is in the best 
interest of the District, its landowners, and future residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to ratify the Chairman’s execution of the Ancillary 

Documents on the District’s behalf. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 



2 

1. FINDINGS.  The recitals as stated above are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 

 
2. APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF ANCILLARY DOCUMENTS.  The Ancillary 

Documents, attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A, are hereby approved and the execution of 
the Ancillary Documents by the Chairperson is hereby ratified. 

 
3. CONFLICTS.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be in conflict with another 

resolution of the District, the resolutions shall be read to harmony to the extent possible, and, 
otherwise, the terms of this Resolution shall control with respect to the subject matter addressed 
herein.   
 

4. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, 
the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
5. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and 

shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of November, 2024. 
 
WITNESS: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________ _______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
Composite Exhibit A:  Ancillary Documents 



Acknowledgement of Acquisition Agreement (Series 2024) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF THE CONTINUED EFFECTIVENESS OF THE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AND SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC REGARDING THE 

ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN WORK PRODUCT, IMPROVEMENTS AND REAL 
PROPERTY 

THIS ACKNOWLEDGMENT is entered into this 11th day of October, 2024 by and between: 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in St. Johns County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District”); and 

Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
and a landowner in the District, whose address is 7807 Baymeadows Road East, 
Suite 205, Jacksonville, Florida 32256 (“Developer”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner and/or developer of certain lands located within the 
boundaries of the District (hereinafter the "Development"); and 

WHEREAS, the District is a special district which was established to plan, construct, 
install, acquire, finance, manage and operate public improvements and community facilities for 
lands including the Development; and 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the issuance of the District’s $7,315,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016A (Assessment Area 2) and its $6,720,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016B (Assessment Area 2) (collectively the “2016 Bonds”), the District and the Developer 
entered into that certain AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  AND SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC 
REGARDING THE ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN WORK PRODUCT, IMPROVEMENTS 
AND REAL PROPERTY dated April 29, 2016 (the “Acquisition Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the District and Developer desire to acknowledge the continued effectiveness 
of the Acquisition Agreement in relation to the District’s $5,790,000 Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (2024 Project Area) (the “2024 Bonds”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual understandings and covenants set 
forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the District and Developer agree as follows: 

Section 1.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are incorporated 
into and form a material part of this Acknowledgment. 



Acknowledgement of Acquisition Agreement (Series 2024) 

Section 2.  Developer and District hereby agree that the Acquisition Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect with respect to the issuance of the 2024 Bonds and the use of the 
proceeds of the 2024 Bonds to acquire certain work product, improvements and real property 
described in the Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements
dated May 24, 2024, as the 2024 Project. 

Section 3.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
when executed and delivered shall be an original, and such counterparts together shall constitute, 
but one and the same instrument.  Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached 
from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically form one 
document. 

[Signatures appear on the following pages.] 





IN WITNESS WHEREOPF, the parties execute this acknowledgement the day and year 
first written above. 

Witness: Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 

a Delaware limited liability company 

        ; Name: Christopher J. Rusnak 
vL Title: Vice President 

Print Name of Witness 

Acknowledgement of Acquisition Agreement (Scries 2024)



Instr #2024079574 BK: 6034 PG: 1045, Filed & Recorded: 10/14/2024 9:01 AM #Pgs:10 

Brandon J. Patty,Clerk of the Circuit Court and County Comptroller St. JohnsCounty FL Recording $86.50 

Prepared by and return to: 

Wesley S. Haber, Esq. 

Kutak Rock LLP 

107 West College Avenue 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

  

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE IS FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF DEVELOPMENT AND 

CONTRACT RIGHTS RELATING TO 

THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 2024 PROJECT 
  

This COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF DEVELOPMENT AND 

CONTRACT RIGHTS RELATING TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 2024 PROJECT 

(herein, the “Assignment”) is made this 11" day of October, 2024, by SIX MILE CREEK 
INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC, together with its successors and assigns (the “Developer” or 

“Assignor’), in favor of the SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 

a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
and located in St. Johns County, Florida (together with its successors and assigns, the “District” 
or “Assignee’’). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District proposes to issue its $5,790,000 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2024 (2024 Project Area) (the “Series 2024 Bonds’) to finance certain public 
infrastructure which will provide special benefit to the Lands (defined below) located within the 

geographical boundaries of the District (the “Development”); and 

WHEREAS, the security for the repayment of the Series 2024 Bonds is the special 

assessments described in more detail in that certain Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology 
Report for the Series 2022 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3 (Unit 

12) and Phase 4 (Unit 13), Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C (EP3) dated September 21, 2022, as 

supplemented by the Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2024 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 4 dated September 25, 2024 
(collectively the “Assessment Report”) levied against the real property located within Assessment 

Area 3, Phase 4 (the “2024 Assessments”), as such property is more specifically described in 
Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Lands”’); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer and District anticipate that the Development will be developed 

in accordance with the Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital 
Improvements dated May 24, 2024 (the “Engineer’s Report” or “Capital Improvement Program’’) 

and the Assessment Report, and, in connection with such development, all lots intended to be 
subject to the 2024 Assessments will be fully developed and platted (the “Development 
Completion”); and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer’s Report identifies certain master and neighborhood 

improvements that comprise the “2024 Project”; and



BK: 6034 PG: 1046 

WHEREAS, the failure to achieve Development Completion may increase the likelihood 
that the purchasers of the Series 2024 Bonds will not receive the full benefit of their investment in 

the Series 2024 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, during the period in which the Lands are being developed and have yet to 
reach Development Completion, there is an increased likelihood that adverse changes to local or 

national economic conditions may result in a default in the payment of the 2024 Assessments 

securing the Series 2024 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in the event of default in the payment of the 2024 Assessments securing the 
Series 2024 Bonds, the District has certain remedies with respect to the lien of the 2024 

Assessments as more particularly set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, if the 2024 Assessments are directly billed, the sole remedy available to the 
District would be an action in foreclosure; if the 2024 Assessments are collected pursuant to 

Florida’s uniform method of collection, the sole remedy for non-payment of the 2024 Assessments 
is the sale of tax certificates (collectively, the “Remedial Rights”); and 

WHEREAS, in the event the District exercises its Remedial Rights, the District will 
require the assignment of certain Development & Contract Rights (defined below) to complete 

development of the Lands to the extent that, prior to such exercise, such Development & Contract 

Rights have not been previously assigned, transferred, or otherwise conveyed to an unaffiliated 
homebuilder resulting from the sale of any portion of the Lands in the ordinary course of business, 
St. Johns County, the District, any utility provider, any applicable homeowner’s association or 

other governing entity or association as may be required by applicable permits, approvals, plats, 
entitlements or regulations affecting the District, if any (a “Prior Transfer’); and 

WHEREAS, this Assignment is not intended to impair or interfere with the development 
of the Development and shall only be inchoate until becoming effective and absolute assignment 
and assumption of the Development & Contract Rights upon failure of the Assignor to pay the 

2024 Assessments levied against the Lands owned by the Assignor; provided, however, that such 
assignment shall only be effective and absolute to the extent that this Assignment has not been 
terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of this Assignment or to the extent that a Prior Transfer 
has not already occurred with respect to the Development & Contract Rights; and 

WHEREAS, in the event of a transfer, conveyance or sale of any portion of the Lands 

(excluding a Prior Transfer), any and all affiliated entities or successors-in-interest to the 

Developer’s interest in the Lands shall be subject to this Assignment, which shall be recorded in 
the Official Records of St. Johns County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the rights assigned to the District hereunder shall be exercised in a manner 

which will not materially affect the intended development of the Development; and 

WHEREAS, absent this Assignment becoming effective and absolute, it shall 

automatically terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following: (1) payment of the Series 2024 
Bonds in full; (1) Development Completion; or (111) upon occurrence of a Prior Transfer, but only 

to the extent that such Development & Contract Rights are subject or pertain to the Prior Transfer 

Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1047 

(the period from execution of this Assignment to any such termination or absolute effectiveness 
being referred to herein as the “Term”); and 

WHEREAS, to the extent that any portion of the Lands has not reached Development 
Completion, but the debt assessments securing the Series 2024 Bonds on such portion of the Lands 
have been paid in full, this Assignment shall automatically terminate only as it relates to such 

portion of the Lands. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals which the parties hereby 

agree are true and correct and are hereby incorporated by reference and other good and valuable 
consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Assignor and Assignee agree as follows: 

1. Collateral Assignment. Assignor hereby collaterally assigns to Assignee, to the 
extent assignable and to the extent that they are solely owned or controlled by Assignor or any 
related entity of Assignor, at execution of this Agreement or acquired in the future, all of 

Assignor’s development rights and contract rights relating to the development of the Lands (herein 
the “Development & Contract Rights”) as security for Assignor’s payment and performance and 

discharge of its obligation to pay the 2024 Assessments levied against the Lands when due. This 
Assignment shall become effective and absolute upon failure of the Assignor to timely pay the 

2024 Assessments levied against the Lands owned by the Assignor. The Development & Contract 
Rights shall include the following as they pertain to the development of the Lands, but shall 

specifically exclude any such portion of the Development & Contract Rights which are subject to 
a Prior Transfer: 

  

(a) Engineering and construction plans and specifications for grading, 
roadways, site drainage, stormwater drainage, signage, water distribution, waste water collection, 

and other improvements. 

(b) Zoning approvals, density approvals and entitlements, concurrency and 
capacity certificates, and development agreements. 

(c) Preliminary and final site plans. 

(d) Architectural plans and specifications for buildings and other improvements 
to the Lands (and specifically excluding builder house plans). 

(e) Permits, approvals, resolutions, variances, licenses, impact fees and 

franchises granted by governmental authorities, or any of their respective agencies, for or affecting 

the 2024 Project and construction of improvements thereon including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

(1) Any and all approvals, extensions, amendments, rezoning and 
development orders rendered by governmental authorities, 

including St. Johns County relating to the Capital Improvement 
Program. 

(ii) Any and all service agreements relating to utilities, water and/or 

wastewater. 

Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1048 

(iii) | Permits, more particularly described in the Engineer’s Report. 

(f) Contracts with engineers, architects, land planners, landscape architects, 
consultants, contractors, and suppliers for or relating to the construction of the 2024 Project. 

(g) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, contracts and 
agreements with private utility providers to provide utility services to the Capital Improvement 

Program, including the lots. 

(h) All future creations, changes, extensions, revisions, modifications, 

substitutions, and replacements of any of the foregoing. 

2. Warranties by Assignor. Assignor represents and warrants to Assignee that: 
  

(a) Other than in connection with the sale of lots to homebuilders and/or end 

users located within Lands and in the ordinary course of business, Assignor has made no 
assignment of the Development & Contract Rights to any person or entity. 

(b) During the Term, any transfer, conveyance or sale of the Lands (excluding 
a Prior Transfer), shall subject any and all affiliated entities or successors-in-interest of the 

Developer to this Assignment. 

(c) No action has been brought or threatened which would in any way interfere 

with the right of Assignor to execute this Assignment and perform all of Assignor’s obligations 
herein contained. 

3. Covenants. Assignor covenants with Assignee that during the Term: 

(a) Assignor will use reasonable, good faith efforts to: (1) fulfill, perform, and 

observe each and every material condition and covenant of Assignor relating to the Development 
& Contract Rights; and (ii) give notice to Assignee of any claim of default relating to the 

Development & Contract Rights given to or by Assignor, together with a complete copy of any 
such claim. 

(b) If and when this Assignment become absolute, the Development & Contract 

Rights include all of Assignor’s right to modify the Development & Contract Rights, to terminate 

the Development & Contract Rights, and to waive or release the performance or observance of any 
obligation or condition of the Development & Contract Rights; provided that no such modification, 
termination, waiver or release affects any of the Development & Contract Rights which pertain to 

lands outside of the District not relating to development of the Lands. 

(c) Assignor agrees to perform any and all actions necessary and use good faith 
efforts relating to any and all future creations, changes, extensions, revisions, modifications, 

substitutions, and replacements of the Development & Contract Rights, none of which actions or 
rights shall be limited by this Assignment except to the extent and as set forth in this Assignment. 

4. Event(s) of Default. Any breach of the Assignor’s warranties contained in Section 
2 hereof or breach of covenants contained in Section 3 hereof will, after the giving of notice and 
  

Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1049 

an opportunity to cure (which cure period shall be at least sixty (60) days), shall constitute an Event 
of Default under this Assignment. 

5. Remedies Upon Event of Default. Upon an Event of Default, Assignee may, as 
Assignee’s sole and exclusive remedies, take any or all of the following actions, at Assignee’s 
option: 

  

(a) Perform any and all obligations of Assignor relating to the Development & 

Contract Rights and exercise any and all rights of Assignor therein as fully as Assignor could. 

(b) Initiate, appear in, or defend any action arising out of or affecting the 
Development & Contract Rights. 

6. Authorization. Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of 

Default, Assignor does hereby authorize and shall direct any party to any agreement relating to the 
Development & Contract Rights to tender performance thereunder to Assignee upon written notice 

and request from Assignee. Any such performance in favor of Assignee shall constitute a full 
release and discharge to the extent of such performance as fully as though made directly to 

Assignor. 

7. Miscellaneous. Unless the context requires otherwise, whenever used herein, the 

singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender shall 
include all genders. The terms “person” and “party” shall include individuals, firms, associations, 

joint ventures, partnerships, estates, trusts, business trusts, syndicates, fiduciaries, corporations, 

and all other groups and combinations. Titles of paragraphs contained herein are inserted only as 
a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit, extend, or describe the scope 

of this Assignment or the intent of any provisions hereunder. This Assignment shall be construed 

under Florida law. 

8. Third Party Beneficiaries. The Trustee for the Series 2024 Bonds, on behalf of 

the bondholders, shall be a direct third party beneficiary of the terms and conditions of this 

Assignment and shall be entitled to cause the District to enforce the Developer’s obligations 

hereunder. In the event that the District does not promptly take Trustee’s written direction under 
this Agreement, or the District is otherwise in default under the Indenture, the Trustee shall have 
the right to enforce the District’s rights hereunder directly. This Assignment is solely for the benefit 

of the parties set forth in this Section, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason 

hereof, to or for the benefit of any other third party. The Trustee shall not be deemed to have 
assumed any obligations hereunder. 

  

9. Termination. Absent this Assignment becoming effective and absolute, it shall 
automatically terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following: (1) payment of the Series 2024 

Bonds in full; (1) Development Completion; or (111) upon occurrence of a Prior Transfer, but only 
to the extent that such Development & Contract Rights are subject or pertain to the Prior Transfer. 

  

10. Amendment. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties and may be modified in writing only by the mutual agreement of all parties. This Agreement 

may not be amended without the prior written consent of the Trustee and the Bondholders owning 
a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds then outstanding. 

5 
Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1050 

11. Counterparts. This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original, and such counterparts together 
shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, 
may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically 

form one document. 

[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 

Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1051 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor and Assignee have caused this Assignment to be 
executed and delivered on the day and year first written above. 

ASSIGNOR: 

WITNESSES SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT 
GROUP, LLC 

ov Ci henrk 
y ame Christopher J. Rusnak 

fe— Title: Vice President 

    

    

  

STATE OF FL DA 
COUNTY OF _{ aw gt 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of &physical presence or O 
online notarization, this}4—-day of October, 2024, by Christopher J. Rusnak, as Vice President 
of Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, on its behalf. He {_4-+t personally known to me or 
[__]produced  __ as identification. 

  

  

  

Notary Public, State of Florida 

Notary Public State of Florida 
Karine Rodrigues Santos da Silva 
My Commission HH 129261 

fy Pm Expires 05/12/2025 

  

Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1052 

ASSIGNEE: 

WITNESSES SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Lenin Bigg LE 
Name: \na Vanier Gregg Kern, Chairman 
Address; F8U4_' mee & US Fae 
ROS Docksalle — Ate 

Nam: Kadi. 

Address: O-} 

sien Be , 

STATE OF FLO IDA 
COUNTY OF $2aimak 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of & physical presence or O 
online notarization, this eoday of October, 2024, by Gregg Kern, as Chairman of the Board of 

Supervisors of Six Mile Creek Community Development District, for and on behalf of the District. 
He [ &+ts personally known to me or [___] produced as 

identification. 

    

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

Print Mame? 

Notary Public, State of Florida 

  

  

Exhibit A: Legal Description 

Collaieral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



(spuog pZ0Z Selas) JUSWIUBISSY [eIa}e][0D 

6 

‘1944 T6°ZEZ AO JDNVISIC DYV NV ‘1434 OO'OZTT 4O SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATHALSIMHLNOS JAVINOD 

“JAYND AIVS 4O JUV FHL GNNOYV GNV ONOTV ‘ATYSLSIMHLYON JDNSHL ‘ATYSLSAMHLYON ONIGVST 

FAYND V AO JNNLVAYND JO LNIOd FHL OL ‘1334 67°62 ‘ISAM 67Z,70.VE HLYON JDNSHL +1454 TE'EL 

‘ISAM uTE,S5.9S HLNOS JONIHL ‘1944 70°97 ‘LSAM uvv.7S.ST HLNOS JO JONVLSIC GNV ONIN] 

GYOHD V Ad GIGNALENS ONIZT DV IVS ‘1334 T6°9Z AO JONVLSIC JUV NV ‘L454 00°0E JO SNIdVY 

V ONIAVH ‘ATYSLSWA SAVINOD “FAYND GIVS 4O DYV SHL GNNOYV GNV ONOT ‘ATHSHLNOS JONIHL 

‘ATHFHLNOS ONIGV]AT FAUND V JO JUNLVAYND ISHSATY JO LNIOd FHL OL ‘19454 89°T9 ‘1SIM 170,7707E 

HLNOS JO JONVLSIG GNV ONIYV3SE GYOHD V Ad GJGN3LENS ONIAE DV AIVS ‘1444 S6°T9 JO JONVISIG 

DUV NV ‘13354 00°Z6T JO SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATHILSAMHLYON JAVINOD ‘JANI AIVS JO DYV FHL 

GNNOUYV AGNV SNOT ‘ATHSLSAMHLNOS JDNFHL ‘ATYSLSAMHLNOS ONIGVAT JANND V JO FYNLVAYND 

ASUIAIY 4O LNIOd JHL OL ‘1944 VES ‘ISAM uZT.27.ZE HLNOS AO JONVLSIG GNV ONIYVId GYOHD 

V Ad G3GN3ILANS ONIF DYV GIVS ‘1944 68°05 4O JONVLSIC DYV NV ‘1334 00'00T JO SNIGVY V ONIAVH 

‘ATHILSVAHLNOS JAVINOD ‘JAYND AIVS JO DYV FHL GNNOYV GNV ONOTV ‘ATYILSAMHLNOS JONSHL 

‘ATHILSIMHLNOS ONIGVAT SAYND V AO FANLVAYND AO LNIOd JHL OL ‘1454 E€'SEE ‘1SAM w7S,9T.2S 

HLNOS JONIHL *JAYND AIVS AO ADNJONVL AO LNIOd SHL OL ‘1454 O8OTT ‘LSAM uTE,SS.58 HLNOS 

JO JONVLSIG GNV ONIYV3d GYOHD V Ad GJGNILENS ONIAE DV IVS ‘1444 vr’ ZTT 4O JONVISIC 

DYV NV ‘L434 00'00T JO SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATHFHLNOS JAVINOD ‘JAYND GIVS 4O JUV JHL GNNOYV 

GNV DNOTV ‘ATHSLSIM SONSHLL SATHSLSIM ONIGV3T SAYNND V JO FYNLVAYND GNNOdWOD 4O LNIOd 

FHL OL ‘L944 67°28 ‘ISAM wTZ.ZE.TS HLYON JO JONVISIC GNV ONINVIG GYOHD V Ad GAGN3LENs 

ONISE DNV IVS ‘L354 €9°28 JO JONVISIGC DYV NV ‘L454 00°S8Z 4O SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATYSLSIMHLNOS 

JAVINOD ‘AAYND GIVS 40 JUV SHL GNNOYV GNV ONO ‘ATYSLSAMHLYON SONSHL !ATYILSAMHLYON 

ONIGV]T JAUND V JO AYNLVAYND ASHIAIY AO LNIOd JHL OL ‘1444 Ov’ ZVT ‘LSIM .62,ZT.97 HLYON 

JO JONVLSIG GNV ONIYV3d GYOHD V Ad GJGNILENS ONIAE DV IVS ‘1444 67° Z7T 4O JONVISIC 

DV NV ‘L354 0O'STZT JO SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATHIISVIHLYON JAVINOD ‘JAYND AIVS JO DYV FHL 

GNNOUYV INV SNOT ‘ATHSLSIMHLYON JDNSHL ‘ATYSLSAMHLYON ONIGV]T JANND V AO AYNLVAYND 

ASUIAIY AO LNIOd FHL OL ‘L454 G8TS ‘1S4M .ZT,OT.7Z2 HLYON AO JONVISIC ONV ONINVIE 

GYOHD V Ad GIGNILENS ONIF DV GIVS ‘1544 T9°ES AO JONVLSIC JUV NV ‘14334 00°09 JO SNIGVY V 

ONIAVH ‘ATYILSAMHLNOS JAVINOD ‘JAYND AIVS JO DYV FHL GNNOUV GNV ONO ‘ATHILSAMHLYON 

JONIHL ‘ATYILSAMHLYON ONIGV9T SAYND V JO DYV FHL OL ‘13394 ZO'BET “LSIM .9€,0S.TZ HLNOS 

JONIHL ‘1444 66°€0Z ‘1SAM .7Z,60.8T HLYON JONAH ‘1444 29°9 ‘1SV4 .9€,05.TZ HLYON JONIHL 

‘1954 00°02ZT ‘1S4M ..7Z,60.8T HLYON JONFHL “1934 78°25 “1SVF .9€,0S.TZ HLYON JONSHL ‘JAYNND 

GIVS 40 ADNJONVL AO LNIOd SHI OL ‘1454 0687 ‘1SV4 ..60,20.79 HLYON JO JONVISIG GNV ONIYVA 

GYOHD V Ad GIGNILENS ONIA DYV GIVS ‘1334 90°67 AO JDNVLSIC DYV NV ‘1454 00'08T 40 SNIAVY V 

ONIAVH ‘ATYILSVAHLNOS JAVINOD ‘JAYND AIVS JO DYV JHL GNNOYV GNV ONO ‘ATYSISVWIHLYON 

JONSHL ‘ATYILSVAHLYON ONIGV]T JANND V AO JUV SHI OL ‘1954 87'SZE ‘ISAM .L17.72.€0 HLYON 

JONSHL ‘L444 CE VOTT “LSAM 10.87.88 HLNOS JONIHL L944 8S°OZEZ ‘LSVI .SZ,77.T0 HLNOS JONIHL 

‘13354 V8°800T ‘1SV3 .0T,ZZ.€9 HLYON JONFHL “19494 €6°ETY ‘“1SVI ZT.ZE.88 HLYON JONIHL ‘SAGYODAY 

DINdNd GIVS 4O AAISNIONI ‘SE HONOYHL 62 SIOVd ‘ZTT WOOP dVW NI G3dYODI4 SV “A LINN TT 3SWHd 

43ND YAdSIHM 4O LV1d JHL NO NMOHS SV ‘9 LOVYL IHL JO YANYOD ATHIISWA LSOW JH LV NIDIG 

‘SMOTIOS SV GId1y9dSI0 

ATHVINDILEVd JHYOW ONIAE “VOIYOTS ‘ALNNOD SNHOFS “LS ‘1SW4 82 JONVY HLNOS Z dIHSNMOL 

NI ONIAT ‘8E NOILOAS ‘LNVUHD AdVd JSOF SHL JO NOILYOd V GNV ‘9 GNV S SNOILD3S JO NOILYOd V 

  
EL ASVHd 44dYd YAdSIHM 

uoldLadseg [ese] 

V VQUXa 

€SOT -DOd F£09 “Ma



BK: 6034 PG: 1054 

SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°46'39" WEST, 232.53 

FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 45°28'50" WEST, 87.37 FEET, TO 

THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT OF WHISPER 

CREEK PHASE 11 UNIT B; THENCE EASTERLY, NORTHEASTERLY, NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY, ALONG LAST 

SAID LINE, RUN THE FOLLOWING NINE (9) COURSES AND DISTANCES; COURSE NO. 1: EASTERLY, ALONG 

AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET, AN 

ARC DISTANCE OF 38.87 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 

NORTH 68°45'07" EAST, 37.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 

NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 2: NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 

CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 135.80 FEET, SAID 

ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 61°10'37" EAST, 132.98 FEET, 

TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 3: 

NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 50.89 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 66°51'37" EAST, 50.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID 

CURVE; COURSE NO. 4: NORTH 52°16'54" EAST, 426.96 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 

LEADING NORTHERLY; COURSE NO. 5: NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 

CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 79.07 FEET, SAID ARC 

BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 04°20'56" WEST, 66.81 FEET; 

COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 14°23'30" EAST, 131.19 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; 

COURSE NO. 7: EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 325.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 35.94 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 

CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 78°46'36" EAST, 35.93 FEET; COURSE NO. 8: NORTH 

08°03'18" EAST, 180.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 9: NORTH 32°38'02" EAST, 402.95 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 67.52 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

10 
Collateral Assignment (Series 2024 Bonds)



Instr #2024079575 BK: 6034 PG: 1055, Filed & Recorded: 10/14/2024 9:01 AM #Pgs:11 

Brandon J. Patty,Clerk of the Circuit Court and County Comptroller St. JohnsCounty FL Recording $95.00 

This instrument was prepared by and (This space reserved for Clerk) 

upon recording should be returned to: 

Wesley S. Haber, Esq. 

Kutak Rock LLP 

107 West College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301   
  

TRUE-UP AGREEMENT FOR 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024 

(2024 PROJECT AREA) 

THIS TRUE-UP AGREEMENT FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2024 (2024 PROJECT AREA) (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on 
this 11" day of October, 2024, by and between: 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local 

unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, being situated in St. Johns County, Florida, whose address is c/o 

Governmental Management Services, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”); and 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company and a landowner in the District, whose address is 7807 

Baymeadows Road East, Suite 205, Jacksonville, Florida 32256 (“Developer”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was established by Rule 42GGG-1 enacted by the Florida Land 

and Water Adjudicatory Commission, pursuant to the Uniform Community Development 

District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (“Act”), and is validly existing 
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, 
of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, 

including storm water management systems, roadways, landscaping/hardscape, utilities, street 
lighting, and other infrastructure within or without the boundaries of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the primary owner of certain lands in unincorporated St. 
Johns County, Florida (“County”), located within the boundaries of the District, including what 

is known as “Assessment Area 3, Phase 4,” which lands are described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto (the “Developer Lands”); and 

WHEREAS, the District has previously issued its Series 2007 Bonds to finance, in part, 
the planning, design, acquisition, construction, and installation of certain infrastructure 

improvements, facilities, and services to benefit developable property within the District , as



BK: 6034 PG: 1056 

such improvements are detailed in the Improvement Plan for the Purpose of Special Assessment 

Bonds, dated December 1, 2006 (the “Master Project Report”), as supplemented by the 
District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital Improvements dated May 25, 
2007 (the “2007 Project Report”), the Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2014 Capital 
Improvements dated November 12, 2014 (the “2014 Project Report’), the Supplemental 

Engineer’s Report for Series 2016 Capital Improvements dated April 12, 2016 (the “2016 

Project Report’), and the Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2017 Capital 
Improvements dated October 27, 2017 (the “2017 Project Report”), the Supplemental 
Engineers Report for Series 2020 Capital Improvements dated June 2, 2020, (the “2020 Area 2, 

Phase 3A Project Report”), the Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2021 Capital 

Improvements dated January 19, 2021 (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report’) and the Six 

Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2021 
AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements dated September 10, 2021 (the “2021 Area 3, Phase 
2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report”), the Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2023 AA2-3C & AA3-3 Capital Improvements dated 
June 5, 2023 (the “2023 Project Report”), and the Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated May 
24, 2024 (the “2024 Project Report” and together with the Master Project Report, the 2007 

Project Report, the 2014 Project Report, the 2016 Project Report, the 2017 Project Report, the 
2020 Area 2, Phase 3A Project Report, the 2021 Area 3, Phase 1 Project Report, 2021 Area 3, 

Phase 2/Area 2, Phase 3B Project Report, and the 2023 Project Report, the “Engineer’s 
Report”); and 

WHEREAS, the District is issuing its $5,790,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2024 (2024 Project Area) (“Series 2024 Bonds’) for the purpose of financing certain 

Improvements as described in more detail in the 2024 Project Report; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution Nos. 2022-22, 2022-23, and 2023-02 (“Assessment 

Resolutions”), the District has taken certain steps necessary to impose special assessments on 

benefitted property within the District including, but not limited to the Developer Lands (the 

“2024 Assessments”) pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, to secure the 

Series 2024 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, in issuing the Series 2024 Bonds, the District has assumed and relied upon 

the representation that the Developer would develop and plat a certain number of residential 
and/or other units within the Developer Lands, as more fully set forth in the Supplemental 

Special Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2022 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds Assessment Area 3 Phase 3 (Unit 12) and Phase 4 (Unit 13), Assessment Area 2 Phase 3C 
(EP3) dated September 21, 2022, as supplemented by the Supplemental Special Assessment 

Methodology Report for the Series 2024 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment Area 3 
Phase 4, dated September 25, 2024 (collectively the “Assessment Report’), which Assessment 
Report is incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, in the event that the Developer does not develop and plat the number of 

units as contemplated by the Assessment Report, the Assessment Resolutions and Assessment 
Report require that the Developer make certain payments to the District in order to satisfy, in 

True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1057 

whole or in part, the 2024 Assessments, with the amount of such payments (“True-Up 
Payment(s)”); and 

WHEREAS, Developer and the District desire to enter into an agreement to confirm 
Developer’s intentions and obligations to make True-Up Payments, if and as required, related to 

the 2024 Assessments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the parties agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 

incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

2. VALIDITY OF ASSESSMENTS. Developer agrees that (i) the developable 
property within the District benefits from the timely design, construction and/or acquisition of 

the improvements identified in the 2024 Project Report to be funded, in part, with the proceeds 
of the Series 2024 Bonds; (11) the 2024 Assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated as 

described in the Assessment Resolutions and Assessment Report; (iii) the Assessment 

Resolutions have been duly adopted by the District; and (iv) the 2024 Assessments imposed as a 
lien by the District are legal, valid and binding liens against the property so assessed. Developer 
hereby waives any defect in the notices and publications relating to, or in the proceedings to 

levy, impose, and collect, the 2024 Assessments, and further waives and relinquishes any rights 

it may have to challenge, object to or otherwise fail to pay such 2024 Assessments. 

3. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REALLOCATION. 

A, Assumptions as to the 2024 Assessments. As of the date of the execution of this 
Agreement, Developer has informed the District that Developer anticipates that a total of 197 

single-family residential dwelling units will be constructed within the Developer Lands. 

B. Process for Reallocation of Assessments. The 2024 Assessments will be 
reallocated as lands are platted (a “Reallocation’”). In connection with such platting of acreage, 
the 2024 Assessments imposed on the acreage being platted will be allocated based upon the 

precise number of units within each product type being platted. In furtherance thereof, at such 

time as acreage is to be platted, Developer covenants that such plat shall be presented to the 
District. The District shall allocate the 2024 Assessments to the product types being platted and 
the remaining property in accordance with the Assessment Report and cause such Reallocation to 

be recorded in the District’s Improvement Lien Book. 

(1) It is an express condition of the lien established by the Assessment 
Resolutions that any and all plats containing any portion of the lands within the 

Developer Lands, as the District’s boundaries may be amended from time to time, shall 

be presented to the District for review, approval and allocation of the 2024 Assessments 
to the product types being platted and the remaining property in accordance with the 

Assessment Report. Developer covenants to comply, or cause others to comply, with this 

True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1058 

requirement for the Reallocation. The District agrees that no further action by the Board 
shall be required. The District’s review of the plats shall be limited solely to the 

Reallocation of the 2024 Assessments, the enforcement of the District’s assessment lien 

and the enforcement of the Developer's true-up obligations hereunder. Nothing herein 

shall in any way operate to or be construed as providing any other plat and plan approval 
or disapproval powers to the District. 

(1) | As acreage within the Developer Lands is platted (each such date being a 
“True-Up Date”), the District shall determine if the debt per developable acre remaining 

on the unplatted lands within the Developer Lands exceeds the maximum debt per 

developable acre of $85,752.37, as described in more detail in Section 4 of the 

Assessment Report, and if it is, a debt reduction payment in the amount of such excess 

debt per developable acre (the “True-Up Payment”) shall become immediately due and 
payable by Developer that tax year in accordance with the Assessment Report, in addition 

to the regular assessment installment payable for lands owned by the Developer. The 
District will ensure collection of such amounts in a timely manner in order to meet its 

debt services obligations, and in all cases, Developer agrees that such payments shall be 
made in order to ensure the District’s timely payments of the debt services obligations on 

the Series 2024 Bonds. The District shall record all True-Up Payments in its 
Improvement Lien book. 

(iii). The foregoing is based on the District's understanding with Developer that 

the maximum debt per developable acre within the Developer Lands is $85,752.37. If the 
strict application of the true-up methodology to any Reallocation for any plat pursuant to 

this section would result in assessments collected in excess of the District's total debt 
service obligation for the Series 2024 Bonds, the District agrees to take appropriate action 

by resolution to equitably reallocate the assessments. 

4, ADDITIONAL ENFORCEMENT METHOD. This Agreement is intended to 

be an additional method of enforcement of Developer’s obligation to make any True-Up 
Payments, if required, as set forth in the Assessment Resolutions. This Agreement does not alter 

or affect the liens created by the Assessment Resolutions. 

5. ASSIGNMENT. 

a. Agreement Runs with Land — This Agreement shall constitute a covenant 

running with title to the Developer Lands, binding upon Developer and its 
successors and assigns as to Developer Lands or portions thereof, and any 

transferee of any portion of Developer Lands as set forth in this Section, except as 
permitted by subsection b., below, or subject to the conditions set forth in 

subsection c., below. 

b. Exceptions — Developer shall not transfer any portion of Developer Lands to any 
third party without complying with the terms of subsection c. below, other than: 

(1) Platted and fully-developed lots to homebuilders restricted from re- 

platting; 

True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1059 

(ii) — Platted and fully-developed lots to end users; and 

(iii) Portions of Developer Lands that are exempt from assessments to 
the County, the District, a homeowners’ association, or other 

governmental agencies. 

Any transfer of any portion of Developer Lands pursuant to subsections (1), (ii) or 

(111) listed above shall constitute an automatic release of such portion of 

Developer Lands from the scope and effect of this Agreement, provided however 
that any True-Up Payment owing is paid prior to such transfer. 

c. Transfer Conditions — Developer shall not transfer any portion of Developer 
Lands to any third party, except as permitted by subsection b. above, without 

satisfying the following condition (“Transfer Condition”): satisfying any True- 
Up Payment that results from any true-up determinations made by the District 

incident to such transfer. Any transfer that is consummated pursuant to this 
Section shall operate as a release of Developer from its obligations under this 

Agreement as to such portion of Developer Lands only arising from and after the 
date of such transfer and satisfaction of the Transfer Condition including 

payment of any True-Up Payments due, and the transferee, which by recording or 
causing to be recorded in the Public Records of the County, the deed transferring 

such portion to the transferee shall be deemed to assume Developer’s obligations 
in accordance herewith shall be deemed the “Developer” from and after such 
transfer for all purposes as to such portion of Developer Lands so transferred. 
Regardless of whether the conditions of this subsection are met, any transferee, 

other than those specified in subsection b., above, shall take title subject to the 

terms of this Agreement. 

6. DEFAULT. A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other 

to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of 
damages and/or specific performance, but excluding consequential, incidental, special or 

punitive damages. 

7. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS. In the event that either party is required to 
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 

proceedings. 

8. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 

District and the Developer. Additionally, this Agreement may not be materially amended 
without the prior written consent of the Trustee and the Bondholders owning a majority of the 
aggregate principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds then outstanding, which consent shall not 

be unreasonably withheld. 

True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1060 

9. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized 

by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Developer; both the District and the 
Developer have complied with all the requirements of law; and both the District and the 
Developer have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 

instrument. 

10. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 

Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 

postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 

A. If to the District: Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
Attn: District Manager 

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP 

107 West College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Attn: Wesley Haber 

B. If to the Developer: Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 

7807 Baymeadows Road East, Suite 205 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 

Attn: Graydon E. Miars 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 

only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 

place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non- 

business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. 
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Developer may deliver 

Notice on behalf of the District and the Developer, respectively. Any party or other person to 

whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change 

in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written 
notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 

11. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully 

between the District and the Developer as an arm’s length transaction. Both parties participated 
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a 

dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties are deemed 

to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 
interpreted or construed against either the District or the Developer. 

True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1061 

12. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the District and the Developer and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to 

or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the District and the Developer any right, remedy, or claim under or by 

reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 

provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 

the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Developer and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 

contrary, the Trustee for the Series 2024 Bonds, shall be a direct third party beneficiary of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall be entitled to cause the District to enforce the 
Developer’s obligations hereunder. In the event that the District does not promptly take 

Trustee’s written direction under this Agreement, or the District is otherwise in default under the 
Indenture, the Trustee shall have the right to enforce the District’s rights hereunder directly. The 

Trustee shall not be deemed to have assumed any obligations under this Agreement. 

13. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions 

contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida. Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this 
Agreement shall be in the County. 

14. PUBLIC RECORDS. The Developer understands and agrees that all documents 
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records and 

treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 

15. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 

portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 

unenforceable. 

16. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond 
any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by 

the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other law, and nothing in this 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim 

which would otherwise be barred by sovereign immunity or by other operation of law. 

17. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 

of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

18. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Signature and 

acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single 
copy of this document to physically form one document. 

19. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective on October 11, 2024. 

7 
True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1062 

WHEREFORE, the parties below execute the True-Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds). 

  

   

WITNESSES SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Gregg Kern, ce 

dot : (e2a 

  

  

Name: ViKAD EMO, VOWKvA_ 
Address: TH mendons eA E 
SPE Tacks OO ex Saale 

  

STATE OF FLQRIDA 
COUNTY OF | -at 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of &-pttysical presence or O 

online notarization, thit}t~day of October, 2024, by Gregg Kern, as Chairman of the Board of 

Supervisors of Six Mile Creek Community Development District, for and on behalf of the 
District. He [([&+~ is personally known to me or ([__] _ produced 

as identification. 
  

  

     

  

Print Nam | $a ma FB. ar Quo 

Notary Public. State of Florida 

  

   
     

  

en" Notary Public State of Florida 3 R Karine R . Sarsoe da Siva 4 : Zé My Commission HH 12096} ore Expires 05/t2/2025 
       

True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1063 

WHEREFORE, the parties below execute the True-Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds). 

WITNESSES SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT 
GROUP, LLC 

Name: Christopher J. Rusnak 

Title: Vice President 

  

  

  

  

COUNTY OF | \uare<— 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of & physical presence or 0 
online notarization, this 44-day of October, 2024, by Christopher J. Rusnak. as Vice President 
of Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, on its behalf. He | <~fis personally known to me or 

{__} produced as identification. 

STATE OF F ayn 

  

  

Exhibit A: Description of Developer Lands 
e" Notary Public State of Florida 
: Karine Rodrigues Santos da Siive 

3 My Commission HH 120261 
NS Y, Expires 05/12/2025 

  

+] 

fiue Up Agreement (Senus 7074 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1064 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPER LANDS 
(ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 4) 
  

  

WHISPER CREEK PHASE 13 
  

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 5 AND 6, AND A PORTION OF THE JOSE PAPY GRANT, SECTION 38, LYING IN 

TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

BEGIN AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF THE TRACT 6, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK 

PHASE 11 UNIT B, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 117, PAGES 29 THROUGH 35, INCLUSIVE OF SAID PUBLIC 

RECORDS, THENCE NORTH 88°37'17" EAST, 413.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 63°27'10" EAST, 1008.84 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 01°22'25" EAST, 2320.58 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°48'01" WEST, 1104.33 FEET; THENCE 

NORTH 03°24'47" WEST, 375.48 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 180.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 49.06 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 64°02'09" EAST, 48.90 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID 

CURVE; THENCE NORTH 71°50'36" EAST, 57.82 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18°09'24" WEST, 120.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 71°50'36" EAST, 6.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18°09'24" WEST, 203.99 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTH 71°50'36" WEST, 138.02 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE 

NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 53.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 24°10'17" WEST, 51.85 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 

CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 

THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1215.00 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 147.49 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 

NORTH 46°17'29" WEST, 147.40 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 

NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 

SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 285.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 87.63 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 

SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 51°37'21" WEST, 87.29 FEET, TO THE 

POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND 

AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 117.44 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 

SOUTH 85°55'31" WEST, 110.80 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 

52°16'54" WEST, 335.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 50.89 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 

CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 37°42'12" WEST, 50.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 

CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 

THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 61.95 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 

32°22'04" WEST, 61.68 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A 

RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 26.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 15°54'44" WEST, 26.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55°55'31" WEST, 

73.31 FEET; THENCE NORTH 34°04'29" WEST, 79.49 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 

10 
True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



BK: 6034 PG: 1065 

LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 

CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1170.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 232.91 FEET, 

SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 39°46'39" WEST, 232.53 

FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE NORTH 45°28'50" WEST, 87.37 FEET, TO 

THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID PLAT OF WHISPER 

CREEK PHASE 11 UNIT B; THENCE EASTERLY, NORTHEASTERLY, NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY, ALONG LAST 

SAID LINE, RUN THE FOLLOWING NINE (9) COURSES AND DISTANCES; COURSE NO. 1: EASTERLY, ALONG 

AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET, AN 

ARC DISTANCE OF 38.87 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 

NORTH 68°45'07" EAST, 37.36 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 

NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 2: NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 

CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 135.80 FEET, SAID 

ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 61°10'37" EAST, 132.98 FEET, 

TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; COURSE NO. 3: 

NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 50.89 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 66°51'37" EAST, 50.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID 

CURVE; COURSE NO. 4: NORTH 52°16'54" EAST, 426.96 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 

LEADING NORTHERLY; COURSE NO. 5: NORTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 

CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 79.07 FEET, SAID ARC 

BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 04°20'56" WEST, 66.81 FEET; 

COURSE NO. 6: NORTH 14°23'30" EAST, 131.19 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING EASTERLY; 

COURSE NO. 7: EASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY, 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 325.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 35.94 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 

CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 78°46'36" EAST, 35.93 FEET; COURSE NO. 8: NORTH 

08°03'18" EAST, 180.00 FEET; COURSE NO. 9: NORTH 32°38'02" EAST, 402.95 FEET, TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 67.52 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

1] 
True Up Agreement (Series 2024 Bonds)



Acknowledgement of Completion Agreement (Series 2024) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF THE CONTINUED EFFECTIVENESS OF THE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AND SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC REGARDING THE 

COMPLETION OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

THIS ACKNOWLEDGMENT is entered into this 11th day of October, 2024 by and between: 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in St. Johns County, Florida, and whose mailing address is 475 West Town 
Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District”); and 

Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
and a landowner in the District, whose address is 7807 Baymeadows Road East, 
Suite 205, Jacksonville, Florida 32256 (“Developer”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner and/or developer of certain lands located within the 
boundaries of the District (hereinafter the "Development"); and 

WHEREAS, the District is a special district which was established to plan, construct, 
install, acquire, finance, manage and operate public improvements and community facilities for 
lands including the Development; and 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the issuance of the District’s $7,315,000 Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016A (Assessment Area 2) and its $6,720,000 Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 
2016B (Assessment Area 2)  (collectively the “2016 Bonds”), the District and the Developer 
entered into that certain AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  AND SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC 
REGARDING THE COMPLETION OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS (the “Completion 
Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the District and Developer desire to acknowledge the continued effectiveness 
of the Completion Agreement in relation to the District’s $5,790,000 Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (Series 2024 Project Area) (the “2024 Bonds”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual understandings and covenants set 
forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the District and Developer agree as follows: 

Section 1.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are incorporated 
into and form a material part of this Acknowledgment. 



Acknowledgement of Completion Agreement (Series 2024) 

Section 2.  Developer and District hereby agree that the Completion Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect with respect to the issuance of the 2024 Bonds.  Specifically, and 
without limiting the effectiveness of any other terms of the Completion Agreement, the Developer 
and the District agree and acknowledge that the 2024 Bonds will provide only a portion of the 
funds necessary to complete the Improvements, as such term is defined in the Completion 
Agreement, and that, in the event that the cost of the Improvements is such that the construction 
funds available from the 2024 Bonds proceeds, and any debt subsequently issued by the District 
to fund the Improvements, is insufficient to complete the Improvements, which determination shall 
be in the sole and exclusive discretion of the District, the Developer hereby agrees to complete, 
cause to be completed, or provide funds to the District in an amount sufficient to allow the District 
to complete or cause to be completed, those portions of the Improvements which remain unfunded 
in accordance with the Completion Agreement.  The Developer and the District further agree and 
acknowledge that the term “Improvements” shall include the improvements described in that 
certain Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated May 
24, 2024.   

Section 3.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
when executed and delivered shall be an original, and such counterparts together shall constitute, 
but one and the same instrument.  Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached 
from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically form one 
document. 

[Signatures appear on following pages.] 





IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this acknowledgement the day and year 
first written above. 

Witness: 

WA 

Faxes rint Name of Witness) 

Acknowledgement of Completion Agreement (Series 2024) 

Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 

a Delaware limited liability company 

Bs fuk 
Name: Christopher J. Rusnak 
Title: Vice President



 

1 

RESERVE ACCOUNT RELEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS RESERVE ACCOUNT RELEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and 
entered into by and among SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company, whose mailing address is 7807 Baymeadows Road East, Suite 205, 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 (“Developer”) and SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located in the City of Orlando, Florida, whose address is 475 West 
Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
A.  District has issued numerous series of bonds (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of 

financing the public infrastructure improvements described in the Improvement Plan for the 
Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds dated December 1, 2006, as supplemented and amended in 
connection with the issuance of each series of the Bonds. 

 
B. The Bonds include, but are not limited to, the: 1) $7,020,000 Capital Improvement 

Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A); 2) $11,340,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 3, Phase 1); 3) $8,250,000 
Capital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Area 2, Phase 3B); 
4) $10,515,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (2023 Project Area); and 5) the 
$5,790,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 (2024 Project Area) (collectively 
the “Reserve Account Release Bonds”)    

 
C. The supplemental trust indentures for each of the Reserve Account Release Bonds 

include provisions that provide that, upon reaching certain conditions specified in each 
supplemental indenture, funds from the reserve accounts created for each of the Reserve Account 
Release Bonds are to be released to the construction accounts created for each bond issuance (the 
“Released Funds”).   

 
D. The estimated cost of the projects to be financed with the proceeds from each of the 

Reserve Account Release Bonds exceeded the available proceeds from each of the Reserve 
Account Release Bonds, which resulted in the Developer paying, either by providing the District 
with funds or directly contracting for the work, for the portions of the projects that were not funded 
with bond proceeds (the “Developer Completion Portions”). 

 
E. The Developer and the District acknowledge and agree that the Developer 

Completion Portions are part of the projects intended to be funded with the proceeds of the Reserve 
Account Release Bonds and, upon the release of the Released Funds, the District desires to pay the 
Developer for the Developer Completion Portions in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.    

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 



 

2 

 
 SECTION 2. DEVELOPER PAYMENT FOR DEVELOPER COMPLETION 
PORTIONS.  Upon the release of the Released Funds, the Developer shall be entitled to payment 
from the Released Funds for its Developer Completion Portions.  Prior to the payment for any 
Developer Completion Portions, the District shall be provided a certificate signed by the District 
Engineer certifying the amount that the Developer paid for Developer Completion Portions for any 
particular project identified for each of the Reserve Account Release Bonds.  Such payments shall 
be processed in accordance with the applicable supplemental trust indenture entered into in 
connection with each of the Reserve Account Release Bonds. 
 
 SECTION 3. NOTICE.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder 
(“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage prepaid, 
or telecopied to the parties at the addresses first provided herein, with a copy to District Counsel, 
Kutak Rock LLP, 107 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida, 32301. 
 
 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be made only by 
an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the parties hereto. 
 
 SECTION 5. AUTHORITY.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized 
by the appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the 
requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 6. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, 
by either party except upon the written consent of the other, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 
 SECTION 7. DEFAULT.  A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle 
the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be limited to, 
the right of damages, injunctive relief and specific performance and specifically including the 
ability of the District to enforce any and all payment obligations under this Agreement in the 
manner described in Section 2 above. No party shall be entitled to obtain consequential, punitive, 
speculative or other indirect damages hereunder. 
 
 SECTION 8. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or 
for the benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed 
or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than 
the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any 
provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and conditions 
herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and 
their respective representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 9.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 



 

3 

of Florida.  The parties agree that venue shall be in St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 10.  NEGOTIATION AT ARM’S LENGTH.  This Agreement has been 
negotiated fully between the parties as an arm's length transaction.  The parties participated fully 
in the preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of 
a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are each 
deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 
interpreted or construed against any party.  
 

SECTION 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  The Agreement shall take effect as of the date both 
parties execute this Agreement.  The enforcement provisions of this Agreement shall survive its 
termination, until all payment due pursuant to this Agreement is paid in full. 
 
 

[Signatures on following pages.] 
  



 

4 

 
Attest:      SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Gregg Kern, Chairperson 
      Date of execution: _____________________ 
 
 
 

 
WITNESSES: 
 
 
      
Witness Signature  
Printed Name:___________________ 

SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Christopher J. Rusnak, Vice President 
Date of execution: _______________ 

  
 



Instr #2024079572 BK: 6034 PG: 1035, Filed & Recorded: 10/14/2024 9:01 AM #Pgs:5 

Brandon J. Patty,Clerk of the Circuit Court and County Comptroller St. JohnsCounty FL Recording $44.00 

This space reserved for use by the Clerk of 

the Circuit Court 

This Instrument Prepared by 

and return to: 

Wesley S. Haber, Esq 

KUTAK ROCK LLP 

107 West College Avenue 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT’S 
NOTICE OF SERIES 2024 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

(ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 4) 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District (the "District") in accordance with Chapters 170, 190 and 197, 

Florida Statutes, adopted Resolution Numbers 2022-22, 2022-23, and 2023-02 (the 
“Resolutions”) providing for, levying and setting forth the terms of non-ad valorem special 

assessments constituting a governmental lien on real property within the boundaries of the 

District that are specially benefitted by the improvements described in the Improvement Plan for 

the Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds, dated December 1, 2006, as supplemented by that 

certain Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital Improvements dated May 25, 
2007, Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2014 Capital Improvements dated November 

12, 2014, Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2016 Capital Improvements dated April 12, 
2016, Supplemental Engineer’s Report for Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated October 27, 

2017, Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2020 Capital Improvements dated June 2, 2020, 
Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2021 Capital Improvements dated January 19, 2021, 

and the Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2021 AA2-3B & AA3-2 Capital Improvements 
dated September 10, 2021, Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2023 AA2-3C & AA3-3 
Capital Improvements dated June 5, 2023, and the Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 
2024 AA3-4 Capital Improvements dated May 24, 2024 (collectively, the “Engineer’s Report’). 

To finance a portion of the costs of the improvements described in the Engineer’s Report, the 
District issued Six Mile Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2024 (2024 Project Area) (the “Series 2024 Bonds’), which are secured by the 

non-ad valorem assessments levied by the Resolutions (collectively the “Series 2024 Special 

Assessments”). The legal description of the lands on which said Series 2024 Special 
Assessments are imposed is attached to this Notice as Exhibit A (“Lands”). As provided in the 

Resolutions, the Series 2024 Special Assessments do not apply to governmental properties 
dedicated by plat, including right-of-ways or common areas. Copies of the Engineer’s Report 

and the Resolutions may be obtained by contacting the District at: Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092, (904) 

940-5850. 

The Series 2024 Special Assessments provided for in the Resolutions were legally and 
validly determined and levied in accordance with all applicable requirements of Florida law, and 
the Series 2024 Special Assessments constitute and will at all relevant times in the future 
constitute, legal, valid, and binding first liens on the land against which assessed until paid, 

Notice of Assessments (Series 2024)



BK: 6034 PG: 1036 

coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, and municipal taxes, and superior in dignity to 
all other liens, titles, and claims. 

The District is a special purpose form of local government established pursuant to and 

governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 190.048, Florida Statutes, you 

are hereby notified tha: THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT MAY IMPOSE AND LEVY TAXES OR ASSESSMENTS, OR BOTH 

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS, ON THIS PROPERTY. THESE TAXES AND 

ASSESSMENTS PAY THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND 

MAINTENANCE COSTS OF CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

OF THE DISTRICT AND ARE SET ANNUALLY BY THE GOVERNING 

BOARD OF THE DISTRICT. THESE TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ARE IN 

ADDITION TO COUNTY AND OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL TAXES 

AND ASSESSMENTS AND ALL OTHER TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 

PROVIDED FOR BY LAW. 

Notice of Assessments (Series 2024)



BK: 6034 PG: 1037 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Notice has been executed to effective as the 11" day of 

October, 2024, and recorded in the Official Records of St. Johns County, Florida. 

    

WITNESSES SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

hte fea Gregg Ker, Chairman 

Address: etuwehoket A aL 

\etantBakedt f. 22766 

ak! (Wyba/ 
ame: Jo? -. Corne irn 

Zeamne: af T¥u7 Baymeadows KA F SteZO5 
Jacksonville, PL 82256 

  

  

  

  

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF Duval   

The foregoing instrument ,was acknowledged before me by means of A sic presence or O 
online notarization, this b day of October, 2024, by Gregg Kern, as Chairman of the Board of 

SUDerVisOrs Six a Creek Community Development District, for and on behalf of the 
District. is personally known to me or {[__] _ produced 

as identification.   

6 Ptidhag 
A Name: ZL EE. Carne tisua 

N otary Public, State of Florida 

  

  

ee ae ee eee 

Exhibit A: Legal Description . Notary Public State of Florida 

| oy 

  

Joe E Cornelison 
My Commission 

HH 2310 
Exp. zipoieo2s 

oe eee’   

Notice of Assessments (Series 2024)



BK: 6034 PG: 1038 

Exhibit A 

Series 2024 Assessment Area 

(Assessment Area 3, Phase 4) 

WHISPER CREEK PHASE 13 
  

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 5 AND 6, AND A PORTION OF THE JOSE PAPY GRANT, SECTION 38, LYING IN 

TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH RANGE 28 EAST, ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

BEGIN AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF THE TRACT 6, AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF WHISPER CREEK 

PHASE 11 UNIT B, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 117, PAGES 29 THROUGH 35, INCLUSIVE OF SAID PUBLIC 

RECORDS, THENCE NORTH 88°37'17" EAST, 413.93 FEET; THENCE NORTH 63°27'10" EAST, 1008.84 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 01°22'25" EAST, 2320.58 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°48'01" WEST, 1104.33 FEET; THENCE 

NORTH 03°24'47" WEST, 375.48 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHEASTERLY; THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 180.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 49.06 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 64°02'09" EAST, 48.90 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID 

CURVE; THENCE NORTH 71°50'36" EAST, 57.82 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18°09'24" WEST, 120.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 71°50'36" EAST, 6.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18°09'24" WEST, 203.99 FEET; THENCE 

SOUTH 71°50'36" WEST, 138.02 FEET, TO THE ARC OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE 

NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 60.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 53.61 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 24°10'17" WEST, 51.85 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 

CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 

THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1215.00 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 147.49 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 

NORTH 46°17'29" WEST, 147.40 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING 

NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE 

SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 285.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 87.63 FEET, SAID ARC BEING 

SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 51°37'21" WEST, 87.29 FEET, TO THE 

POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING WESTERLY; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG AND 

AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 117.44 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 

SOUTH 85°55'31" WEST, 110.80 FEET, TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY OF SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 

52°16'54" WEST, 335.33 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 100.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 50.89 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A 

CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 37°42'12" WEST, 50.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE 

CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND 

THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET, AN ARC 

DISTANCE OF 61.95 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 

32°22'04" WEST, 61.68 FEET, TO THE POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE LEADING SOUTHERLY; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A 

RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 26.91 FEET, SAID ARC BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD 

BEARING AND DISTANCE OF SOUTH 15°54'44" WEST, 26.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55°55'31" WEST, 

73.31 FEET; THENCE NORTH 34°04'29" WEST, 79.49 FEET, TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 

LEADING NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG AND AROUND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 

Notice of Assessments (Series 2024)



(PZ0Z SA1I9S) syUaUIssassy JO 990N 

"SS31 YO JYOW ‘SAYDV 75°29 ONINIVLNOD 

‘ONINNID3G 
JO LNIOd JHL OL ‘1444 S6°ZOP ‘ISVJ .Z0,8€.7E HLYON °6 “ON SSYUNOD ‘L444 00'O8T ‘LSVI ..8T,€0.80 

HLYON ‘8 ON 4SHNOD ‘1444 €6°SE ‘1S ..9€,97.82 HLNOS 4O JONVLSIC GNV ONIYV3d GHOHD 

V Ad GIGNILANS ONIAG OYV IVS ‘L444 V6'SE JO JONVLSIC DYV NV ‘L444 00'SZE 4O SNIAVY V ONIAVH 
‘ATHAHLYON JAVINOD ‘JANN AIVS 4O JUV JHL GNNOYV GNV ONOTV ‘ATHILSW4 °Z "ON SSUNOD 

‘ATHALSVA ONIGVAT JAUND V 4O OUV FHL OL ‘14544 6GT'TET ‘LSV4 .0€,€Z.7T HLYON :9 ON 4SHNOOD 
‘1444 T8799 ‘1S4M ,.9S,0Z.70 HLYON JO JONVLSIC GNV ONINV3E GYOHD V Ad G3CNI3LENS ONIFA 

DYV IVS ‘1934 Z0°6Z 4O JONVISIC DYV NV ‘1934 00'07 4O SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATY3SLSAM JAVINOD 
‘JAUND AIVS 40 DYV JHL GNNOYV GNV ONOTV ‘ATYAHLYON 'S “ON SSYNOD ‘ATYJHLYON ONIGVT 

JAUND V JO AMNLVAYND JO LNIOd JHL OL ‘L444 96'97Zr ‘1SV4 .7S5,9T.7S HLYON *7 ON 4SYNOD ‘JAUND 
GIVS 40 ADNJONVL JO LNIOd JH1L OL ‘1334 vE'0S ‘1SV4 .ZE,TS.99 HLYON 4O JONVILSIC GNV ONINV4E 
GYOHD V Ad GIGNILENS ONISE DYV IVS ‘L444 68°0S JO JONV_LSIG DYV NV ‘L444 OO'00T 40 SNidvy V 
ONIAVH ‘ATYILSAMHLYON JAVINOD ‘JANND IVS JO DYV JHL GNNOUV GNV ONO ‘ATYSLSWAIHLYON 

“EON JSYHNOO ‘ATYALSVAHLYON ONIGVST SAYND V JO JMNLVAYND ASHIATY JO LNIOd SHL OL 

‘1944 86°ZET ‘1SV3 .ZE,0T.T9 HLYON 40 JONVILSIC GNV ONIYVId GYOHD V Ad G30N3LENS ONIAG JUV 
IVS ‘1444 08°SET JO JONVLSIC DYV NV ‘L444 00°Z6T JO SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATHSLSVIHLNOS JAVINOD 

JAUND AIVS 40 DYV JHL GNNOYV GNV ONOTY ‘ATHSLSWIHLYON °Z “ON SSHNOD ‘ATHALSVSH LYON 

ONIGV3T JANN) V JO JYNLVAYND JSYFAIY JO LNIOd FHL OL ‘1944 9E°ZE ‘1SVI .Z0,S7.89 HLYON 
JO JONVLSIC GNV ONINV3d GYOHD V Ad G3CNI3LENS ONIAP OYV IVS ‘1934 28°8E JO JONVLSIC JUV 
NV ‘1334 00°0t 40 SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATYIHLYON JAVINOD ‘JANI IVS 4O DYV JHL GNNOYV GNV 

ONO ‘ATHALSV4 ‘T ON SSYNOOD ‘SIONVLSIC GNV SASHNOD (6) JNIN ONIMOTIO4J JHL NOY ‘ANI CIVS 

ISV1 ONO ‘ATHSLSV3 ONV ATYIHLYON ‘ATYIISWIHLYON ‘ATYSLSV3 JONSHL “dA LINN TT 3SVHd 14494D 
Y3AdSIHM 4O LV1d GIVS 40 JNIT ATYSLSWIHLNOS FHL ONV ATHSLSV3 ONIGV3T JANND V JO DYV FHL 
OL ‘1944 LEB ‘ISAM ,0S,82.S7 HLYON JONSHL ‘JAYND AIVS 4O ADNJONVL JO LNIOd JHL OL ‘1334 

€9°ZET ‘ISAM u6E,97.6€ HLYON 4O JONVLSIC GNV ONIYV39 GYOHD V Ad GIGNILENS ONIFG DY AIVS 
‘144 T6°ZEZ AO JONVISIC JUV NV ‘1444 OO'OZTT 40 SNIGVY V ONIAVH ‘ATHSLSAMHLNOS JAVINOD 

6£0T -DOd F£09 “Ma



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



COMMUNICATION REPORT

SITE#:

The following landscape maintenance services were performed on your property today.

If you have any questions about your service please call us at: 904-292-0716

TURF LANDSCAPE BEDS FERTILIZATION PEST CONTROL

Mowing Pruning Turf Turf Trees

Edging Hedging Trees insects insects

curbs Handpull weeds Shrubs weeds disease

beds Trees Annuals disease

Weedeating pruning Shrubs Fire ants

Blow Palms insects Weed beds

pruning disease spray 
 

IRRIGATION PLANTING CLEANUP OTHER SERVICES PERFORMED

Inspect Annuals Trash Ornamental cutbacks

Adjust Shrubs Leaves & Interior Gardens

Repair Mulch debris Annual beds weeded

COMMENTS, AREAS WHICH REQUIRE SPECIAL ATTENTION OR WORK:

Service provided by: Received by:

This week while on site we mowed around the amenities and fields around the big lake behind the club house. We were unable

to mow the rest of the common grounds due to rain and standing water. We edge curves around the field, line trimmed

Trailmark 520

to spray for weeds along trailmark drive but unable to compelete due to rain. We also made an attempt to mow the trails but 

a lot of areas were under water. Mowed lakes #14, 15, 17, 27, 28, 25, 26 and 24. 

and blow. Trimmed Viburnums inside the pool area, trimmed the parking lot and tennis court. Shaved back Spartinas away

mow the power lines and trails. We are also going to be mowing lakes # 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,9,12,13,16,18,19,20,21,22,23 and 29.

Back Creek, spraying for weeds on the berm, trailmark drive starting at split up and work our way to the new construction area.

from sidewalks in front of the club house. Hand pull weeds from Liriope beds at the entrance up to the club house. Attempted

Next week we will be mowing throughout the property, edging sidewalks, line trimming, blowing, trimming lorapets along 

DATE: 9/13/2024LOCATION:    

German Martinez Jr.

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns. Thank you



COMMUNICATION REPORT

SITE#:

The following landscape maintenance services were performed on your property today.

If you have any questions about your service please call us at: 904-292-0716

TURF LANDSCAPE BEDS FERTILIZATION PEST CONTROL

Mowing Pruning Turf Turf Trees

Edging Hedging Trees insects insects

curbs Handpull weeds Shrubs weeds disease

beds Trees Annuals disease

Weedeating pruning Shrubs Fire ants

Blow Palms insects Weed beds

pruning disease spray 
 

IRRIGATION PLANTING CLEANUP OTHER SERVICES PERFORMED

Inspect Annuals Trash Ornamental cutbacks

Adjust Shrubs Leaves & Interior Gardens

Repair Mulch debris Annual beds weeded

COMMENTS, AREAS WHICH REQUIRE SPECIAL ATTENTION OR WORK:

Service provided by: Received by:

DATE: 9/27/2024LOCATION:    

German Martinez Jr.

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns. Thank you

15, 16,17, 18, 19, 20. We're also going to start cutting back Ornamental Grasses starting at the entrance. 

Next week we will be mowing as needed, edging sidewalks, line trimming, blowing, mowing lakes #1,2,4,5,6,7,8,9,12,13,14,

We were unable to mow the rest of the property due to Hurricane Helene. After the storm has passed we removed debris

around the club house and trailmark drive. 

This week while on site we mowed, edge sidewalk around the fields, curves along trailmark drive, line trimmed and blow. 

Sprayed for weed at the parking lot, Sprayed Spartina Bed along trailmark Drive starting at Back Creek up to the lift station. 

Trailmark 520



 / 1 7

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: Six Mile CDD Trailmark

General Information

Customer Focus Areas
Clubhouse- focal areas(weeds and debris), Complete site, Entrance appearance

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Friday, Sep 27, 2024

Monday, Dec 30, 2024

Alex Boyer 

Steve McAvoy 



 / 2 7

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Kayak parking area and
path to launch are in
need of blowing off and
minor debris removal

Oak Grove areas have
several large and small
debris in need of
removing. These areas
will be cleaned up during
today’s storm cleanup

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4



 / 3 7

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

5 6

7 8

5

6

7

8



 / 4 7

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional storm debris
pics along road

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

9 10

11 12

9

10

11

12



 / 5 7

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

13 14

15 16

13

14

15

16



 / 6 7

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

Additional Storm debris
pics

17 18

19 20

17

18

19

20



 / 7 7

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Additional Storm debris
pics

21

21



 / 1 3

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: Six Mile CDD Trailmark

General Information

Customer Focus Areas
Hurricane clean up

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Friday, Oct 11, 2024

Friday, Jan 10, 2025

Alex Boyer 

Steve McAvoy 



 / 2 3

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Back Creek-There are
several downed trees at
the Oak Grove located at
end of Back Creek along
with smaller debris that
will need to be removed.
We will be able to mow
around debris until
removed

Additional Oak Grove
pics

Additional Oak Grove
pics

Additional Oak Grove
pics

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4



 / 3 3

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Additional oak Grove
pics

Additional oak Grove
pics

5 6

5

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

 
 

AQUATIC INSPECTION / TREATMENT REPORT 
 

COMMUNTIY NAME: ____________________________________________                              
 

APPLICATOR:                   DATE:____________________                   
 

WEED TREATMENT – SERVICE PERFORMED 
 

POND 

NUMBER 

ALGAE GRASS UNDER 

WATER 

FLOATING/TERRSTRIAL PRODUCTS USED / AMOUNT 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

COMMENTS:                              
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
     

 
 

Trailmark/Six Mile

Devon 09/20/2024

1-10 X Grass Mix

16-27 X Grass Mix

11-15 X X Grass Mix/ Algacide/Terrstrial

X X Grass Mix/ Algacide/Terrstrial28-36

All ponds treated for shoreline grasses. Ponds 11-15, & 28-36 was treated for algae.

Follow-up for algae may be needed in 14 days.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AND SITEX AQUATICS FOR THE PROVISION OF AQUATIC 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
(TRAILMARK) 

   
 This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 10th day of 
September, 2024, by and between: 
 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located 
in St. Johns County, Florida and whose mailing address is 475 West Town Place, 
Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the “District”); and 
 
Sitex Aquatics, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, whose address is Post 
Office Box 917, Parish, Florida 34219 (the “Contractor”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District was established to plan, construct, install, acquire, finance, manage, 
and operate public improvements and community facilities pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide aquatic 
maintenance services for thirty-seven (37) ponds located within the boundaries of the District and 
as set forth on the map attached hereto as Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to serve 
as an aquatic maintenance contractor and provide such services to the District. 

 
WHEREAS, the parties agree that this Agreement replaces and supersedes in their entirety 

the Management Agreement between the District and Contractor dated September 26, 2016, and 
both amendments, dated April 28, 2023 and June 3, 2024, respectively, thereto.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 2. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE. 
 

A. The Contractor shall provide the specific aquatic maintenance services as shown in 
Exhibit A, attached and incorporated herein (the “Services”) within the thirty-seven 
(37) ponds within the District as identified in Exhibit B, attached and incorporated 
herein. 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



2 
 

 
B. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which its 

duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District and in 
accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall use industry best practices and 
procedures when carrying out the Services including the Florida Friendly green 
industry standards of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection. Any 
additional compensation for additional services shall be paid only as negotiated 
between the parties and upon the written authorization of the District.   

 
1. At no time shall the Contractor utilize any products, compounds, or materials 

that contain copper in any form in any of the water bodies within the project 
area unless such products, compounds, or materials are specifically approved 
for usage in water bodies by both the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
and the State of Florida.  Usage of such products, compounds, or materials must 
also be in compliance with applicable St. Johns River Water Management 
District (“SJRWMD”) rules and any and all SJRWMD permits issued for the 
stormwater system within the District. 
 

2. Contractor shall ensure that employees who work with registered and restricted-
use herbicides are certified as to qualifications for handling and applying 
material safely and correctly in accordance with the Florida Pesticide Law 
administered by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.  
Due to the presence of wetlands, such employees shall possess a Florida 
Aquatic Pesticide License and other applicable certifications.  The Contractor 
shall also be familiar with the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
Chapter 68F-20: Aquatic Plant Management Permits.  Prior to the utilization of 
herbicides on site, the Contractor will furnish to the District, copies of all 
required licenses and applicable permits for treatment and/or removal of aquatic 
plants in waters of the State.  The Contractor shall at all times abide by each 
herbicide label. 

 
C. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to this 

Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations affecting 
the provision of the Services. 

 
D. The Contractor shall report directly to the District’s Designee who shall be the District 

Manager. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its 
residents and landowners from damage and shall follow and be responsible for the 
Services set forth in Exhibit A.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from 
Contractor’s activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours. 

 
 SECTION 3. COMPENSATION; TERM.  
 

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement and Exhibit A, the 
District shall pay Contractor an amount not to exceed Four Thousand Two Hundred 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



3 
 

Twenty Dollars ($4,220.00) per month, which amount includes all tools, labor, and 
materials necessary to complete the Services, for an annual amount not-to-exceed Fifty 
Thousand Six Hundred Forty Dollars ($50,640.00). The term of this Agreement shall 
be from October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2025, and shall automatically renew 
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

A. If the District should desire additional work or services not provided in Exhibit A, the 
Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or 
services.  Upon successful negotiations, the parties shall agree in writing to a work 
order, addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement as set forth in Section 4 
herein.  

 
B. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the 

Contractor that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and 
require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be 
submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, 
and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of 
said indebtedness.  Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition 
precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory 
to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the District, 
has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the 
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s 
Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll 
deductions from the wages of employees. 

 
C. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices.  

Further, the Contractor agrees to render an invoice to the District, in writing, which 
shall be delivered or mailed to the District by the fifth (5th) day of the next succeeding 
month.  This invoice is due and payable within forty-five (45) days of receipt by the 
District, or in accordance with Florida’s Prompt Payment Act, whichever is sooner.  
The invoice shall include such supporting information as the District may reasonably 
require the Contractor to provide. 

 
 SECTION 4. CHANGE ORDERS. Contractor understands that the Services may be 
reduced, enlarged or otherwise modified in scope.  If any additional Services are proposed beyond 
those identified in this Agreement, Contractor shall perform them but only after receiving a written 
change order from the District.  Contractor shall cooperate with and assist the District in preparing 
and determining the scope of any change order.  In the event the service represents a unit price set 
forth in this Agreement, Contractor’s compensation shall be adjusted for the added or deducted 
services proposed by the change order in accordance with the unit prices established in the 
Agreement.  In the event the service is not represented by a lump sum or unit price set forth in this 
Agreement, Contractor’s compensation shall be adjusted for the added or deducted services 
proposed by the change order as reasonably determined by the District in conference with the 
Contractor. 
 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



4 
 

 SECTION 5. INSURANCE.  Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance 
during the performance of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than 
the following:  
  
 Workers Compensation    statutory 
 
 General Liability       
   Bodily Injury (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
   Property Damage (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
 
 Automobile Liability (if applicable)    
   Bodily Injury and Property Damage   $1,000,000 
  
 Pollution Liability     $1,000,000 
 
 Herbicide/Pesticide Applicators Coverage  $1,000,000 
 

Contractor shall provide the District with a certificate naming the District, its officers, 
agents and employees as an additional insured.  At no time shall Contractor be without insurance 
in the above amounts.  No policy may be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at 
least thirty (30) days written notice to the District.  An insurance certificate evidencing compliance 
with this section shall be sent to the District prior to the commencement of any performance under 
this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood and agreed that at all times 
the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of the District. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of employer 
and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, subcontractors 
or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The parties acknowledge that Contractor 
is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and pay all of 
Contractor’s employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of District and at all 
times entirely under Contractor’s supervision, direction and control.  

 
In particular, District will not: i) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s 

payments; ii) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor’s behalf; 
iii) Withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) Make disability insurance 
contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) Obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of 
Contractor. 

 
SECTION 7.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS.  The Contractor 

shall keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, 
rules, regulations, or ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five 
(5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or 
an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



5 
 

subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action 
of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to 
terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements 
applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within 
five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a 
violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to 
be effective upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 
or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific 
performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement 
against any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the 
District’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.  
 
 SECTION 9. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either party is required 
to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees and costs for trial, 
alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 10. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
District and the Contractor. 
 
 SECTION 11. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District 
and the Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 
instrument. 
 
 SECTION 12. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
      475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
      St. Augustine, Florida 32092  
      Attn: District Manager 
       
  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 
 B. If to Contractor:  Sitex Aquatics, LLC 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



6 
 

      P.O. Box 917 
      Parish, Florida 34219 
      Attn: Joseph T. Craig 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent 
by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 
 SECTION 13. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the District and the Contractor as an arm’s length transaction.  Both parties participated 
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel.  In the case of a 
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties are deemed 
to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 
interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 
 
 SECTION 14. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to 
or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other. 
 
 SECTION 16. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida.  Venue shall be in St. Johns County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION.   
 

A. Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors shall defend, hold harmless and 
indemnify the District and its supervisors, officers, staff, employees, representatives 
and agents against any claims, damages, liabilities, losses and costs, including, but not 
limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the acts or omissions of 
Contractor, and other persons employed or utilized by Contractor in the performance 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



7 
 

of this Agreement or the Services performed hereunder.   
 

B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, paralegal fees 
and expert witness fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings) as ordered. 

 
SECTION 18.  LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 

shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory 
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other 
statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose 
of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity 
or by operation of law. 
 
 SECTION 19. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by providing thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the District; 
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure 
under this Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement 
immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District 
shall provide thirty (30) days written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination 
of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services rendered up until 
the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off sets the District may 
have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination.   
 
 SECTION 20. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 
inventions, reports, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of the District when developed 
and shall be considered work for hire. 
 
 SECTION 21. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.  Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement 
may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the 
District is the District Manager (“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to 
the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by 
the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the 
District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  
reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 
the contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to 
the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to 
the District, at no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



8 
 

maintain and meet all applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida 
laws.  When such public records are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any 
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is 
compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 475 WEST TOWN 
PLACE, SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092; (904) 
940-5850; JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM 
 

 SECTION 22. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 

SECTION 23. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable 
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida 
Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland 
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. 
The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief 
that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida Statutes.  By entering into 
this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with 
the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately 
preceding the date of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 24. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES. The Contractor 

agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general 
in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section and to incorporate 
in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 25. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. To the extent that any of the terms of this Agreement are determined to conflict with 
any terms included in the attached Proposal, the terms of this Agreement are agreed and deemed 
to be controlling. 
 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



9 
 

SECTION 27. STATEMENT REGARDING CHAPTER 287 REQUIREMENTS. Contractor 
acknowledges that, in addition to all Laws and Regulations that apply to this Agreement, the 
following provisions of Florida law (“Public Integrity Laws”) apply to this Agreement:  
  

A. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, titled Public entity crime; denial or revocation 
of the right to transact business with public entities; 
 
B. Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, titled Discrimination; denial or revocation of 
the right to transact business with public entities; 
 
C. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, titled Prohibition against contracting with 
scrutinized companies; 
 
D. Section 287.137, Florida Statutes, titled Antitrust violations; denial or revocation 
of the right to transact business with public entities; denial of economic benefits; and 

 
E. Section 287.138, Florida Statutes, titled Contracting with entities of foreign 
countries of concern prohibited. 

  
Contractor acknowledges that the Public Integrity Laws prohibit entities that meet certain criteria 
from bidding on or entering into or renewing a contract with governmental entities, including with 
the District (“Prohibited Criteria”). 
 
Contractor acknowledges that the District may terminate this Agreement if the Contractor is found 
to have met the Prohibited Criteria or violated the Public Integrity Laws. 
 
Contractor certifies that in entering into this Agreement, neither it nor any of its officers, directors, 
executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the 
management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity, meets any of the Prohibited Criteria, and 
in the event such status changes, Contractor shall immediately notify the District. By entering into 
this Agreement, Contractor agrees that any renewal or extension of this Contract shall be deemed 
a recertification of such status. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



10 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day 

and year first written above. 
 
 
 
      SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY  
ATTEST:      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
      
 
__________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness     Chair, Board of Supervisors  
 
         

SITEX AQUATICS, LLC  
 
 
__________________________  ___________________________________ 
Witness     By: ______________________________ 
      Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
Exhibit A: Proposal/Scope of Services  
Exhibit B:  Map of Ponds 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�

Joe Craig
Joseph T Craig

Joe Craig
President



11 
 

Exhibit A 
Proposal/Scope of Services 

 

 
 

 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



  

Exhibit B 
Map of Ponds 

 
 

�����������������������
����	���	�������������
����
�
�



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. 































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
SIX MILE CREEK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, September 11, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance 

World Golf Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Gregg Kern Chairman 
  Wendy Hartley Vice Chairperson 
  Darren Glynn  Supervisor  
  Michelle Sutton  Supervisor 
  Steve Pasiuk   Supervisor 
   
 
 Also, present were: 
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber by phone District Counsel 
 Zach Brecht by phone District Engineer 
 Alex Boyer  Operations Manager 
 Skip Reasonover RealManage  
 Stephanie Douglas OnPlace 
 Megan Maldonado OnPlace 
 Samantha Keim OnPlace 
 Matthew Reid First Service, Reverie HOA 
 Amanda Arnold  OnPlace  
 Sarah Sweeting GMS 
 Kevin Andersen DreamFinders, Reverie 
 Steve McAvoy  Brightview 
  
 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the September 11, 2024 Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District’s regular Board of Supervisor’s Meeting. 

 

  



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

2 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Five Supervisors were in attendance 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments  

  Mr. Oliver noted this is the audience’s opportunity to comment on items specific to today’s 

agenda. There will also be an audience comment period later in the meeting on any items pertaining 

to the CDD. He asked for any comments regarding today’s agenda. There being no comments, the 

next item followed.  

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Brightview Report  

 Mr. McAvoy presented the landscape report.  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Sitex Report  

 This item was tabled until later in the meeting.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Engineer Items 

1. Ratification of Change Order Nos. 7 – 8 – Trailmark East Parcel 13 
2. Ratification of Change Order Nos. 19 20 – Trailmark Phase 12 
3. Ratification of Requisitions No. 310A – 312A (2016A Capital Improvement 

Bonds) 
4. Ratification of Requisitions No. 83 – 84 (2023 Bond Series (AA2 Phase 3C)  
5. Ratification of Requisition No. 72A – 74A (2023 Bond Series (AA3 Phase 3)  

B. Ratification of Agreements/Proposals 
1. Onsight Industries, LLC for Signage 
2. SES Environnemental Resource Solutions, LLC for Mitigation 
3. Brightview Landscape for TrailMark Drive Enhancements 
4. Jani-King for Additional Janitorial Services (Reverie) 
5. All About Water for Window Cleaning & Pressure Washing Services (Reverie) 

C. Approval of Minutes of the August 14, 2024 Meeting 
D.  Balance Sheet as of August 31, 2024 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the 

Period Ending August 31, 2024 
E.  Assessment Receipt Schedule 
F.  Check Register 



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

3 

 Mr. Oliver noted the Board can approve this all in a single motion or if they want to discuss 

any of the items, they can do that also. Ms. Sutton asked about the landscape enhancement 

proposal, where it is located and the purpose of doing it. Mr. Kern noted this is along TrailMark 

Drive heading South where the Richmond and DreamFinders model homes were. There is a project 

to add some storm drainage under TrailMark Drive and landscape improvements for that storm 

outfall crossing is the completion of that project. This would be under capital projects. She 

questioned Jani-King and a maintenance person at Reverie. Mr. Andersen noted there is a building 

supervisor onsite but he is not janitorial. This is an amendment to an existing agreement to increase 

service from one day to three days.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the Consent Agenda, was approved 5-0. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Discussion of CDD Goals & Objectives 

 Mr. Oliver stated Florida legislature passed legislation requiring Special Districts to adopt 

goals & objectives and measure themselves at the end of 2025 against those goals & objectives. 

He provided a copy of the draft goals and objectives to the Board.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Sutton, with all in favor, 
the CDD Goals & Objectives, were approved 5-0. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Approval of Scope of Services for 
Landscape RFP (TrailMark)  

 Mr. Oliver noted right now Brightview has this contract and it has been extended through 

the end of this calendar year. They are starting to go through the RFP process. Mr. Boyer noted 

the most up to date information for the scope is in the agenda package. There are somethings 

coming down the pipeline but is not something to be factored in today. This should include what 

Tree Amigos and Brightview were doing at the same time. It does add a few small pocket park 

areas. There are no recommendations for changes to the scope of work as described in the current 

agreement. Mr. Kern asked if there is an exhibit of the areas that they would be procuring services 

for. Mr. Boyer noted the current map should cover everything except for a small section of Phase 

11 and most of Phase 12. Sarah sent out a site plan generated by Brightview. They will get an 

updated map in the next day or two. Mr. Haber recommended designating one Board member to 



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

4 

have official decision-making authority on what the final version looks like. Mr. Kern noted they 

can approve the scope of work in substantial form subject to final review, pending the RFP form 

and the site plan to be attached as an exhibit, also looking to designate a Supervisor for final 

approval in between meetings.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Glynn, with all in favor, 
the Scope of Services for Landscape RFP (TrailMark) Subject to 
Final Review, Pending RFP Form & Site Plan Attached as Exhibit, 
Designating Mr. Kern for Final Approval in Between Meetings, was 
approved in substantial form 5-0. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Public Hearing to Adopt Rates, Resolution 
2024-09 

 Mr. Haber stated the District is required to charge for usage of its amenity facility and to 

do so by holding a rate hearing. The District is required to publish two notices in the local 

newspaper advertising the public hearing. The adoption of this resolution would result in the 

adoption of a new rate for obtaining tickets ranging from $5 to $35 per person understanding in 

the event they have a ticket that exceeds $35 those amounts would be paid directly to vendors that 

are there and not to the District. Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to open the public hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Sutton with all in favor, 
Opening the Public Hearing, was approved 5-0. 

  

  Mr. Oliver noted the public hearing is open so this is the publics opportunity to make 

comment on this item which allows for the charging of rates for special events.  

• Robin – Is this for both Reverie and TrailMark. Mr. Oliver noted yes. She asked how will 

the people at Reverie pay? The logistics will be worked out for what is most convenient. 

Mr. Oliver asked for any other public comments, hearing no comments. He asked for a 

motion to close the public hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Sutton, with all in favor, 
Closing the Public Hearing, was approved 5-0. 

  

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to adopt Resolution 2024-09. 



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

5 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Glynn, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
Resolution 2024-09 Adopting Special Event Rates, was approved 5-
0. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Consideration of Proposals 
A. Sitex for Carp and Plantings 

 Mr. Oliver presented the proposal for installation of plants along pond #32 on Weathered 

Edge in the amount of $6,000. Appropriate planting time would be Spring. Sitex will help in the 

permitting efforts of the carp. Table until further discussion with residents along Weathered Edge 

pond. 

 

B. Keen on Klean Solutions for Additional Trash Removal & Additional Services 
(TrailMark) 

 Mr. Oliver presented a proposal from Keen on Klean Solutions at a monthly cost of $240 

to maintain the 5 new trash cans plus 3 new trash cans. There will be per visit fees when staff 

decides they are needed for steam cleaning of bathroom tiles and sanitation at $1,725 per visit as 

needed in addition to the monthly fee. The other one is for waxing of wood floors in the welcome 

center including moving furniture would be $1,850.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Sutton, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the Proposal with Keen on Klean for Additional Trash 
Removal and Sanitation of Bathroom Tile, was approved 5-0. 

 

C. M&G Holiday Lighting for Holiday Lights  
 Mr. Oliver noted the budget for this item is $12,000 and this proposal comes in at $12,044. 

Mr. Boyer noted this is the annual cost to hang lights, take them down and store them after the 

season. Anything that is broken or doesn’t work gets replaced. The Board asked for additional 

proposals to be presented at the February meeting.  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Sutton, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the Proposal from M&G Lighting for Holiday Lights, was 
approved 5-0. 

 

  



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

6 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Other Business 
 Mr. Haber noted there is an area that the developer is trying to plan a recreational pond. In 

order to develop the pond, there is a parcel of property owned by an adjoining property owner that 

is needed to develop the site. In negotiating with the property owner, they have asked for access 

to the pond. Counsel for the developer with Wes’s input and review prepared a license agreement. 

It provides that the property owner would have the right to use only the recreational pond to the 

same extent that another home in the community would have. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Hartley, seconded by Mr. Glynn, with all in 
favor, Amending the Agenda to Add the Approval of the License 
Agreement Regarding use of the Recreational Pond by a Non-
Resident, was approved.  

 

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to approve the license agreement.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Glynn, seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in 
favor, the License Agreement regarding the Recreational Pond, was 
approved.  

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  

 Mr. Haber had nothing additional to report. 

 

B. Engineer  
 Mr. Brecht had nothing additional to report. 

 

C. Manager  
 Mr. Oliver had nothing additional to report.  

 

D. TrailMark Reports 
1. Operations (Evergreen) – Report  

 Mr. Reasonover provided an update on recent maintenance projects.  

 

  



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

7 

2. Lifestyles (OnPlace)  
a. Report 

 Ms. Douglas updated the Board on recent and upcoming events.  

 

b. Updated on Kayak Rentals 
 Ms. Douglas provided the Board a kayak update. A log of kayak reservations from June to 

September is in the agenda package. The kayak reservation app will be up and running after 

September 17th. She updated the Board on a nonresident “sister of a resident” who allowed 50-60 

people in for a party. Mr. Glynn suggested if there is no proof of residency, they can be asked to 

leave and if they don’t then call the nonemergency sheriff.  

 

E. Reverie Reports (First Service) 
1. DFH Updates 

a. Gate Extension 
b. Kitchen Pass Through 
c. Lifestyle Vendor Switch 

 Mr. Andersen provided an update on the gate extensions, kitchen pass through, and 

introduced OnPlace to take over Lifestyles management, previously engaged by FirstService. He 

noted FirstService will be the HOA property management company.  

 Ms. Arnold with OnPlace spoke about transitioning and onboarding Reverie to their 

programming.  

 

2. Operations 
3. Lifestyles 

 Matt Reid introduced himself as the new community manager at Reverie HOA. He 

provided an update on recent maintenance projects and activities.  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor’s Requests  
 Mr. Pasiuk spoke about the primary responsibilities of the Supervisors to increase 

understanding. Researched the property next to the old Master Craft property that is unsightly 

owned by Drees. 

 Ms. Sutton asked the status of the traffic light. There was another bad accident. Mr. Kern 

noted they are still waiting on the county review and a construction permit is needed.  

 



September 11, 2024   Six Mile Creek CDD 

8 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments  
• Cindy Lee (95 Split Oak) – When trying to use the amenity center and fobs not working, 

is there someone on the Board to call when a resident can’t get in. Ms. Douglas noted there 

is a customer care number. She noted a ripped screen at the Camp House. Mr. Boyer is 

waiting to hear back from screening vendor. She questioned the license agreement with the 

nonresident using the recreational pond and precautions/safety. Mr. Kern asked her to come 

and look at the map after the meeting. She asked him to announce the number of 

applications received for new HOA position.  

• Resident – Wanted to make sure unfinished sidewalks on Candle Stick, Quick Silver, and 

Farm Field are finished before the developer gets out. Mr. Kern will follow up on 

sidewalks.  

• Jerry Walters (Reverie) Spoke in light of arrest of the stalker on Mirabella, asked the Board 

to consider a license plate reader on TrailMark Drive. Ms. Sutton noted there is a camera 

that captures plate information when entering.  

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Next Scheduled Meeting – October 9, 2024 
at 2:00 p.m. 

 The next regular meeting will be October 9, 2024, at 2:00 p.m.  

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment  

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to adjourn.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Ms. Sutton, with all in favor, 
the meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

___________________________  _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
September	30,	2024



1-2

3-4

5-6

7-8

9-10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Debt Service Series 2020 Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2021 AA3 PH1 Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2021 AA3 PH2 Income Statement

Reverie (East Parcel) Month to Month

Debt Service Series 2017A Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2017B Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2007 Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2015 Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2016A Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2016B Income Statement

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund Income Statement

General Fund Month to Month

Reverie Fund (East Parcel) Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2021 AA2 PH3B Income Statement

Debt Service Series 2023 AA2 PH3C/AA3 PH3 Income Statement

Developer Contributions Schedule

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Capital Reserve Income Statement



Table of Contents

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

Capital Projects Series 2017B Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2020 Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2021 AA3 PH1 Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2021 AA3 PH2 Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2007 Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2016A Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2016B Income Statement

Series 2021 AA2 PH3B Construction Schedule

Series 2023 AA2 PH3C Construction Schedule

Series 2023 AA3 PH3 Construction Schedule

Series 2017A-NW Parcel Construction Schedule

Series 2017B Construction Schedule

Series 2020 Construction Schedule

Series 2021 AA3 PH1 Construction Schedule

Series 2021 AA3 PH2 Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2021 AA2 PH3B Income Statement

Capital Projects Series 2023 AA2 PH3C/AA3 PH3 Income Statement

Series 2016A Construction Schedule

Series 2016B Construction Schedule

Series 2017A Construction Schedule

Capital Projects Series 2017A Income Statement



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

	Balance	Sheet
September	30,	2024

General	 Reverie Capital	Reserve Debt	Service Capital	Projects Totals
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets:
Cash	-	Truist	Bank 123,745$		 		 87,841$		 		 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 211,586$	 			
Cash	-	Truist	Bank	-	Special	Events 1,677$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,677$	 		
Assessment	Receivable 24,878$		 		 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 24,878$	 		
Investments:
Series	2007
Reserve -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 27,734$	 		 -$		 	 27,734$	 		
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 2,376$	 			 2,376$	 		

Series	2015
Reserve	 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 157,781$	 		 -$	 	 157,781$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 123,793$	 		 -$	 	 123,793$	 			
Prepayment -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 73$	 		 -$	 	 73$	 			

Series	2016A
Reserve	 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 436,000$	 		 -$	 	 436,000$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 466,640$	 		 -$	 	 466,640$	 			
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 8$	 		 8$		 		

Series	2016B
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 169$	 			 -$	 	 169$	 		
Prepayment -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 6$	 		 -$	 	 6$	 		
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 4$	 		 4$		 		

Series	2017A
Reserve	 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 694,338$	 		 -$	 	 694,338$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 572,253$	 		 -$	 	 572,253$	 			
Interest -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 21$	 		 -$	 	 21$	 			
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 0$	 		 0$		 		
Construction	-	NW -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 985$	 			 985$		 		

Series	2017B
Reserve	 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		
Interest -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		
Prepayment -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		

Series	2020
Reserve -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 413,044$	 		 -$	 	 413,044$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 357,476$	 		 -$	 	 357,476$	 			
Interest -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 133$	 			 -$	 	 133$	 		
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 212$	 			 212$		 		

Series	2021	AA3	PH1
Reserve -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 566,450$	 		 -$	 	 566,450$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 265,000$	 		 -$	 	 265,000$	 			
Interest -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 0$	 		 -$	 	 0$	 		
Prepayment -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 655$	 			 -$	 	 655$	 		
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 204$	 			 204$		 		

Series	2021	AA3	PH2
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 151,093$	 		 -$	 	 151,093$	 			
Prepayment -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 72,653$	 		 -$	 	 72,653$	 		
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 567$	 			 567$		 		

Series	2021	AA2	PH3B
Reserve -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 460,875$	 		 -$	 	 460,875$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 204,187$	 		 -$	 	 204,187$	 			
Construction -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 5$	 		 5$		 		

Series	2023
Reserve	 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 727,675$	 		 -$	 	 727,675$	 			
Revenue -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 288,614$	 		 -$	 	 288,614$	 			
Interest -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 153$	 			 -$	 	 153$	 		
Capitalized	Interest -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 10,187$	 		 -$	 	 10,187$	 		
Construction	AA2	PH3C -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 569$	 			 569$		 		
Construction	AA3	PH3 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 5$	 		 5$		 		

Investment	-	Custody 216,892$		 		 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 216,892$	 			
Due	From	Capital	Projects -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 956$	 			 956$		 		
Due	From	Developer -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,829,409$	 		 1,829,409$		 			
Due	From	General	Fund -$		 	 86$	 		 -$		 	 -$	 	 5,153$	 			 5,239$		 		
Prepaid	Expenses 87,082$		 		 43,613$	 		 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 130,695$	 			

Total	Assets 454,274$		 		 131,540$		 		 -$		 	 5,997,003$							 1,840,452$		 		 8,423,268$		 			

1



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

	Balance	Sheet
September	30,	2024

	 General	 Reverie Capital	Reserve Debt	Service Capital	Projects Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 100,202$															 56,016$													 -$																				 -$																				 1,829,409$								 1,985,626$													
Contracts	Payable -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 1,102,495$								 1,102,495$													
Due	to	Capital	Projects	2016A/B 4,153$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 4,153$																				
Due	to	Capital	Projects	2017 1,000$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 956$																			 1,956$																				
Due	to	Reverie 86$																									 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 86$																										
Deferred	Revenue 177$																							 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 177$																							

Total	Liabilities 105,618$														 56,016$													 -$																			 -$																			 2,932,860$							 3,094,494$												

Fund	Balances: 	 	 	 	 	
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2007 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 27,734$													 -$																				 27,734$																		
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2015 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 281,647$											 -$																				 281,647$																
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2016A -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 902,640$											 -$																				 902,640$																
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2016B -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 175$																			 -$																				 175$																							
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2017A -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 1,266,611$								 -$																				 1,266,611$													
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2017B -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																								
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2020 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 770,653$											 -$																				 770,653$																
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2021	PH1 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 832,105$											 -$																				 832,105$																
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2021	PH2 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 223,745$											 -$																				 223,745$																
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2021	PH3B -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 665,062$											 -$																				 665,062$																
Assigned	For	Debt	Service	2023 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 1,026,629$								 -$																				 1,026,629$													
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2007 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 2,376$																 2,376$																				
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2016A -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 3,205$																 3,205$																				
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2016B -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 4$																							 4$																												
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2017A -$																								 -$																				 	 -$																				 2,941$																 2,941$																				
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2017B -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 -$																								
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2020 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 212$																			 212$																							
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2021	PH1 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 204$																			 204$																							
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2021	PH2 -$																								 -$																				 	 -$																				 (229,943)$									 (229,943)$														
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2021	PH3B -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 (498,587)$									 (498,587)$														
Assigned	For	Capital	Reserves	2023 -$																								 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 (372,820)$									 (372,820)$														
Unassigned 348,656$															 75,523$													 -$																				 -$																				 -$																				 424,180$																

Total	Fund	Balances 348,656$														 75,523$													 -$																			 5,997,003$							 (1,092,408)$					 5,328,775$												

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Equity	 454,274$															 131,540$											 -$																				 5,997,003$								 1,840,452$								 8,423,268$													

2



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 1,456,200$																	 1,456,200$																	 1,468,968$																	 12,768$																								
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Platted 67,500$																								 67,500$																								 50,625$																								 (16,875)$																						
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Unplatted 50,758$																								 50,758$																								 46,911$																								 (3,847)$																									
Special	Assessments	-	Lot	Closings -$																																							 -$																																							 32,627$																								 32,627$																								
Developer	Contributions -$																																							 -$																																							 120,902$																					 120,902$																					
Interest 10,855$																								 10,855$																								 30,808$																								 19,953$																								
Miscellaneous	Income -$																																							 -$																																							 2,780$																											 2,780$																											
Rental	Income -$																																							 -$																																							 4,675$																											 4,675$																											
Special	Events	Income -$																																							 -$																																							 90$																																		 90$																																		
Transfer	In -$																																							 -$																																							 7,728$																											 7,728$																											

Total		Revenues 1,585,313$																	 1,585,313$																	 1,766,115$																	 180,802$																					

Expenditures:

Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 12,000$																								 12,000$																								 9,400$																											 2,600$																											
FICA	Expense 918$																															 918$																															 719$																															 199$																															
Engineering	Fees 18,000$																								 18,000$																								 40,422$																								 (22,422)$																						
Attorney 30,000$																								 30,000$																								 26,176$																								 3,824$																											
Dissemination	-	DTS -$																																							 -$																																							 1,500$																											 (1,500)$																									
Dissemination	 12,000$																								 12,000$																								 13,300$																								 (1,300)$																									
Arbitrage 4,800$																											 4,800$																											 4,200$																											 600$																															
Annual	Audit 14,000$																								 14,000$																								 14,000$																								 -$																																							
Trustee	Fees 30,170$																								 30,170$																								 32,541$																								 (2,371)$																									
Assessment	Administration 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 -$																																							
Management	Fees 40,280$																								 40,280$																								 40,280$																								 (0)$																																			
Information	Technology 1,800$																											 1,800$																											 1,800$																											 -$																																							
Website	Maintenance 1,200$																											 1,200$																											 1,200$																											 -$																																							
Telephone 750$																															 	 750$																															 	 836$																															 (86)$																																
Postage 1,750$																											 1,750$																											 2,040$																											 (290)$																													
Printing	&	Binding 1,750$																											 1,750$																											 3,713$																											 (1,963)$																									
Insurance 7,610$																											 7,610$																											 7,160$																											 450$																															
Legal	Advertising 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 1,462$																											 8,538$																											
Meeting	Room	Rental 6,750$																											 6,750$																											 14,291$																								 (7,541)$																									
Bank	Fees 1,000$																											 1,000$																											 2,163$																											 (1,163)$																									
Other	Current	Charges 300$																															 300$																															 141$																															 159$																															
Office	Supplies 200$																															 200$																															 509$																															 (309)$																													
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175$																															 175$																															 175$																															 -$																																							

	
Total	Administrative: 205,453$																					 205,453$																					 228,027$																					 (22,574)$																						

Operations	&	Maintenance

Property	Insurance 41,558$																								 41,558$																								 42,809$																								 (1,251)$																									
Electric 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 8,505$																											 1,495$																											
Streetlights 75,000$																								 75,000$																								 84,737$																								 (9,737)$																									
Water	&	Sewer 8,000$																											 8,000$																											 -$																																							 8,000$																											
Landscape	Contract 320,463$																					 320,463$																					 368,936$																					 (48,473)$																						
Landscape	-	Mulch	&	Plant	Installation 120,000$																					 120,000$																					 104,227$																					 15,774$																								
Landscape	Contingency 80,000$																								 80,000$																								 139,092$																					 (59,092)$																						
Irrigation	Maintenance 75,000$																								 75,000$																								 76,669$																								 (1,669)$																									
Lake	Contract 50,000$																								 50,000$																								 37,182$																								 12,818$																								
Lake	Contingency 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 1,143$																											 8,857$																											
Security	Patrol 55,000$																								 55,000$																								 49,611$																								 5,389$																											
Routine	Road	Cleaning 8,000$																											 8,000$																											 -$																																							 8,000$																											
Repairs	&	Maintenance 15,000$																								 15,000$																								 11,149$																								 3,851$																											
Dog	Park	-	General	Maintenance 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 2,708$																											 2,292$																											
Kayak	Launch	-	General	Maintenance 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 683$																															 4,317$																											

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance: 878,021$																					 878,021$																					 927,449$																					 (49,428)$																						

3



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Amenity	Center

Utilities
					Telephone,	Internet	&	Cable 12,500$																								 12,500$																								 4,869$																											 7,631$																											
					Electric 20,000$																								 20,000$																								 19,769$																								 231$																															
					Water/Irrigation 45,000$																								 45,000$																								 29,811$																								 15,189$																								
					Gas 2,000$																											 2,000$																											 732$																															 1,268$																											
					Trash	Removal 7,500$																											 7,500$																											 7,951$																											 (451)$																													
Security
					Security	Alarm	Monitoring 1,100$																											 1,100$																											 719$																															 381$																															
					Access	Cards 1,000$																											 1,000$																											 -$																																							 1,000$																											
Management	Contracts
					Facility	Management 43,680$																								 43,680$																								 96,072$																								 (52,392)$																						
					Amenity	Staff	-	Rentals 2,000$																											 2,000$																											 3,019$																											 (1,019)$																									
					Field	Management/Administrative 59,104$																								 59,104$																								 67,981$																								 (8,877)$																									
					Pool	Attendants -$																																							 -$																																							 4,422$																											 (4,422)$																									
					Pool	Maintenance 40,000$																								 40,000$																								 21,150$																								 18,850$																								
					Pool	Repairs 30,000$																								 30,000$																								 29,548$																								 452$																															
					Janitorial	Services 30,120$																								 30,120$																								 34,054$																								 (3,934)$																									
					Janitorial	Supplies 15,000$																								 15,000$																								 111$																															 14,889$																								
					Fitness	Equipment	Lease 34,312$																								 34,312$																								 34,312$																								 (0)$																																			
					Pest	Control 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 4,955$																											 45$																																		
Pool	Permits 1,000$																											 1,000$																											 925$																															 75$																																		
Repairs	&	Maintenance 40,000$																								 40,000$																								 108,873$																					 (68,873)$																						
New	Capital	Projects -$																																							 -$																																							 35,726$																								 (35,726)$																						
Special	Events 20,000$																								 20,000$																								 21,024$																								 (1,024)$																									
Holiday	Decorations 12,000$																								 12,000$																								 -$																																							 12,000$																								
Fitness	Center	Repairs/Supplies 3,500$																											 3,500$																											 1,710$																											 1,790$																											
Operating	Supplies 20,000$																								 20,000$																								 5,654$																											 14,346$																								
ASCAP/BMI	Licenses 1,700$																											 1,700$																											 4,659$																											 (2,959)$																									
Contingency 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 8,203$																											 (3,203)$																									

Total	Amenity	Center: 451,516$																					 451,516$																					 546,249$																					 (94,733)$																						

Reserves

Capital	Reserve	Transfer 50,323$																								 50,323$																								 -$																																							 50,323$																								

Total	Reserves 50,323$																								 50,323$																								 -$																																							 50,323$																								

Total	Expenditures 1,585,313$																	 1,585,313$																	 1,701,724$																	 (116,411)$																			

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																							 64,391$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																							 284,266$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																							 348,656$																					

4



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Month	to	Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Total
Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$																						 109,040$											 497,046$											 613,718$											 132,061$											 41,424$														 2,045$																	 -$																						 73,324$														 310$																					 -$																						 -$																						 1,468,968$												
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Platted 16,875$														 -$																						 -$																						 16,875$														 -$																						 -$																						 16,875$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 50,625$																			
Special	Assessments	-	Direct	Unplatted 13,190$														 -$																						 -$																						 13,190$														 -$																						 -$																						 20,531$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 46,911$																			
Special	Assessments	-	Lot	Closings -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 6,750$																	 -$																						 -$																						 15,975$														 -$																						 2,475$																	 6,300$																	 -$																						 1,127$																	 32,627$																			
Developer	Contributions -$																						 120,902$											 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 120,902$																
Interest 1,474$																	 557$																					 286$																					 1,198$																	 4,128$																	 4,577$																	 4,264$																	 3,816$																	 3,259$																	 2,774$																	 2,522$																	 1,953$																	 30,808$																			
Miscellaneous	Income -$																						 250$																					 -$																						 200$																					 -$																						 -$																						 225$																					 1,505$																	 250$																					 -$																						 350$																					 -$																						 2,780$																						
Rental	Income -$																						 450$																					 -$																						 150$																					 -$																						 -$																						 300$																					 1,200$																	 1,075$																	 -$																						 1,500$																	 -$																						 4,675$																						
Special	Events	Income -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 90$																								 (0)$																									 90$																													
Transfer	In -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 7,728$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 7,728$																						

Total		Revenues 31,539$											 231,199$							 497,332$							 652,081$							 143,917$							 46,001$											 60,215$											 6,521$														 80,383$											 9,384$														 4,462$														 3,081$														 1,766,115$							

Expenditures:

Administrative:
Supervisor	Fees 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 600$																					 -$																						 800$																					 -$																						 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 800$																					 1,200$																	 1,000$																	 9,400$																						
FICA	Expense 77$																								 77$																								 46$																								 -$																						 61$																								 -$																						 77$																								 77$																								 77$																								 61$																								 92$																								 77$																								 719$																										
Engineering	Fees 7,759$																	 2,506$																	 2,928$																	 1,376$																	 2,700$																	 4,313$																	 3,897$																	 2,473$																	 4,108$																	 3,188$																	 2,325$																	 2,851$																	 40,422$																			
Attorney 5,331$																	 2,204$																	 1,401$																	 2,843$																	 3,011$																	 2,434$																	 2,791$																	 2,172$																	 2,088$																	 1,903$																	 -$																						 -$																						 26,176$																			
Dissemination	-	DTS -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,500$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,500$																						
Dissemination	 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 1,500$																	 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 1,700$																	 1,000$																	 1,100$																	 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 1,000$																	 13,300$																			
Arbitrage -$																						 1,200$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 600$																					 1,200$																	 600$																					 -$																						 600$																					 -$																						 4,200$																						
Annual	Audit -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 14,000$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 14,000$																			
Trustee	Fees -$																						 -$																						 7,273$																	 4,310$																	 -$																						 4,310$																	 -$																						 8,081$																	 -$																						 8,566$																	 -$																						 -$																						 32,541$																			
Assessment	Administration 10,000$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 10,000$																			
Management	Fees 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 3,357$																	 40,280$																			
Information	Technology 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 150$																					 1,800$																						
Website	Maintenance 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 100$																					 1,200$																						
Telephone 26$																								 -$																						 111$																					 50$																								 37$																								 -$																						 104$																					 110$																					 142$																					 51$																								 94$																								 110$																					 836$																										
Postage 241$																					 428$																					 1$																											 4$																											 11$																								 9$																											 139$																					 16$																								 48$																								 1,007$																	 136$																					 -$																						 2,040$																						
Printing	&	Binding 40$																								 39$																								 70$																								 93$																								 18$																								 201$																					 180$																					 434$																					 162$																					 1,515$																	 477$																					 485$																					 3,713$																						
Insurance 7,160$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 7,160$																						
Legal	Advertising 86$																								 63$																								 -$																						 -$																						 63$																								 -$																						 63$																								 133$																					 244$																					 468$																					 278$																					 66$																								 1,462$																						
Meeting	Room	Rental 1,672$																	 1,672$																	 1,605$																	 450$																					 -$																						 1,605$																	 533$																					 1,688$																	 1,688$																	 1,688$																	 1,688$																	 -$																						 14,291$																			
Bank	Fees 22$																								 176$																					 176$																					 295$																					 175$																					 232$																					 152$																					 269$																					 179$																					 144$																					 162$																					 180$																					 2,163$																						
Other	Current	Charges -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 88$																								 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 53$																								 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 141$																										
Office	Supplies 95$																								 1$																											 7$																											 20$																								 0$																											 5$																											 1$																											 5$																											 1$																											 360$																					 4$																											 11$																								 509$																										
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 175$																										

Total	Administrative: 38,288$											 13,972$											 18,824$											 14,548$											 11,570$											 19,215$											 28,842$											 22,264$											 15,097$											 24,358$											 11,662$											 9,386$														 228,027$												

Operations	&	Maintenance
Property	Insurance 38,329$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 4,480$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 42,809$																			
Electric 914$																					 523$																					 634$																					 355$																					 502$																					 504$																					 583$																					 930$																					 -$																						 1,372$																	 1,036$																	 1,151$																	 8,505$																						
Streetlights 6,667$																	 7,372$																	 7,364$																	 8,155$																	 7,833$																	 7,757$																	 7,721$																	 7,721$																	 -$																						 7,721$																	 8,209$																	 8,219$																	 84,737$																			
Water	&	Sewer -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Landscape	Contract 27,994$														 27,994$														 27,994$														 29,463$														 29,463$														 29,463$														 29,463$														 35,825$														 35,825$														 28,228$														 34,466$														 32,759$														 368,936$																
Landscape	-	Mulch	&	Plant	Installation -$																						 2,088$																	 -$																						 -$																						 100,051$											 2,088$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 104,227$																
Landscape	Contingency 15,858$														 -$																						 654$																					 10,384$														 5,177$																	 28,612$														 56,921$														 6,599$																	 5,059$																	 1,477$																	 6,528$																	 1,821$																	 139,092$																
Irrigation	Maintenance 8,374$																	 -$																						 3,797$																	 -$																						 26,530$														 5,421$																	 -$																						 17,470$														 5,657$																	 7,672$																	 -$																						 1,748$																	 76,669$																			
Lake	Contract 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 2,930$																	 3,235$																	 3,235$																	 4,037$																	 3,235$																	 37,182$																			
Lake	Contingency -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,143$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,143$																						
Security	Patrol 6,350$																	 6,020$																	 5,451$																	 4,425$																	 5,429$																	 5,284$																	 2,182$																	 2,974$																	 3,162$																	 2,743$																	 3,436$																	 2,156$																	 49,611$																			
Routine	Road	Cleaning -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Repairs	&	Maintenance 1,469$																	 -$																						 4,165$																	 -$																						 4,084$																	 50$																								 -$																						 1,093$																	 135$																					 153$																					 -$																						 -$																						 11,149$																			
Dog	Park	-	General	Maintenance 242$																					 206$																					 206$																					 310$																					 272$																					 236$																					 206$																					 206$																					 206$																					 206$																					 206$																					 206$																					 2,708$																						
Kayak	Launch	-	General	Maintenance -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 23$																								 -$																						 -$																						 284$																					 -$																						 375$																					 683$																										

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance: 109,126$							 47,133$											 53,195$											 56,021$											 182,271$							 86,825$											 100,028$							 76,891$											 53,279$											 53,092$											 57,919$											 51,669$											 927,449$												

5



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Month	to	Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Total

Amenity	Center
Utilities
					Telephone,	Internet	&	Cable 266$																					 417$																					 442$																					 407$																					 407$																					 407$																					 407$																					 405$																					 428$																					 427$																					 428$																					 428$																					 4,869$																						
					Electric 1,205$																	 1,315$																	 1,859$																	 2,171$																	 2,009$																	 1,787$																	 1,699$																	 1,915$																	 26$																								 1,888$																	 1,887$																	 2,008$																	 19,769$																			
					Water/Irrigation 918$																					 964$																					 1,517$																	 3,605$																	 2,881$																	 2,863$																	 3,434$																	 3,406$																	 3,739$																	 2,364$																	 2,530$																	 1,590$																	 29,811$																			
					Gas 31$																								 31$																								 41$																								 -$																						 69$																								 -$																						 210$																					 70$																								 60$																								 58$																								 72$																								 90$																								 732$																										
					Trash	Removal 812$																					 539$																					 1,078$																	 135$																					 673$																					 673$																					 673$																					 673$																					 673$																					 673$																					 673$																					 673$																					 7,951$																						
Security
					Security	Alarm	Monitoring 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 335$																					 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 35$																								 719$																										
					Access	Cards -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Management	Contracts
					Facility	Management 6,000$																	 6,000$																	 9,004$																	 10,321$														 12,441$														 9,500$																	 609$																					 9,500$																	 11,037$														 11,189$														 9,500$																	 971$																					 96,072$																			
					Amenity	Staff	-	Rentals -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 124$																					 2,000$																	 83$																								 124$																					 276$																					 248$																					 165$																					 -$																						 3,019$																						
					Field	Management/Administrative 5,848$																	 6,969$																	 9,093$																	 6,620$																	 5,445$																	 4,554$																	 6,336$																	 4,670$																	 4,653$																	 4,628$																	 2,714$																	 6,452$																	 67,981$																			
					Pool	Attendants -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 4,422$																	 -$																						 -$																						 4,422$																						
					Pool	Maintenance 1,575$																	 1,575$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 1,800$																	 21,150$																			
					Pool	Repairs 1,370$																	 749$																					 173$																					 1,086$																	 3,010$																	 1,441$																	 1,329$																	 4,221$																	 5,747$																	 3,772$																	 4,778$																	 1,872$																	 29,548$																			
					Janitorial	Services 3,403$																	 2,510$																	 2,510$																	 2,510$																	 2,510$																	 2,656$																	 2,705$																	 2,705$																	 2,705$																	 2,705$																	 2,705$																	 4,430$																	 34,054$																			
					Janitorial	Supplies -$																						 -$																						 111$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 111$																										
					Fitness	Equipment	Lease 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 2,859$																	 34,312$																			
					Pest	Control 275$																					 275$																					 545$																					 995$																					 275$																					 545$																					 275$																					 297$																					 587$																					 297$																					 297$																					 297$																					 4,955$																						
Pool	Permits -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 225$																					 -$																						 -$																						 700$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 925$																										
Repairs	&	Maintenance 39,992$														 2,431$																	 16,093$														 4,220$																	 2,190$																	 99$																								 18,569$														 1,196$																	 1,058$																	 1,594$																	 9,248$																	 12,185$														 108,873$																
New	Capital	Projects 14,138$														 21,588$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 35,726$																			
Special	Events 1,854$																	 6,782$																	 2,968$																	 596$																					 2,433$																	 1,952$																	 2,863$																	 214$																					 202$																					 379$																					 302$																					 479$																					 21,024$																			
Holiday	Decorations -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Fitness	Center	Repairs/Supplies 185$																					 -$																						 -$																						 551$																					 3$																											 196$																					 363$																					 122$																					 115$																					 175$																					 -$																						 -$																						 1,710$																						
Operating	Supplies 43$																								 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 4,387$																	 462$																					 241$																					 -$																						 290$																					 231$																					 -$																						 -$																						 5,654$																						
ASCAP/BMI	Licenses 3,699$																	 150$																					 150$																					 -$																						 75$																								 75$																								 75$																								 -$																						 -$																						 435$																					 -$																						 -$																						 4,659$																						
Contingency 236$																					 61$																								 90$																								 66$																								 110$																					 170$																					 75$																								 79$																								 96$																								 43$																								 6,982$																	 195$																					 8,203$																						

Total	Amenity	Center: 84,742$											 55,248$											 50,368$											 37,975$											 43,737$											 34,298$											 44,941$											 34,290$											 37,086$											 40,222$											 46,976$											 36,364$											 546,249$												

Reserves
Capital	Reserves	Transfer -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																										

Total	Reserves: -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																					 -$																										

Total	Expenditures 232,157$							 116,353$							 122,387$							 108,544$							 237,578$							 140,339$							 173,812$							 133,445$							 105,462$							 117,672$							 116,556$							 97,419$											 1,701,724$							

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) (200,617)$									 114,847$											 374,945$											 543,536$											 (93,661)$												 (94,338)$												 (113,597)$									 (126,924)$									 (25,078)$												 (108,288)$									 (112,094)$									 (94,339)$												 64,391$																			

6



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Reverie	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 403,920$																					 403,920$																					 407,466$																					 3,546$																											
Developer	Contributions 543,734$																					 543,734$																					 325,000$																					 (218,734)$																			
Interest 500$																															 500$																															 85$																																		 (415)$																													
Miscellaneous	Income -$																																							 -$																																							 1,300$																											 1,300$																											

Total		Revenues 948,154$																					 948,154$																					 733,850$																					 (214,304)$																			

Expenditures:

Administrative:
Other	Current	Charges 600$																															 600$																															 1,505$																											 (905)$																													

Total	Administrative: 600$																															 600$																															 1,505$																											 (905)$																													

Operations	&	Maintenance
Property	Insurance 72,517$																								 72,517$																								 62,847$																								 9,670$																											
Electric 8,000$																											 8,000$																											 10,021$																								 (2,021)$																									
Landscape	Contract 150,000$																					 150,000$																					 101,730$																					 48,270$																								
Landscape	-	Mulch	&	Plant	Installation 20,000$																								 20,000$																								 30,625$																								 (10,625)$																						
Landscape	Contingency 45,000$																								 45,000$																								 9,324$																											 35,676$																								
Lake	Contract 12,000$																								 12,000$																								 11,661$																								 339$																															
Lake	Contingency 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 200$																															 4,800$																											
Grounds	Maintenance 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 1,113$																											 8,887$																											
Pump	Repairs 3,000$																											 3,000$																											 -$																																							 3,000$																											
Electric	Streetlights/Services 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 -$																																							 10,000$																								
Irrigation	Maintenance 15,000$																								 15,000$																								 6,902$																											 8,098$																											
Field	Operations	Management 9,600$																											 9,600$																											 38,723$																								 (29,123)$																						
Routine	Road	Cleaning 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 -$																																							 5,000$																											
Dog	Park	-	General	Maintenance 3,000$																											 3,000$																											 5,784$																											 (2,784)$																									
Pavilion	Park	Maintenance 7,000$																											 7,000$																											 1,224$																											 5,776$																											
Entry	Gate(s)	Access	Control	&	Monitoring 40,000$																								 40,000$																								 43,425$																								 (3,425)$																									
Contingency 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 -$																																							 10,000$																								

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance: 425,116$																					 425,116$																					 323,579$																					 101,537$																					

7



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Reverie	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Amenity	Center
Utilities
					Telephone,	Internet	&	Cable 9,500$																											 9,500$																											 4,667$																											 4,833$																											
					Electric 12,000$																								 12,000$																								 17,570$																								 (5,570)$																									
					Water/Irrigation 32,000$																								 32,000$																								 20,312$																								 11,688$																								
					Gas 30,000$																								 30,000$																								 31,764$																								 (1,764)$																									
					Trash	Removal 7,500$																											 7,500$																											 3,538$																											 3,962$																											
Security
					Security	Alarm	Monitoring 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 1,750$																											 3,250$																											
					Access	Cards 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 -$																																							 5,000$																											
Management	Contracts
					Facility	Management 12,000$																								 12,000$																								 -$																																							 12,000$																								
					Pool	Attendants 16,000$																								 16,000$																								 -$																																							 16,000$																								
					Field	Management/Administrative 117,936$																					 117,936$																					 99,132$																								 18,804$																								
					Pool	Maintenance 45,000$																								 45,000$																								 24,975$																								 20,025$																								
					Pool	Repairs 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 17,171$																								 (12,171)$																						
					Janitorial	Services 18,500$																								 18,500$																								 8,201$																											 10,299$																								
					Janitorial	Supplies 5,000$																											 5,000$																											 3,974$																											 1,026$																											
				Facility	Repairs/Maintenance 25,000$																								 25,000$																								 28,504$																								 (3,504)$																									
				Fitness	Equipment	Lease 27,347$																								 27,347$																								 27,347$																								 0$																																					
				Landscape	Contract 32,845$																								 32,845$																								 32,845$																								 0$																																					
				Landscape	Seasonal 22,860$																								 22,860$																								 37,563$																								 (14,703)$																						
				Landscape	Contingency 8,000$																											 8,000$																											 1,820$																											 6,180$																											
					Pest	Control 2,200$																											 2,200$																											 2,572$																											 (372)$																													
Pool	Permits 1,000$																											 1,000$																											 925$																															 75$																																		
Repairs	&	Maintenance 17,500$																								 17,500$																								 17,107$																								 393$																															
Special	Events 35,000$																								 35,000$																								 32,432$																								 2,568$																											
Holiday	Decorations 20,000$																								 20,000$																								 6,462$																											 13,538$																								
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 250$																															 250$																															 236$																															 14$																																		
Operating	Supplies 10,000$																								 10,000$																								 5,090$																											 4,910$																											
Capital	Outlay -$																																							 -$																																							 6,616$																											 (6,616)$																									

Total	Amenity	Center: 522,438$																					 522,438$																					 432,575$																					 89,863$																								

Total	Expenditures 948,154$																					 948,154$																					 757,659$																					 190,495$																					

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																							 (23,809)$																						

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																							 99,332$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																							 75,523$																								

8



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Month	to	Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Total
Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$																						 30,246$														 137,872$											 170,234$											 36,631$														 11,490$														 567$																					 -$																						 20,339$														 86$																								 -$																						 -$																						 407,466$																
Developer	Contributions -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 75,000$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 75,000$														 175,000$											 -$																						 325,000$																
Interest 85$																								 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 85$																													
Miscellaneous	Income 100$																					 250$																					 125$																					 200$																					 100$																					 50$																								 50$																								 50$																								 75$																								 -$																						 300$																					 -$																						 1,300$																						

Total		Revenues 185$																			 30,496$											 137,997$							 170,434$							 111,731$							 11,540$											 617$																			 50$																							 20,414$											 75,086$											 175,300$							 -$																					 733,850$												

Expenditures:

Administrative:
Other	Current	Charges 109$																					 123$																					 161$																					 147$																					 107$																					 142$																					 107$																					 107$																					 142$																					 142$																					 114$																					 106$																					 1,505$																						

Total	Administrative: 109$																			 123$																			 161$																			 147$																			 107$																			 142$																			 107$																			 107$																			 142$																			 142$																			 114$																			 106$																			 1,505$																			

Operations	&	Maintenance
Property	Insurance 62,847$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 62,847$																			
Electric 752$																					 578$																					 633$																					 638$																					 580$																					 540$																					 607$																					 -$																						 598$																					 873$																					 3,522$																	 700$																					 10,021$																			
Landscape	Contract 5,717$																	 5,717$																	 8,114$																	 8,114$																	 8,114$																	 9,422$																	 9,422$																	 9,422$																	 9,422$																	 9,422$																	 9,422$																	 9,422$																	 101,730$																
Landscape	-	Mulch	&	Plant	Installation -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 6,515$																	 -$																						 21,360$														 -$																						 -$																						 2,750$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 30,625$																			
Landscape	Contingency -$																						 250$																					 500$																					 -$																						 -$																						 3,450$																	 1,874$																	 1,500$																	 1,750$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 9,324$																						
Lake	Contract 395$																					 395$																					 395$																					 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 1,164$																	 11,661$																			
Lake	Contingency -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 200$																					 -$																						 -$																						 200$																										
Grounds	Maintenance -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 213$																					 -$																						 900$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,113$																						
Pump	Repairs -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Electric	Streetlights/Services -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Irrigation	Maintenance -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 3,879$																	 968$																					 -$																						 1,124$																	 931$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 6,902$																						
Field	Operations	Management 827$																					 1,202$																	 827$																					 823$																					 823$																					 780$																					 853$																					 6,556$																	 6,661$																	 3,330$																	 6,408$																	 9,632$																	 38,723$																			
Routine	Road	Cleaning -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Dog	Park	-	General	Maintenance 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 482$																					 5,784$																						
Pavilion	Park	Maintenance -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 799$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 425$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,224$																						
Entry	Gate(s)	Access	Control	&	Monitoring 3,022$																	 3,102$																	 3,728$																	 4,361$																	 3,386$																	 3,401$																	 4,224$																	 3,471$																	 3,541$																	 3,980$																	 3,591$																	 3,621$																	 43,425$																			
Contingency -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance: 74,042$											 11,725$											 14,680$											 26,775$											 15,516$											 40,599$											 19,962$											 23,951$											 27,268$											 19,451$											 24,589$											 25,021$											 323,579$												

9



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Month	to	Month

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Total
Amenity	Center
Utilities
					Telephone,	Internet	&	Cable 386$																					 390$																					 390$																					 390$																					 390$																					 390$																					 390$																					 388$																					 388$																					 388$																					 389$																					 389$																					 4,667$																						
					Electric 1,516$																	 1,499$																	 1,676$																	 1,697$																	 1,405$																	 1,455$																	 1,516$																	 -$																						 1,714$																	 1,728$																	 1,705$																	 1,659$																	 17,570$																			
					Water/Irrigation 1,793$																	 1,365$																	 979$																					 917$																					 1,104$																	 1,065$																	 1,100$																	 2,027$																	 2,692$																	 2,148$																	 2,938$																	 2,184$																	 20,312$																			
					Gas 910$																					 1,148$																	 5,295$																	 1,079$																	 6,918$																	 2,886$																	 7,468$																	 2,998$																	 1,510$																	 650$																					 488$																					 416$																					 31,764$																			
					Trash	Removal 264$																					 264$																					 518$																					 -$																						 253$																					 323$																					 322$																					 321$																					 319$																					 319$																					 319$																					 317$																					 3,538$																						
Security
					Security	Alarm	Monitoring -$																						 -$																						 225$																					 -$																						 -$																						 225$																					 -$																						 -$																						 225$																					 850$																					 -$																						 225$																					 1,750$																						
					Access	Cards -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
Management	Contracts
					Facility	Management -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
					Pool	Attendants -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																											
					Field	Management/Administrative 9,030$																	 13,740$														 10,223$														 10,335$														 10,603$														 9,929$																	 10,526$														 4,689$																	 4,907$																	 4,015$																	 4,133$																	 7,004$																	 99,132$																			
					Pool	Maintenance 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 2,315$																	 2,060$																	 2,060$																	 24,975$																			
					Pool	Repairs 993$																					 2,661$																	 175$																					 1,951$																	 -$																						 594$																					 1,191$																	 2,927$																	 2,223$																	 1,972$																	 2,485$																	 -$																						 17,171$																			
					Janitorial	Services 1,446$																	 1,454$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 778$																					 574$																					 1,078$																	 736$																					 736$																					 1,400$																	 8,201$																						
					Janitorial	Supplies 376$																					 212$																					 397$																					 195$																					 510$																					 312$																					 -$																						 1,060$																	 376$																					 179$																					 -$																						 358$																					 3,974$																						
				Facility	Repairs/Maintenance -$																						 -$																						 51$																								 2,045$																	 26,405$														 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 3$																											 28,504$																			
				Fitness	Equipment	Lease 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 2,279$																	 27,347$																			
				Landscape	Contract 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 2,737$																	 32,845$																			
				Landscape	Seasonal -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 5,848$																	 -$																						 6,988$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 12,363$														 -$																						 12,363$														 37,563$																			
				Landscape	Contingency -$																						 1,820$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 1,820$																						
					Pest	Control 75$																								 -$																						 150$																					 332$																					 75$																								 332$																					 1,233$																	 75$																								 75$																								 75$																								 75$																								 75$																								 2,572$																						
Pool	Permits -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 925$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 925$																										
Repairs	&	Maintenance 2,827$																	 266$																					 181$																					 1,860$																	 101$																					 1,653$																	 1,125$																	 263$																					 2,656$																	 71$																								 271$																					 5,834$																	 17,107$																			
Special	Events 2,338$																	 1,720$																	 2,679$																	 1,737$																	 2,419$																	 1,694$																	 2,874$																	 8,415$																	 1,472$																	 4,488$																	 2,089$																	 507$																					 32,432$																			
Holiday	Decorations 6,462$																	 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 6,462$																						
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 236$																					 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 236$																										
Operating	Supplies 537$																					 290$																					 430$																					 814$																					 435$																					 503$																					 214$																					 619$																					 645$																					 294$																					 309$																					 -$																						 5,090$																						
Capital	Outlay -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 -$																						 6,616$																	 6,616$																						

Total	Amenity	Center: 36,263$											 33,904$											 30,444$											 36,274$											 57,694$											 35,424$											 35,812$											 31,433$											 28,280$											 37,608$											 23,013$											 46,425$											 432,575$												

Total	Expenditures 110,414$							 45,753$											 45,285$											 63,196$											 73,318$											 76,164$											 55,881$											 55,491$											 55,691$											 57,200$											 47,716$											 71,552$											 757,659$												

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) (110,229)$									 (15,257)$												 92,712$														 107,239$											 38,414$														 (64,624)$												 (55,263)$												 (55,441)$												 (35,277)$												 17,886$														 127,584$											 (71,552)$												 (23,809)$																	

10



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Transfer	In 50,323$																								 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest 250$																															 250$																															 -$																																						 (250)$																													

Total		Revenues 50,573$																								 250$																															 -$																																						 (250)$																													

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 50,573$																								 250$																															 -$																																						

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 -$																																						

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 50,573$																								 -$																																						

11



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2007

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 1,342$																											 1,342$																											

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 1,342$																											 1,342$																											

Expenditures:

Series	2007
Debt	Service	Obligation -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 1,342$																											

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 26,392$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 27,734$																								

12



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2015

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 211,500$																					 211,500$																					 216,290$																					 4,790$																											
Special	Assessments	-	Prepayments -$																																						 -$																																						 11,821$																								 11,821$																								
Interest 7,500$																											 7,500$																											 15,310$																								 7,810$																											

Total		Revenues 219,000$																					 219,000$																					 243,421$																					 24,421$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2015
Interest	-	11/01 54,484$																								 54,484$																								 54,484$																								 -$																																						
Special	Call	-	11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 5,000$																											 (5,000)$																									
Principal	-	05/01 100,000$																					 100,000$																					 100,000$																					 -$																																						
Interest	-	05/01 54,484$																								 54,484$																								 54,359$																								 125$																															
Special	Call	-	05/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 15,000$																								 (15,000)$																						

Total	Expenditures 208,969$																					 208,969$																					 228,844$																					 (19,875)$																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 10,031$																								 14,577$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 103,893$																					 267,071$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 113,924$																					 281,647$																					

13



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2016A

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 437,275$																					 437,275$																					 443,096$																					 5,821$																											
Special	Assessments	-	Prepayments -$																																						 -$																																						 39,388$																								
Interest 11,750$																								 11,750$																								 46,056$																								 34,306$																								

Total		Revenues 449,025$																					 449,025$																					 528,540$																					 40,127$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2016A
Interest	-	11/01 158,450$																					 158,450$																					 158,450$																					 -$																																						
Principal	-	11/01 115,000$																					 115,000$																					 115,000$																					 -$																																						
Special	Call	-11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 5,000$																											 (5,000)$																									
Interest	-	05/01 155,719$																					 155,719$																					 155,575$																					 144$																															
Special	Call	-	05/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 45,000$																								 (45,000)$																						

Total	Expenditures 429,169$																					 429,169$																					 479,025$																					 (49,856)$																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 19,856$																								 49,515$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 400,720$																					 853,125$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 420,576$																					 902,640$																					

14



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2016B

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 9$																																					 9$																																					

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 9$																																					 9$																																					

Expenditures:

Series	2016B
Interest	-	11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Principal	-	11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	05/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 9$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 166$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 175$																															

15



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2017A

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 700,775$																					 700,775$																					 701,471$																					 696$																															
Special	Assessments	-	Lot	Closings -$																																						 -$																																						 104,196$																					 104,196$																					
Interest 22,000$																								 22,000$																								 65,722$																								 43,722$																								

Total		Revenues 722,775$																					 722,775$																					 871,389$																					 148,614$																					

Expenditures:

Series	2017A
Interest	-	11/01 250,859$																					 250,859$																					 250,859$																					 -$																																						
Principal	-	11/01 195,000$																					 195,000$																					 195,000$																					 -$																																						
Special	Call	-	11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 5,000$																											 (5,000)$																									
Interest	-	02/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 1,272$																											 (1,272)$																									
Special	Call	-	02/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 100,000$																					 (100,000)$																			
Interest	-	05/01 247,325$																					 247,325$																					 244,669$																					 2,656$																											
Special	Call	-	05/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 15,000$																								 (15,000)$																						

Total	Expenditures 693,184$																					 693,184$																					 811,800$																					 (118,616)$																			

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 29,591$																								 59,589$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 488,966$																					 1,207,023$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 518,557$																					 1,266,611$																	

16



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2017B

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 7,490$																											 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Special	Assessments	-	Prepayments -$																																						 -$																																						 19,500$																								 19,500$																								
Special	Assessments	-	Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 522$																															 522$																															
Interest 900$																															 900$																															 790$																															 (110)$																													

Total		Revenues 8,390$																											 900$																															 20,811$																								 19,911$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2017B
Interest	-	11/01 3,745$																											 3,745$																											 1,605$																											 2,140$																											
Special	Call	-	11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 40,000$																								 (40,000)$																						
Interest	-	05/01 3,745$																											 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	02/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 268$																															 (268)$																													
Special	Call	-	02/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 20,000$																								 (20,000)$																						

Total	Expenditures 7,490$																											 3,745$																											 61,873$																								 (58,128)$																						

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																																						 -$																																						 (7,728)$																									 7,728$																											

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																																						 -$																																						 (7,728)$																									 7,728$																											

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 900$																															 (48,790)$																						

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 3,691$																											 48,790$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 4,591$																											 -$																																						

17



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2020

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 413,256$																					 413,256$																					 416,662$																					 3,406$																											
Special	Assessments	-	Prepayments -$																																						 -$																																						 29,497$																								 29,497$																								
Interest 9,850$																											 9,850$																											 38,966$																								 29,116$																								

Total		Revenues 423,106$																					 423,106$																					 485,124$																					 62,018$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2020
Interest	-	11/01 136,081$																					 136,081$																					 136,081$																					 -$																																						
Principal	-	11/01 140,000$																					 140,000$																					 140,000$																					 -$																																						
Special	Call	-	11/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 5,000$																											 (5,000)$																									
Interest	-	05/01 133,894$																					 133,894$																					 133,788$																					 106$																															
Special	Call	-	05/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 35,000$																								 (35,000)$																						

Total	Expenditures 409,975$																					 409,975$																					 449,869$																					 (39,894)$																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 13,131$																								 35,256$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 312,283$																					 735,398$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 325,414$																					 770,653$																					

	

18



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2021	AA3	PH1
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 566,300$																					 566,300$																					 579,079$																					 12,779$																								
Special	Assessments	-	Lot	Closings -$																																						 -$																																						 20,655$																								 20,655$																								
Interest 10,800$																								 10,800$																								 46,043$																								 35,243$																								

Total		Revenues 577,100$																					 577,100$																					 645,777$																					 68,677$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2021	AA3	PH1
Interest	-	11/01 175,588$																					 175,588$																					 175,588$																					 -$																																						
Principal	-	05/01 215,000$																					 215,000$																					 215,000$																					 -$																																						
Interest	-	05/01 175,588$																					 175,588$																					 175,588$																					 -$																																						
Special	Call	-	08/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 20,000$																								 (20,000)$																						
Interest	-	08/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 188$																															 (188)$																													

Total	Expenditures 566,175$																					 566,175$																					 586,363$																					 (20,188)$																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 10,925$																								 59,414$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 200,289$																					 772,691$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 211,214$																					 832,105$																					

	

19



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2021	AA3	PH2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 149,100$																					 88,200$																								 88,200$																								 -$																																						
Special	Assessments	-	Lot	Closings -$																																						 -$																																						 60,900$																								 60,900$																								
Interest 2,400$																											 2,400$																											 17,247$																								 14,847$																								

Total		Revenues 151,500$																					 90,600$																								 166,347$																					 75,747$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2021	AA3	PH2
Interest	-	11/01 46,753$																								 46,753$																								 46,753$																								 -$																																						
Principal	-	05/01 55,000$																								 55,000$																								 55,000$																								 -$																																						
Interest	-	05/01 46,753$																								 46,753$																								 46,753$																								 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures 148,505$																					 148,505$																					 148,505$																					 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 2,995$																											 17,842$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 55,882$																								 205,904$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 58,877$																								 223,745$																					

	

20



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2021	AA2	PH3B
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 460,875$																					 460,875$																					 464,907$																					 4,032$																											
Interest 12,350$																								 12,350$																								 30,507$																								 18,157$																								

Total		Revenues 473,225$																					 473,225$																					 495,414$																					 22,189$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2021	AA2	PH3B
Interest	-	11/01 145,875$																					 145,875$																					 145,875$																					 -$																																						
Principal	-	05/01 170,000$																					 170,000$																					 170,000$																					 -$																																						
Interest	-	05/01 145,875$																					 145,875$																					 145,875$																					 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures 461,750$																					 461,750$																					 461,750$																					 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) 11,475$																								 33,664$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 168,439$																					 631,398$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 179,914$																					 665,062$																					

	

21



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	-	Series	2023

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments 291,375$																					 212,792$																					 212,792$																					 -$																																						
Special	Assessments	-	Lot	Closing -$																																						 -$																																						 19,254$																								 19,254$																								
Interest 2,500$																											 2,500$																											 56,383$																								 53,883$																								

Total		Revenues 293,875$																					 215,292$																					 288,429$																					 73,137$																								

Expenditures:

Series	2023
Interest	-	11/01 199,106$																					 199,106$																					 199,106$																					 -$																																						
Principal	-	05/01 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						
Interest	-	05/01 291,375$																					 291,375$																					 291,375$																					 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures 490,481$																					 490,481$																					 490,481$																					 -$																																						

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																																						 -$																																						 153$																															 (153)$																													

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																																						 -$																																						 153$																															 (153)$																													

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) (196,606)$																			 (201,899)$																			

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 490,731$																					 1,228,528$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 294,125$																					 1,026,629$																	

	

22



Developer	Contributions/Due	to	Developer

Funding	 Prepare Check# Received Payment Total General General Capital	2017 Capital	2020 Capital	2021	PH1 Capital	2021	PH2 Capital	2023 Capital Over	and
Request Date Date Amount Funding	 Fund Fund (Due	to (Due	to (Due	to &	3B	(Due	to AA3	PH3	&	AA3	PH3	 (Due	to (short)

# Request Portion	(FY23) Portion	(FY24) Developer) Developer) Developer) Developer) (Due	to	Developer) Developer) Balance	Due

10-CS 9/22/23 WIRE 10/2/23 $20,324.00 $20,324.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,324.00 $0.00
11-2021	PH1 9/22/23 WIRE 10/2/23 $11,978.75 $11,978.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,978.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
8-2021	PH2 9/22/23 WIRE 10/2/23 $135,457.83 $135,457.83 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $135,457.83 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
12-2021	PH3B 9/22/23 WIRE 10/2/23 $103,033.87 $103,033.87 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $103,033.87 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

11-CS 10/12/23 WIRE 11/14/23 $4,152.94 $4,152.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,152.94 $0.00
9-2021	PH2 10/12/23 WIRE 11/14/23 $249.00 $249.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $249.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
13-2021	PH3B 10/12/23 WIRE 11/14/23 $892.36 $892.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $892.36 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
10-2021	PH2 10/27/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $166,257.68 $166,257.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $166,257.68 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
14-2021	PH3B 10/27/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $56,381.48 $56,381.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,381.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

1-CS 11/13/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $1,744.50 $1,744.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,744.50 $0.00
1-2021	PH2 11/13/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $338,316.90 $338,316.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $338,316.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1-2021	PH3B 11/13/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $208,998.45 $208,998.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $208,998.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1-2023	PH3 11/13/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $48,655.59 $48,655.59 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,655.59 $0.00 $0.00

1 11/13/23 WIRE 11/30/23 $120,902.05 $120,902.05 $0.00 $120,902.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2-2023	PH3 11/30/23 WIRE 12/20/23 $353,774.15 $353,774.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $353,774.15 $0.00 $0.00

2-2021	AA2	PH3B 12/12/23 WIRE 12/19/23 $45,851.75 $45,851.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,851.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2-2021	AA3	PH2 12/12/23 WIRE 12/19/23 $442,391.89 $442,391.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $442,391.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3-2023	AA3	PH3 12/12/23 WIRE 12/19/23 $1,260,233.18 $1,260,233.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,260,233.18 $0.00 $0.00
3-2021	AA3	PH2 1/9/24 WIRE 1/25/24 $156,242.48 $156,242.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $156,242.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4-2023	AA3	PH3 1/9/24 WIRE 1/25/24 $624,934.03 $624,934.03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $624,934.03 $0.00 $0.00

2-CS 1/18/24 WIRE 1/25/24 $3,444.26 $3,444.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,444.26 $0.00
3-2021	AA2	PH3B 1/18/24 WIRE 1/25/24 $517,451.42 $517,451.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $517,451.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5-2023	AA3	PH3 1/18/24 WIRE 1/25/24 $23,197.75 $23,197.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,197.75 $0.00 $0.00

3-CS 2/4/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,750.00 $0.00
1-2020 2/4/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $8,994.90 $8,994.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,994.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4-2021	AA3	PH2 2/4/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $44,988.00 $44,988.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $44,988.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4-2021	AA2	PH3B 2/4/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $125.00 $125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
6-2023	AA3	PH3 2/4/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $22,283.60 $22,283.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,283.60 $0.00 $0.00
5-2021	AA3	PH2 2/14/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $33,173.00 $33,173.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,173.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5-2021	AA2	PH3B 2/14/14 WIRE 3/4/24 $6,188.25 $6,188.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,188.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7-2023	AA3	PH3 2/14/24 WIRE 3/4/24 $682,025.63 $682,025.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $682,025.63 $0.00 $0.00
6-2021	AA3	PH2 2/27/24 WIRE 4/10/24 $52,830.95 $52,830.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $52,830.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

4-CS 3/14/24 WIRE 4/10/24 $1,854.41 $1,854.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,854.41 $0.00
6-2021	AA2	PH3B 3/14/24 WIRE 4/10/24 $2,978.25 $2,978.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,978.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
8-2023	AA3	PH3 3/14/24 WIRE 4/10/24 $1,069,077.29 $1,069,077.29 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,069,077.29 $0.00 $0.00

5-CS 4/14/24 WIRE 4/22/24 $143,286.33 $143,286.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $143,286.33 $0.00
7-2021	AA3	PH2 4/14/24 WIRE 4/22/24 $20,896.61 $20,896.61 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,896.61 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7-2021	AA2	PH3B 4/14/24 WIRE 4/22/24 $32,968.50 $32,968.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,968.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1-2023	AA2	PH3C 4/14/24 WIRE 4/22/24 $855,526.09 $855,526.09 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $855,526.09 $0.00 $0.00
9-2023	AA3	PH3 4/14/24 WIRE 4/22/24 $959,976.99 $959,976.99 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $959,976.99 $0.00 $0.00

6-CS 4/23/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $367,453.46 $367,453.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $367,453.46 $0.00
7-CS 5/9/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $394,904.18 $394,904.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $394,904.18 $0.00

8-2021	AA3	PH2 5/9/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $246,547.12 $246,547.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $246,547.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
8-2021	AA2	PH3B 5/9/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $502.50 $502.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $502.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2-2023	AA2	PH3C 5/9/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $11,744.80 $11,744.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,744.80 $0.00 $0.00
10-2023	AA3	PH3 5/9/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $1,080,265.85 $1,080,265.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,080,265.85 $0.00 $0.00

8-CS 5/17/24 WIRE 5/30/24 $368,841.00 $368,841.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $368,841.00 $0.00
9-CS 6/12/24 WIRE 6/20/24 $598,404.13 $598,404.13 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $598,404.13 $0.00

9-2021	AA3	PH2 6/12/24 WIRE 6/20/24 $31,503.73 $31,503.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,503.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
9-2021	AA2	PH3B 6/12/24 WIRE 6/20/24 $837.50 $837.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $937.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3-2023	AA2	PH3C 6/12/24 WIRE 6/20/24 $1,577,489.10 $1,577,489.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,577,489.10 $0.00 $0.00
11-2023	AA3	PH3 6/12/24 WIRE 6/20/24 $378,772.82 $378,772.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $378,772.82 $0.00 $0.00

10-CS 7/18/24 WIRE 8/12/24 $540,074.86 $540,074.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $540,074.86 $0.00
11-CS 7/22/24 WIRE 8/22/24 $266,816.30 $266,816.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $266,816.30 $0.00
12-CS 8/9/24 WIRE 8/22/24 $1,008,127.93 $1,008,127.93 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,008,127.93 $0.00

5-2023	AA2	PH3C 8/9/24 WIRE 8/22/24 $1,208,301.94 $1,208,301.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,208,301.94 $0.00 $0.00
6-2023	AA2	PH3C 9/25/24 WIRE 10/15/24 $1,356,123.13 $1,356,123.13 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,356,123.13 $0.00 $0.00
13-2023	AA3	PH3 9/25/24 WIRE 10/15/24 $69,434.91 $69,434.91 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $69,434.91 $0.00 $0.00
10-2021	AA3	PH2 10/8/24 WIRE 10/15/24 $164.50 $164.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $164.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7-2023	AA2	PH3C 10/8/24 WIRE 10/15/24 $310,787.75 $310,787.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $310,787.75 $0.00 $0.00
14-2023	AA3	PH3 10/8/24 WIRE 10/15/24 $53,171.15 $53,171.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $53,171.15 $0.00 $0.00
10-2021	AA2	PH3B 10/29/24 $1,415.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,415.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,415.00)
1-2023	AA2	PH3C 10/29/24 $526,475.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $526,475.33 $0.00 ($526,475.33)
1-2023	AA3	PH3 10/29/24 $101,473.72 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $101,473.72 $0.00 ($101,473.72)

Due	to	Developer $18,454,058.77 $19,083,422.82 $0.00 $120,902.05 $0.00 $8,994.90 $11,978.75 $2,646,744.02 $12,573,724.80 $3,721,178.30 ($629,364.05)

Total	Developer	Contributions	FY24 $120,902.05

*	Chart	does	not	reflect	funding	requests	prior	to	9/22/23

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

23



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2007

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 115$																															 115$																															

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 115$																															 115$																															

Expenditures:

Series	2007
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 115$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 2,261$																											

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 2,376$																											

	

25



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2016A
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Miscellaneous	Income -$																																						 -$																																						 599,091$																					 599,091$																					
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 55,183$																								 55,183$																								

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 654,273$																					 654,273$																					

Expenditures:

Series	2016A
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 1,586,500$																	 (1,586,500)$															

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 1,586,500$																	 (1,586,500)$															

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 (932,226)$																			

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 935,431$																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 3,205$																											

	

26



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2016B
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 0$																																					 0$																																					

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 0$																																					 0$																																					

Expenditures:

Series	2016B
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 0$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 4$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 4$																																					

	

27



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2017A
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 51$																																		 51$																																		

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 51$																																		 51$																																		

Expenditures:

Series	2017A
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 51$																																		

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 2,890$																											

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 2,941$																											

	

28



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2017B
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 0$																																					 0$																																					

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 0$																																					 0$																																					

Expenditures:

Series	2017B
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																																						 -$																																						 (2)$																																			 2$																																					

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																																						 -$																																						 (2)$																																			 2$																																					

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 (2)$																																			

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 2$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 -$																																						

	

29



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2020

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Developer	Contributions -$																																						 -$																																						 8,995$																											 8,995$																											
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 11$																																		 11$																																		

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 9,006$																											 9,006$																											

Expenditures:

Series	2020
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 8,995$																											 (8,995)$																									

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 8,995$																											 (8,995)$																									

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 11$																																		

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 201$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 212$																															

	

30



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2021	AA3	PH1
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 10$																																		 10$																																		

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 10$																																		 10$																																		

Expenditures:

Series	2021	AA3	PH1
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						 -$																																						

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 10$																																		

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 194$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 204$																															

	

31



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2021	AA3	PH2
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Developer	Contributions -$																																						 -$																																						 1,366,867$																	 1,366,867$																	
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 29$																																		 29$																																		

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 1,366,896$																	 1,366,896$																	

Expenditures:

Series	2021	AA3	PH2
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 1,366,867$																	 (1,366,867)$															

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 1,366,867$																	 (1,366,867)$															

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 29$																																		

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 (229,972)$																			

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 (229,943)$																			

	

32



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2021	AA2	PH3B
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Developer	Contributions -$																																						 -$																																						 817,317$																					 817,317$																					
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 0$																																					 0$																																					

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 817,317$																					 817,317$																					

Expenditures:

Series	2021	AA2	PH3B
Capital	Outlay -$																																						 -$																																						 817,317$																					 (817,317)$																			

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 817,317$																					 (817,317)$																			

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 0$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 (498,587)$																			

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 (498,587)$																			

	

33



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District
Capital	Projects	Fund	-	Series	2023

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	September	30,	2024

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	09/30/24 Thru	09/30/24 Variance

Revenues:
	
Developer	Contributions -$																																						 -$																																						 11,984,088$														 11,984,088$														
Interest -$																																						 -$																																						 71,885$																								 71,885$																								

Total		Revenues -$																																						 -$																																						 12,055,973$														 12,055,973$														

Expenditures:

Series	2023
Capital	Outlay	-	AA2	PH3C -$																																						 -$																																						 7,695,678$																	 (7,695,678)$															
Capital	Outlay	-	AA3	PH3 -$																																						 -$																																						 7,202,806$																	 (7,202,806)$															

Total	Expenditures -$																																						 -$																																						 14,898,484$														 (14,898,484)$												

Other	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																																						 -$																																						 (152)$																													 152$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																																						 -$																																						 (152)$																													 152$																															

Excess	Revenues	(Expenditures) -$																																						 (2,842,664)$															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																																						 2,469,843$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																																						 (372,820)$																			

	

34



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

12/4/23 288A Southern	Recreation Invoice	#110350319	-	Playground	Equipment	Installation	-	Dec.23 85,991.00$										
12/20/23 289A Jax	Utilities	Management Invoice	#232896R	-	Trailmark	Berry	Blossum	Way	-	Road	Repairs	-	Dec.23 5,896.00$												
12/20/23 290A Jax	Utilities	Management Invoice	#232897R	-	Berry	Blossum	Way	-	Cave-In	Repair	-	Dec.23 6,632.00$												
7/23/24 291A Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3420869	18323-2	-	Project	Construction	-	Apr.24 673.50$															
7/23/24 292A Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services,	Inc. Invoice	#61201817	-	Landscape	at	Lift	Station	&	Bridge	-	Mar.24 15,124.50$										
7/23/24 293A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#214889	-	Traffic	Signal	Design	Services	(WA#79)	-	Jun.24 11,440.00$										
7/23/24 294A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#214549,	214552,	214553	&	214591	-	Jun.24 25,260.50$										
7/23/24 295A Ferguson	Enterprises,	LLC Invoices	#2091753	&	2093199	-	Direct	Purchase	of	Materials	-	Jun.24 16,436.00$										

7/23/24 296A Ferguson	Enterprises,	LLC
Invoices	#2090340,	2089812,	2090665,	2096814,	CM129206,	CM129208	&	

CM129207 56.00$																		
7/23/24 297A Powers	Development	Group Invoice	#2270	-	Trailmark	Playground	Expansion	-	Jun.24 27,383.00$										
7/23/24 298A Clary	&	Associates Invoice	#2024-300	-	East	Parcel	Ph3	Specific	Purpose	Survey	-	May24 1,750.00$												
7/23/24 299A Southern	Recreation 50%	Deposit	-	Amenity	Pool	Trash	Receptacles	 1,537.50$												
7/23/24 300A Ferguson	Enterprises,	LLC Invoices	#2088620	&	2090626	-	Direct	Purchase	of	Materials	-	Jun.24 7,085.00$												
7/23/24 301A Jax	Utilities	Management CM233476C	&	Application	#14	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	3	-	Jun.24 769,096.87$								
7/23/24 302A Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#16	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	-	Jun.24 441,428.43$								
7/23/24 303A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#214152	-	Traffic	Signal	Design	Serviecs	(WA#79)	-	May24 7,620.00$												
7/23/24 304A SES	Environmental	Resource	Solutions Invoice	#40456	-	Haul	Road	Restoration	&		School	Path	-	Jun.24 1,625.00$												
7/26/24 305A Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services,	Inc. Invoice	#61201819	-	Trailmark	Landscape	Bed	across	Lift	Station	-	Mar.24 2,931.25$												
7/26/24 306A BrightView	Landscape	Services,	Inc. Invoice	#22539664	-	Installation	of	90	Coontie	Palms	inside	Pool	Area	-	Jul.24 3,349.83$												
8/8/24 307A Onsight	Industies,	LLC Invoice	#417613	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	Street	Signs 19,634.85$										
8/19/24 308A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#215009,	215036	&	215052 30,051.21$										
8/19/24 309A Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#17	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	-	Jul.24 100,674.82$								
8/21/24 310A ECS	Florida,	LLC Invoice	#1194634	-	Pacetti	Road	Geotechnical	Services	 3,700.00$												
8/21/24 311A Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3436997	18323-2	-	Project	Construction	-	May	24 117.50$															
9/25/24 312A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#215454	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	Aug.24 1,005.00$												

TOTAL 1,586,499.76$			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 4,096.80$												
10/27/23 St.	Johns	Cty	Board	Commissioners Check	#616872	Utility	Reimbursement 229,993.53$								
11/1/23 Interest 4,422.48$												
12/1/23 Interest 5,110.53$												
1/2/24 Interest 4,903.81$												
2/1/24 Interest 4,811.04$												
2/16/24 St.	Johns	Cty	Board	Commissioners 142,245.98$								
3/1/24 Interest 4,807.63$												
4/1/24 Interest 5,487.74$												
5/1/24 Interest 5,334.34$												
5/2/24 St.	Johns	Cty	Board	Commissioners Check	#622119	Utility	Reimbursement 92,420.82$										
6/3/24 Interest 5,933.58$												
7/1/24 Interest 5,778.84$												
8/1/24 Interest 4,278.75$												
8/9/24 St.	Johns	Cty	Board	Commissioners Check	#624700	Utility	Reimbursement 134,430.27$								
9/3/24 Interest 217.30$															

TOTAL 654,273.44$							

932,234.23$							
654,273.44$							

(1,586,499.76)$		

7.91$																			Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2016A

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

35



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

TOTAL -$																			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 0.02$																		
11/1/23 Interest 0.02$																		
12/1/23 Interest 0.02$																		
1/2/24 Interest 0.02$																		
2/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
3/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
4/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
5/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
6/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
7/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
8/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
9/3/24 Interest 0.02$																		

TOTAL 0.24$																	

3.57$																	
0.24$																	
-$																			

3.81$																	

Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2016B

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24

36



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

TOTAL -$																			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest -$																				
11/1/23 Interest -$																				
12/1/23 Interest -$																				
1/2/24 Interest -$																				
2/1/24 Interest -$																				
3/1/24 Interest -$																				
4/1/24 Interest -$																				
5/1/24 Interest -$																				
6/1/24 Interest -$																				
7/1/24 Interest -$																				
8/1/24 Interest -$																				
9/1/23 Interest -$																				

TOTAL -$																			

0.23$																	
-$																			
-$																			

0.23$																	Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2017A

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

37



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

TOTAL -$																			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 4.11$																		
11/1/23 Interest 4.26$																		
12/1/23 Interest 4.11$																		
1//2/24 Interest 4.25$																		
2/1/24 Interest 4.23$																		
3/1/24 Interest 3.97$																		
4/1/24 Interest 4.26$																		
5/1/24 Interest 4.15$																		
6/1/24 Interest 4.30$																		
7/1/24 Interest 4.18$																		
8/1/24 Interest 4.34$																		
9/1/24 Interest 4.36$																		

TOTAL 50.52$															

934.11$													
50.52$															
-$																			

984.63$													Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2017NW

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

38



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

TOTAL -$																			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 0.01$																		
11/1/23 Interest 0.01$																		
12/1/23 Interest 0.01$																		
1/2/24 Interest 0.01$																		
2/1/24 Interest 0.01$																		
2/20/24 Interest 0.01$																		

TOTAL 0.06$																	

1.92$																	
0.06$																	
-$																			

(1.98)$																

-$																			

Requisitions	Paid	thru	02/29/24

Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2017B

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	02/29/24

Transfer	Out	02/29/24

39



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

3/4/24 170 Onsight	Industries	LLC Invoice	#404601	-	Trailmark	EP	PH1	-	Street	Signage	-	Dec.23 8,994.90$										

TOTAL 8,994.90$									

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 0.88$																		
11/1/23 Interest 0.92$																		
12/1/23 Interest 0.88$																		
1/2/24 Interest 0.91$																		
2/1/24 Interest 0.91$																		
3/1/24 Interest 0.85$																		
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#1-2020 8,994.90$										
4/1/24 Interest 0.92$																		
5/1/24 Interest 0.89$																		
6/3/24 Interest 0.92$																		
7/1/24 Interest 0.90$																		
8/1/24 Interest 0.93$																		
9/3/24 Interest 0.94$																		

TOTAL 9,005.75$									

200.77$													
9,005.75$									
(8,994.90)$								

211.62$													Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	and	Refunding	Bonds,	Series	2020

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

40



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

10/2/23 197 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#209621	-	Trailmark	Phase	11	CEI	(WA#63)	-	July	2023 3,436.65$										
10/2/23 198 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services,	Inc. Invoice	#201075	-	Landscape	Services	Trailmark	PH9A-9B	-	August	2023 5,350.00$										
10/2/23 199 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#209621	-	Trailmark	Phase	11	CEI	(WA#63)	-	August	2023 1,226.10$										
10/2/23 200 Florida	Power	&	Light Invoice	#1800436356	-	Relocation	of	existing	FPL	line	-	September	2023 1,966.00$										

TOTAL 11,978.75$							

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 0.85$																		
10/2/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#11-2021 11,978.75$								
11/1/23 Interest 0.88$																		
12/1/23 Interest 0.85$																		
1/2/24 Interest 0.88$																		
2/1/24 Interest 0.88$																		
3/1/24 Interest 0.82$																		
4/1/24 Interest 0.88$																		
5/1/24 Interest 0.86$																		
6/3/24 Interest 0.89$																		
7/1/24 Interest 0.87$																		
8/1/24 Interest 0.90$																		
9/3/24 Interest 0.90$																		

TOTAL 11,989.21$							

193.60$													
11,989.21$							
(11,978.75)$					

204.06$													Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2021	AA3	PH1

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

41



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

10/2/23 61 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#209630	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	CEI	(WA#66)	-	July	2023 5,921.32$												
10/2/23 62 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210103	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	CEI	(WA#66)	-	August	2023 8,207.26$												
10/2/23 63 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#15	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	August	2023 121,329.25$								
11/14/23 64 Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3292461-18323-2	-	Project	Construction	-	Jul.	&	Aug.	2023 249.00$															
11/30/23 65 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#16	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	September	2023 157,652.96$								
11/30/23 66 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210623	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	CEI	(WA#66)	-	September	2023 8,604.72$												
11/30/23 67 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211120	-	RFP	for	Trailmark	PH10	CEI	Services	(WA#66)	-	Oct.23 5,837.75$												
11/30/23 68 Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3298049-18323-2	-	Project	Construction	-	September	2023 188.00$															
11/30/23 69 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#17	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	October	2023 332,291.15$								
12/19/23 70 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#18	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	November	2023 436,274.69$								
12/19/23 71 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211601	-	RFP	for	Trailmark	PH10	CEI	Services	(WA#66)	-	Nov.23 6,117.20$												
1/9/24 72 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#19	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	December	2023 156,242.48$								
3/4/24 73 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#61201769	-	Landscape	Services	Trailmark	Ph6	-	Jan.24 3,598.00$												
3/4/24 74 Onsight	Industries,	LLC Invoice	#400943	-	Trailmark	PH10	Mailboxes	-	Sept.	23 41,390.00$										
3/4/24 75 Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3351117-18323-2	-	Project	Construction	Fees	-	Dec.23 180.00$															
3/4/24 76 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212481	-	RFP	for	Trailmark	PH10	CEI	Services	(WA#66)	-	Jan.24 16,068.00$										
3/4/24 77 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211894	-	RFP	for	Trailmark	PH10	CEI	Services	(WA#66)	-	Dec.23 16,925.00$										
4/10/24 78 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#20	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	January	2024 52,830.95$										
4/22/24 79 Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3366050-18323-2	-	Project	Construction	-	January	2024 211.50$															
4/22/24 80 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#61201816	-	Landscape	Services	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	March	2024 13,499.36$										
4/22/24 81 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#61201815	-	Landscape	Services	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	March	2024 7,185.75$												
5/9/24 82 Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoices	#3338670-18323-2	&	3381786-18323-2 2,206.50$												
5/9/24 83 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#21	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	February	2024 230,573.61$								
5/9/24 84 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#22	-	Trailmark	Phase	10	-	March	2024 13,767.01$										
6/20/24 85 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#203117	-	Kiosk	Trailmark	Phase	10 9,853.75$												
6/20/24 86 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#203120	-	Landscape	Services	Trailmark	Phase	10 19,962.25$										
6/20/24 87 Onsight	Industries,	LLC Invoice	#408501	-	Speed	Limit	Sign	Relocation	Trailmark	Ph10	-	Feb.	2024 314.23$															
6/20/24 88 Kutak	Rock	LLP Invoice	#3397613-18323-2	-	Project	Construction	-	March	2024 936.00$															
6/20/24 89 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#214259	-	Phase	10	CEI	Services	(WA#66)	-	May	2024 437.50$															

TOTAL 1,668,855.19$			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 2.36$																				
10/2/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#8-2021 135,457.83$								
11/1/23 Interest 2.45$																				
11/14/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#9-2021 249.00$															
11/30/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#10-2021 166,257.68$								
11/30/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#1-2021 338,316.90$								
12/1/23 Interest 2.37$																				
12/19/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#2-2021 442,391.89$								
1/2/24 Interest 2.44$																				
1/25/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#3-2021 156,242.48$								
2/1/24 Interest 2.43$																				
3/1/24 Interest 2.29$																				
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#4-2021 44,988.00$										
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#5-2021 33,173.00$										
4/1/24 Interest 2.45$																				
4/10/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#6-2021 52,830.95$										
4/22/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#7-2021 20,896.61$										
5/1/24 Interest 2.38$																				
5/30/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#8-2021 246,547.12$								
6/3/24 Interest 2.48$																				
6/20/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#9-2021 31,503.73$										
7/1/24 Interest 2.41$																				
8/1/24 Interest 2.50$																				
9/3/24 Interest 2.51$																				

TOTAL 1,668,884.26$			

537.43$															
1,668,884.26$			
(1,668,855.19)$		

566.50$															Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2021	AA3	PH2

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

42



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

10/2/23 141 Onsight	Industries Invoice	#002-23-348465-1	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Street	Sign	Fixes	-	Aug.23 2,718.30$										
10/2/23 142 F&E	Management Invoice	#2226	-	Amenity	Center	Pool	Furniture	-	August	2023 24,008.40$								
10/2/23 143 F&E	Management Invoice	#2227	-	Amenity	Center	Pool	Furniture	-	August	2023 16,650.90$								
10/2/23 144 Basham	&	Lucas	Design	Group,	Inc. Invoice	#9635	-	Trailmark	CA	Drawings/Inspections	-	August	2023 6,310.00$										
10/2/23 145 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#209854	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	August	2023 1,160.00$										
10/2/23 146 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210086	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	2	CEI	(WA#61)	-	Aug.23 9,974.57$										
10/2/23 147 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#21	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	2	-	August	2023 42,211.70$								
11/14/23 148 Basham	&	Lucas	Design	Group,	Inc. Invoice	#9686	-	Trailmark	CA	Drawings/Inspections	-	August	2023 892.36$													
11/30/23 149 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#22	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	2	-	September	2023 46,796.68$								
11/30/23 150 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210338	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	September	2023 1,080.00$										
11/30/23 151 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210615	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	2	CEI	(WA#61)	-	Sept.23 8,504.80$										
11/30/23 152 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210839	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	October	2023 642.71$													
11/30/23 153 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211113	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	2	CEI	(WA#61)	-	Oct.23 13,151.10$								
11/30/23 154 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#23	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	2	-	October	2023 195,204.64$						
12/19/23 155 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#24	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	2	-	November	2023 33,051.33$								
12/19/23 156 Basham	&	Lucas	Design	Group,	Inc. Invoice	#9805	-	Trailmark	CA	-	November	2023 1,000.00$										
12/19/23 157 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211298	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	November	2023 1,895.00$										
12/19/23 158 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211597	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	2	CEI	(WA#61)	-	Nov.23 9,905.42$										
1/18/24 159 Besch	&	Smith	Civil	Group,	Inc. Application	#25	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	2	-	December	2023 513,009.32$						
1/18/24 160 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211722	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	December	2023 4,442.10$										
3/4/24 161 Onsight	Industries Invoice	#400770	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Street	Signage	-	Sept.23 125.00$													
3/4/24 162 Basham	&	Lucas	Design	Group,	Inc. Invoice	#9905	-	Trailmark	CA	-	Jan.24 1,500.00$										
3/4/24 163 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212159	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	Jan.24 1,895.00$										
3/4/24 164 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212476	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH2	CEI	(WA#61)	-	Jan.24 2,793.25$										
4/10/24 165 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212666	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	Feb.24 2,978.25$										
4/22/24 166 Clary	&	Associates Invoice	#2024-79	-	Trailmark	EP	PH2	-	CA	Calculation/Crew	Work	-	Feb.24 4,595.00$										
4/22/24 167 Clary	&	Associates Invoice	#2024-22	-	Trailmark	EP	PH2	-	Topographic	Survey	-	Feb.24 23,150.00$								
4/22/24 168 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#213095	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	March	2024 5,223.50$										
5/30/24 169 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#213583	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	April	2024 502.50$													
6/20/24 170 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#214029	-	Master	Site	Planning	(WA#51)	-	May	2024 837.50$													

TOTAL 976,209.33$					

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 0.02$																		
10/2/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#12-2021 103,033.87$						
11/1/23 Interest 0.02$																		
11/14/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#13-2021 892.36$													
11/30/23 Wire SMCIG	FY23	Funding	Request	#14-2021 56,381.48$								
11/30/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#1-2021 208,998.45$						
12/1/23 Interest 0.02$																		
12/19/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#2-2021 45,851.75$								
1/2/24 Interest 0.02$																		
1/25/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#3-2021 517,451.42$						
2/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
3/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#4-2021 125.00$													
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#5-2021 6,188.25$										
4/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
4/10/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#6-2021 2,978.25$										
4/22/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#7-2021 32,968.50$								
5/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
5/30/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#8-2021 502.50$													
6/3/24 Interest 0.02$																		
6/20/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#9-2021 837.50$													
7/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
8/1/24 Interest 0.02$																		
9/3/24 Interest 0.02$																		

TOTAL 976,209.57$					

4.99$																	
976,209.57$					
(976,209.33)$			

5.23$																	

Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2021	AA2	PH3B

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24

43



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

10/2/23 30 Carlton	Construction Application	#5	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion	-	September	2023 380,110.41$								
10/30/23 31 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210617	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	CEI	(WA#73)	-	Sept.23 2,522.75$												
10/30/23 32 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210618	-	CDD	Tax	Exempt	Purchase	Admin.	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Sept.23 570.50$															
10/30/23 33 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210627	-	Trailmark	Signal	Investigation	(WA#77)	-	Sept.23 1,040.00$												
10/30/23 34 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210613	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Center	PH2	CEI	(WA#75)	-	Sept.23 3,491.00$												
10/30/23 35 American	Precast	Structures	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Aug.	-	Sept.23 105,574.00$								
10/30/23 36 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Oct.23 147,756.00$								
12/1/23 37 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211112	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Center	PH2	Expansion	(WA#75)	-	Oct.23 704.50$															
12/1/23 38 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211115	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	CEI	(WA#73)	-	Oct.23 3,558.25$												
12/1/23 39 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211116	-	CDD	Tax	Exempt	Purchase	Admin.	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Oct.23 335.00$															
12/1/23 40 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211123	-	Traffic	Signal	Investigation	(WA#77)	-	Oct.23 800.00$															
12/1/23 41 Carlton	Construction Application	#6	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion	-	October	2023 304,125.29$								
12/1/23 42 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#6	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	October	2023 53,247.50$										
12/1/23 43 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Nov.23 321,293.40$								
12/4/23 44 BrightView	Landscape	Services,	Inc. Invoice	#8683721	-	Additional	Irrigation	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion 19,301.62$										
12/13/23 45 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Dec.23 6,480.00$												
12/13/23 46 American	Precast	Structures	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Sept.	-	Nov.23 197,926.00$								
12/13/23 47 Carlton	Construction Application	#7	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion	-	November	2023 343,667.49$								
12/20/23 48 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211596	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Center	PH2	Expansion	(WA#75)	-	Nov.23 1,277.75$												
12/20/23 49 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211599	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	CEI	(WA#73)	-	Nov.23 11,108.35$										
12/20/23 50 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211600	-	CDD	Tax	Exempt	Purchase	Admin.	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Nov.23 498.00$															
12/20/23 51 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#7	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	November	2023 17,670.00$										
12/20/23 52 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#5	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	September	2023 173,850.00$								
1/11/24 53 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Dec.23 95,600.00$										
1/11/24 54 American	Precast	Structures	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Sept.23 44,465.00$										
1/11/24 55 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#8	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	December	2023 8,740.00$												
1/22/24 56 Carlton	Construction Application	#8	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion	-	December	2023 155,186.47$								
1/22/24 57 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211889	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Center	PH2	Expansion	(WA#75)	-	Dec.23 1,526.00$												
1/22/24 58 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211891	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	CEI	(WA#73)	-	Dec.23 5,872.75$												
1/22/24 59 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211890	-	CDD	Tax	Exempt	Purchase	Admin.	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Dec.23 661.00$															
2/15/24 60 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#9	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	January	2024 221,776.80$								
2/15/24 61 Carlton	Construction Application	#9	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion	-	January	2024 21,554.43$										
2/15/24 62 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212475	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Center	PH2	Expansion	(WA#75)	-	Jan.24 1,443.10$												
2/15/24 63 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212477	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	CEI	(WA#73)	-	Jan.24 5,604.00$												
2/15/24 64 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212478	-	CDD	Tax	Exempt	Purchase	Admin.	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Jan.24 916.75$															
3/8/24 65 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#61201791	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Sports	Field	Sod	Installation 1,620.00$												
3/15/24 66 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Feb.24 61.00$																		
3/15/24 67 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#212863,	212864	&	212865	-	Phase	2	&	Phase	3	-	Feb.24 9,052.75$												
4/12/24 68 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#10	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	February	2024	(Partial) 354,415.71$								
4/22/24 68 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#10	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	February	2024	(Balance) 42,309.75$										
4/22/24 69 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#11	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	March	2024 480,446.91$								
4/22/24 70 Carlton	Construction Application	#10	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Expansion	-	February	2024 132,464.91$								
4/22/24 71 The	Tree	Amigos	Outdoor	Services Invoice	#61201811	-	Trailmark	Amenity	Sports	Field	Sod	Install	-	Mar.24 47,924.50$										
4/22/24 72 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#213296,	213299	&	213300	-	Phase	2	&	Phase	3	-	Mar.24 7,876.02$												
4/22/24 73 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Mar.	-	Apr.24 144,504.00$								
5/30/24 74 Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH3	-	Apr.24 2,961.80$												
5/30/24 75 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#213851,	213852	&	213853	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	-	Apr.24 8,783.00$												
6/20/24 76 American	Precast	Structures	LLC Invoices	#8679	&	9224	-	Direct	Purchase	of	Materials 3,486.00$												
6/20/24 77 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#12	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	13	-	April	2024 862,710.41$								
6/20/24 78 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#13	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	13	-	May	2024 700,093.94$								
6/20/24 79 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#214252,	214253	&	214254	-	May	2024 11,198.75$										
8/22/24 80 County	Materials	FL Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices-	Trailmark	Phase	3 73,440.00$										
8/22/24 81 Jax	Utilities	Management Application	#15	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	3	-	July	2024 1,125,376.36$					
8/22/24 82 England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#215015	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	Phase	3	CEI	(WA#73)	-	July	2024 9,485.58$												

TOTAL 6,678,465.50$			

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 14,018.86$										
11/1/23 Interest 12,448.91$										
12/1/23 Interest 10,307.37$										
1/2/24 Interest 5,634.85$												
2/1/24 Interest 3,413.57$												
3/1/24 Interest 2,008.65$												
4/1/24 Interest 1,588.86$												
4/22/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#1-2023	AA2	PH3C 855,526.09$								
5/1/24 Interest 559.22$															
5/30/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#2-2023	AA2	PH3C 11,744.80$										
6/3/24 Interest 2.49$																				
6/20/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#3-2023	AA2	PH3C 1,577,489.10$					
7/1/24 Interest 2.42$																				
8/1/24 Interest 2.51$																				
8/22/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#5-2023	AA2	PH3C 1,208,301.94$					
9/3/24 Interest 2.52$																				

TOTAL 3,703,052.16$			

2,975,982.50$			
3,703,052.16$			
(6,678,465.50)$		

569.16$															Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2023	AA2	PH3C

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24
Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

44



Date Requisition	# Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal	Year	2024

10/13/23 30A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Invoice	#2034004-1	-	Direct	Owner	Purchase	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Sept.23 145,945.20$								 145,945.20$				
10/30/23 31A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#7	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	September	2023 1,376,256.55$					 1,376,256.55$	
10/30/23 32A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210378	-	Signal	Warrant	&	Structural	Analysis	(WA#76)	-	Sept.23 1,430.00$		 		
10/30/23 33A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Invoice	#2034004-2	-	Direct	Owner	Purchase	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Sept.23 68,059.80$		 			 68,059.80$		 			
10/30/23 34A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210624	-	Trailmark	PH12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	September	2023 7,306.34$		 		
10/30/23 35A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Invs	#2041098	&	2024834	-	Direct	Owner	Purchase	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Oct.23 2,537.00$		 		
12/1/23 36A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210838	-	Trailmark	PH12	Construction	Docs	(WA#49)	-	Oct.23 994.00$		 		
12/1/23 37A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211122	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	Oct.23 6,027.25$		 		
12/1/23 38A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#210887	-	Signal	Warrant	&	Structural	Analysis	(WA#76)		-	Oct.23 1,450.00$		 		
12/1/23 39A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#8	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	October	2023	(Partial) 526,427.57$		 			 526,427.57$				
11/30/23 39A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#8	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	October	2023	(Partial) 48,655.59$		 			 48,655.59$		 			
12/20/23 40A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Sept.	-	Oct.23 353,774.15$		 			 353,774.15$				
12/19/23 41A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Invoice	#2047638/CM126087	-	Direct	Purchase	of	Materials	-	Nov.23 1,486.00$		 		
12/19/23 42A American	Precast	Structures,	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Aug.	-	Nov.23 89,037.00$		 			 89,037.00$		 			
12/19/23 43A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211602	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	Nov.23 7,591.70$		 		
12/19/23 44A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211351	-	Signal	Warrant	&	Structural	Analysis	(WA#76)		-	Nov.23 9,872.50$		 		
12/19/23 45A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#9	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	November	2023 1,152,245.98$					 1,152,245.98$	
1/25/24 46A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Dec.23 3,466.00$		 		
1/25/24 47A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#10	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	December	2023 621,468.03$		 			 621,468.03$				
1/25/24 48A County	Materials	Corporation Invoice	#170217-01	-	Direct	Purhcase	of	Materials	-	October	2023 2,660.00$		 		
1/25/24 49A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Dec.23 10,985.50$		 			
1/25/24 50A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211768	-	Signal	Warrant	&	Structural	Analysis	(WA#76)		-	Dec.23 1,172.50$		 		
1/25/24 51A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#211895	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	Dec.23 8,379.75$		 		
3/4/24 52A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Invoices	#2056916/2056922/2056243	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Jan.24 16,043.60$		 			
3/4/24 53A American	Precast	Structures,	LLC Invoice	#8111	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Jan.24 6,240.00$		 		
3/4/24 54A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#11	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Jan.24 661,999.20$		 			 661,999.20$				
2/15/24 55A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212483	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	Jan.24	(Partial) 2,354.82$		 		
3/4/24 55A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212483	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	Jan.24	(Partial) 3,343.93$		 		
3/4/24 56A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212189	-	Signal	Warrant	&	Structure	Analysis	(WA#76)	-	Jan.24 502.50$		 		
3/4/24 57A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#212220	-	Trailmark	Drive	at	Pacetti	Road	(WA#79)	-	Jan.24 16,180.00$		 			
4/10/24 58A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Jan.-Feb.24 37,813.40$		 			
4/10/24 59A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#12	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Feb.24 1,021,237.64$					 1,021,237.64$	
4/10/24 60A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#212871	&	212696	-	Trailmark	EP	PH12/Signal	Warrant	-	Feb.24 10,026.25$		 			
4/22/24 61A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#13	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Mar.24 931,455.98$		 			 931,455.98$				
4/22/24 62A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invs	#213306/213150/213133	-	Trailmark	EP	PH12/Signal	Warrant	-	Feb.24 22,287.26$		 			
4/22/24 63A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Jan.-Apr.24 6,233.75$		 		
5/30/24 64A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Direct	Owner	Purchase	Invoices	-	Trailmark	East	Parcel	PH12	-	Apr.24 11,061.60$		 			
5/30/24 65A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#14	-	Trailmark	PH12	-	Apr.24 1,052,395.95$					 1,052,395.95$	
5/30/24 66A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoices	#213859	&	213617	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	-	Apr.24 16,808.30$		 			
6/20/24 67A American	Precast	Structures,	LLC Invoices	#7557,	8328,	8876	&	9238	-	Direct	Purchases	of	Materials 32,079.00$		 			
6/20/24 68A Ferguson	Enterprises	LLC Invoice	#2085496	-	Direct	Purchase	of	Materials	-	May	2024 1,273.70$		 		
6/20/24 69A Jax	Utilities	Management,	Inc. Application	#15	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	-	May	2024 298,064.87$		 			
6/20/24 70A England-Thims	&	Miller,	Inc. Invoice	#214261	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	CEI	(WA#70)	-	May	2024 12,996.25$		 			
6/20/24 71A Onsight	Industries,	LLC Invoice	#414338	-	Trailmark	Phase	12	Mailboxes	-	June	2024 34,359.00$		 			

TOTAL 8,641,985.41$			 8,048,958.64$	

Fiscal	Year	2024
10/2/23 Interest 10,701.72$		 		
11/1/23 Interest 8,832.73$		 		
11/30/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#1-2023 48,655.59$		 		
12/1/23 Interest 2,333.93$		 		
12/19/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#3-2023 1,260,233.18$					
12/20/23 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#2-2023 353,774.15$		 			
1/2/24 Interest 10.47$		 			
1/25/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#4-2023 624,934.03$		 			
1/25/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#5-2023 23,197.75$		 		
2/1/24 Interest 10.42$		 			
3/1/24 Interest 4.73$		 		
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#6-2023 22,283.60$		 		
3/4/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#7-2023 682,025.63$		 			
4/1/24 Interest 0.02$		 		
4/10/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#8-2023 1,069,077.29$					
4/22/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#9-2023 959,976.99$		 			
5/1/24 Interest 0.02$		 		
5/30/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#10-2023 1,080,265.85$					
6/3/24 Interest 0.02$		 		
6/20/24 Wire SMCIG	FY24	Funding	Request	#11-2023 378,772.82$		 			
7/1/24 Interest 0.02$		 		
8/1/24 Interest 0.02$		 		
9/3/24 Interest 0.02$		 		

TOTAL 6,525,091.00$			

2,116,899.26$			
6,525,091.00$			
(8,641,985.41)$		

4.85$		 		

Requisitions	Paid	thru	9/30/24

Remaining	Acquisition/Construction	Fund

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Improvement	Revenue	Bonds,	Series	2023	AA3	PH3

Acquisition/Construction	Fund	at	9/30/23
Interest	Earned	thru	9/30/24

45



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



Gross Assessments 1,978,835.10$         228,093.84$            467,277.19$            739,751.68$            439,400.00$            610,680.65$            490,278.11$            4,954,316.57$           
Net Assessments 1,860,104.99$         214,408.21$            439,240.56$            695,366.58$            413,036.00$            574,039.81$            460,861.42$            4,657,057.58$           

39.94% 4.60% 9.43% 14.93% 8.87% 12.33% 9.90% 100.00%

Date Distribution Gross Amount Commissions
Discount/ 

Penalty Interest Net Receipts O&M Portion
2015                

Debt Service
2016A             

Debt Service
2017A             

Debt Service
2020                

Debt Service
2021 AA3 PH1 

Debt Service
2021 AA2 PH3B  

Debt Service Total

11/3/23 ACH $12,740.14 $241.43 $668.88 $0.00 $11,829.83 $4,725.03 $544.64 $1,115.76 $1,766.37 $1,049.19 $1,458.17 $1,170.68 $11,829.84
11/17/23 ACH $125,116.18 $2,402.23 $5,004.62 $0.00 $117,709.33 $47,015.03 $5,419.27 $11,102.01 $17,575.72 $10,439.68 $14,509.13 $11,648.49 $117,709.33
11/22/23 ACH $232,977.38 $4,473.17 $9,319.05 $0.00 $219,185.16 $87,546.14 $10,091.16 $20,672.93 $32,727.54 $19,439.61 $27,017.28 $21,690.52 $219,185.18
12/14/23 ACH $696,337.00 $13,369.67 $27,853.71 $0.00 $655,113.62 $261,663.10 $30,161.05 $61,788.47 $97,818.01 $58,102.25 $80,750.84 $64,829.90 $655,113.62
12/21/23 ACH $993,304.83 $19,071.46 $39,731.94 $0.00 $934,501.43 $373,255.16 $43,023.90 $88,139.54 $139,534.69 $82,881.25 $115,188.83 $92,478.06 $934,501.43
01/09/24 ACH $2,073,562.82 $39,812.41 $82,942.43 $0.00 $1,950,807.98 $779,184.63 $89,814.06 $183,994.72 $291,284.07 $173,017.81 $240,461.16 $193,051.54 $1,950,807.99
01/12/24 ACH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,936.09 $11,936.09 $4,767.47 $549.53 $1,125.78 $1,782.23 $1,058.62 $1,471.27 $1,181.19 $11,936.09
02/12/24 ACH $447,564.63 $8,619.30 $16,599.39 $0.00 $422,345.94 $168,691.88 $19,444.56 $39,834.48 $63,062.41 $37,458.00 $52,059.35 $41,795.26 $422,345.94
03/19/24 ACH $137,830.44 $2,703.63 $2,649.00 $0.00 $132,477.81 $52,913.80 $6,099.20 $12,494.93 $19,780.87 $11,749.50 $16,329.52 $13,109.98 $132,477.80
04/10/24 ACH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,541.10 $6,541.10 $2,612.62 $301.15 $616.94 $976.68 $580.13 $806.27 $647.31 $6,541.10
06/11/24 ACH $101,137.11 $2,083.42 $0.00 $3,034.13 $102,087.82 $40,775.55 $4,700.06 $9,628.64 $15,243.20 $9,054.20 $12,583.58 $10,102.59 $102,087.82
06/27/24 ACH $135,300.02 $2,702.29 $185.51 $0.00 $132,412.22 $52,887.61 $6,096.18 $12,488.75 $19,771.07 $11,743.68 $16,321.44 $13,103.49 $132,412.22
07/29/24 ACH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $990.12 $990.12 $395.47 $45.58 $93.39 $147.84 $87.81 $122.04 $97.98 $990.11

TOTAL 4,955,870.55$      95,479.01$             184,954.53$           22,501.44$             4,697,938.45$         1,876,433.49$        216,290.34$            443,096.34$            701,470.70$            416,661.73$            579,078.88$            464,906.99$            4,697,938.47$          

100.88% Net Percent Collected
(40,880.87)$             Balance Remaining to Collect

Six Mile Creek Investment Group LLC $560,736.20 $67,500.00 $52,761.20 $149,100.00 $128,646.12 $162,728.88

Date Due Check Net Amount O&M O&M Series 2021 Series 2023 Series 2023
Received Date No. Assessed Received Direct Platted Direct Unplatted AA3 PH2 Fund AA2 PH3 Fund AA2 PH3C Fund
10/23/23 10/15/23 2323 $30,065.30 $30,065.30 $16,875.00 $13,190.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1/31/24 1/1/24 2362 $30,065.30 $30,065.30 $16,875.00 $13,190.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4/24/24 4/1/24 2397 $338,397.80 $338,397.80 $16,875.00 $20,530.60 $88,200.00 $93,950.72 $118,841.48

7/1/24 $30,065.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
9/30/24 $132,142.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$560,736.20 $398,528.40 $50,625.00 $46,911.20 $88,200.00 $93,950.72 $118,841.48

TAX ROLL ASSESSMENTS

DIRECT BILLED ASSESSMENTS

Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Special Assessment Receipts
Fiscal Year 2024

24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

F. 



Fund Date Check	No.'s Amount
General	Fund	

9/4/24 396-408 21,925.31$												
9/9/24 409-413 11,565.31$												
9/17/24 414-420 98,792.93$												
9/23/24 421 3,923.29$														
10/1/24 422-433 52,374.97$												
10/15/24 434-446 1,793,028.38$							
10/21/24 447-458 51,117.56$												
10/28/24 459-469 185,422.26$										

2,218,150.01$							

Reverie	Fund
9/4/24 216-224 37,926.17$												
9/10/24 225-231 14,096.27$												
9/17/24 232-237 50,258.39$												
9/24/24 238-240 3,958.19$														
9/30/24 241-243 2,469.53$														
10/15/24 244-249 20,702.71$												
10/21/24 250-258 18,449.45$												
10/28/24 259-262 16,933.96$												

164,794.67$										

Payroll
September	2024
Darren	S.	Glynn 50219 184.70$																	
Gregg	F.	Kern 50220 184.70$																	

Michelle	M.	Sutton 50221 184.70$																	
Steven	J.	Pasiuk 50222 184.70$																	
Wendy	S.	Hartley 50223 184.70$																	

923.50$																	

TOTAL 2,383,868.18$	

Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Summary	of	Invoices

September	1,	2024	-	October	31,	2024



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/04/24 00065 7/02/24 11479875 202407 330-53800-54000                                     *              435.00
ANNUAL MUSIC LIC FEE-2024

BROADCAST MUSIC, INC.                                             435.00 000396
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00118 8/01/24 66507263 202408 330-53800-46800                                     *              296.55

LAWN CARE SERVICE AUG24
9/01/24 67868903 202409 330-53800-46800                                     *              296.55

LAWN CARE SERVICE SEP24
BUG OUT SERVICE                                                   593.10 000397

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00170 8/29/24 9056768  202408 320-53800-46600                                     *              957.00

RPLC VALVE ON BACKCREEK
8/30/24 9059546  202408 320-53800-46600                                     *            1,142.86

DRP 2DEAD PINE/1LEAN TREE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             2,099.86 000398

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00237 8/26/24 2283     202409 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,800.00

POOL SERVICE SEP24
8/26/24 2283A    202408 330-53800-46501                                     *              603.82

2GAL ACID/12LB BICB/LADDR
C BUSS ENTERPRISES INC                                          2,403.82 000399

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00253 8/23/24 11       202408 330-53800-46000                                     *            1,800.00

RETROFIT/RPLC 5 LGHT-GYM
JUSTIN GARY COOPER DBA                                          1,800.00 000400

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00022 8/29/24 215474   202408 310-51300-31100                                     *            2,325.00

GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#78)
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                     2,325.00 000401

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00173 8/07/24 1751     202408 320-53800-12300                                     *              165.30

EVENT MONITOR 08/11-18/24
ELITE AMENITIES NE FLORIDA LLC                                    165.30 000402

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00218 8/27/24 6850870  202408 330-53800-46501                                     *              922.00

3384.5LB BULK AZONE/FRGHT
HAWKINS INC                                                       922.00 000403

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00031 9/01/24 619282   202409 310-51700-71000                                     *            2,357.59

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#20
9/01/24 619282   202409 310-51700-72000                                     *              501.75

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#20
MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.                                2,859.34 000404

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00098 9/04/24 51290    202409 300-15500-10000                                     *            1,719.88

ROOM RENT 10/09/24,SPEAKR
RENAISSANCE WORLD GOLF VILLAGE                                  1,719.88 000405

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/04/24 00024 8/19/24 556887-1 202408 330-53800-43100                                     *            2,492.55
805 TRAILMARK DR - AUG24

8/19/24 556887-1 202408 330-53800-43100                                     *               37.51
295 BACK CREEK DR - AUG24

ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   2,530.06 000406
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00039 8/28/24 8926-B   202408 320-53800-46400                                     *              802.00

PND#32-7GAL DYE/2GAL SEAL
9/01/24 8928-B   202409 320-53800-46400                                     *            3,235.00

MTHLY LAKE MAINT SEP24
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              4,037.00 000407

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00084 9/01/24 24-56530 202409 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALARM MNTR SEP
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 000408

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/09/24 00150 9/05/24 7537     202409 320-53800-47600                                     *              375.00

PRS.WSH-WALKWY/KAYAK DECK
ALL ABOUT WATER, LLC                                              375.00 000409

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/09/24 00254 8/10/24 1874     202408 330-53800-49100                                     *            4,000.00

RESERVE ANALYSIS PRJ#2094
COMMUNITY ADVISORS LLC                                          4,000.00 000410

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/09/24 00162 9/01/24 2409-TSM 202409 320-53800-47700                                     *              206.00

PET STATION MAINT SEP24
DOODY DADDY                                                       206.00 000411

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/09/24 00001 9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,356.67

MANAGEMENT FEES SEP24
9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-35200                                     *              100.00

WEBSITE ADMIN SEP24
9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

INFORMATION TECH SEP24
9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-31300                                     *            1,000.00

DISSEMIANTION FEE SEP24
9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-51000                                     *               10.60

OFFICE SUPPLIES
9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-42500                                     *              484.95

COPIES
9/01/24 186      202409 310-51300-41000                                     *              109.93

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,212.15 000412

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/09/24 00218 9/04/24 6854629  202409 330-53800-46501                                     *            1,772.16

4254.8LB AZONE/648LB ACID
HAWKINS INC                                                     1,772.16 000413

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/17/24 00170 9/04/24 9064160  202408 320-53800-46200                                     *            2,355.01
LANDSCAPE MNT AUG24 DIFF.

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             2,355.01 000414
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00019 9/04/24 25243    202409 300-15500-10000                                     *            7,661.00

FY25 GEN.LIAB/PUBLIC OFFC
9/04/24 25243    202409 300-15500-10000                                     *           74,390.86

FY25 PROPERTY INSURANCE
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                    82,051.86 000415

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00038 9/10/24 1083155E 202408 330-53800-43200                                     *               22.61

801 TRAILMARK DR - AUG24
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                22.61 000416

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00235 8/29/24 6642255  202408 310-51300-48000                                     *               55.04

NOT.RULE DVLPMNT 09/11/24
8/29/24 6642255  202408 310-51300-48000                                     *              138.00

NOT.RULEMAKING 09/11/24
8/29/24 6642255  202408 310-51300-48000                                     *               84.96

NOT.OF FY25 MEETING DATES
GANNETT FLORIDA LOCALIQ                                           278.00 000417

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00214 9/17/24 8231     202409 320-53800-46700                                     *            2,705.00

JANITORIAL SERVICE SEP24
KEEN ON KLEAN LLC                                               2,705.00 000418

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00222 9/11/24 1531     202408 320-53800-12200                                     *            9,500.00

ONSITE AMENITY - AUG24
9/11/24 1531A    202409 320-53800-12200                                     *              970.83

ADDITIONAL PAYROLL SEP24
9/11/24 1532     202405 330-53800-41000                                     *               40.00

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE DIR.
9/11/24 1532     202405 330-53800-49100                                     *               78.70

MILEAGE-FAM.MOVIE/TAFFY
9/11/24 1532A    202406 330-53800-41000                                     *               40.00

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE DIR.
9/11/24 1532A    202406 330-53800-49100                                     *               95.56

MILEAGE-SUPERHERO/BINGO
9/11/24 1532B    202407 330-53800-41000                                     *               40.00

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE DIR.
9/11/24 1532B    202407 330-53800-49100                                     *               43.24

MILEAGE-80S NIGHT/SUNDAES
9/11/24 1532C    202408 330-53800-41000                                     *               40.00

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE DIR.
9/11/24 1532C    202408 330-53800-49100                                     *               82.12

MILEAGE-BBLE/BTS/DOG/POPS
ONPLACE LLC                                                    10,930.45 000419

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/17/24 00217 9/01/24 411603   202409 330-53800-46000                                     *              450.00
RPLC LIGHTNING DMG CAMS

VILLAGE KEY AND ALARM INC                                         450.00 000420
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/23/24 00170 9/19/24 9071603  202409 320-53800-46200                                     *            2,175.52

INST.FALL FLOWERS/SOIL MX
9/19/24 9071630  202409 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,136.37

RPLC 2 CLBHS DECODER/SLND
9/19/24 9071634  202409 320-53800-46300                                     *              611.40

RPLC MAIN ENT.DECODER/SOL
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             3,923.29 000421

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00255 9/18/24 091824-A 202409 330-53800-46000                                     *              650.00

RMV/INST.2 BACKBOARD/DUMP
KITE & KEY HOLDING DBA ASSEMBLYMEN                                650.00 000422

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00170 9/25/24 9089991  202409 320-53800-46200                                     *           30,583.28

MTHLY MAINTENANCE SEP24
9/27/24 9096148  202409 320-53800-46600                                     *            1,821.44

RMV KAYAK PATH TREE/WILLO
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                            32,404.72 000423

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00237 9/25/24 2422     202410 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,800.00

POOL SERVICE - OCT24
9/25/24 2422A    202409 330-53800-46501                                     *               99.83

36LB BICARB/TILE SOAP/WAL
C BUSS ENTERPRISES INC                                          1,899.83 000424

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00252 8/01/24 235491   202408 330-53800-46000                                     *              210.00

TOOK PIC/COLLECT INFO FNT
8/01/24 235492   202408 330-53800-46000                                     *              755.00

INSTALL 2 NEW FAUCETS
8/01/24 235493   202408 330-53800-46000                                     *              466.00

VAC URINAL/ACID DRAIN/RPR
CRABTREE PLUMBING INC                                           1,431.00 000425

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00162 10/01/24 2410-TSM 202410 320-53800-47700                                     *              206.00

PET STATION MAINT - OCT24
DOODY DADDY                                                       206.00 000426

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00249 9/06/24 3        202407 320-53800-47200                                     *              200.00

80'S DECADE DANCE-7/20/24
9/06/24 4        202410 320-53800-47200                                     *              200.00

HALLOWEEN PARTY 10/19/24
GARY A WHITAKER                                                   400.00 000427

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/01/24 00181 9/23/24 3453270  202406 310-51300-31500                                     *            2,088.00
MTG/RFP FIELD SVC/REV.PLT

9/23/24 3453270A 202407 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,903.14
MTG/LNDSCP AGR/O&M ASMNT

KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  3,991.14 000428
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00256 8/31/24 ONSITE8. 202408 320-53800-12100                                     *            2,714.25

SKIP-PYROLL/BENEFIT AUG24
9/15/24 ONSITE-2 202409 320-53800-12100                                     *            2,631.75

MTHLY ONSITE 09/01-09/15
REALMANAGE LLC                                                  5,346.00 000429

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00024 9/19/24 556887-1 202409 330-53800-43100                                     *            1,551.06

805 TRAILMARK DR - SEP24
9/19/24 556887-1 202409 330-53800-43100                                     *               39.38

295 BACK CREEK DR - SEP24
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   1,590.44 000430

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00039 10/01/24 9096-B   202410 320-53800-46400                                     *            4,220.00

MTHLY LAKE MAINT OCT24
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              4,220.00 000431

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00084 10/01/24 24-57073 202410 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALARM MNTR OCT
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 000432

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/01/24 00245 9/24/24 9055/4   202409 330-53800-46000                                     *              200.89

BATTERY/INSECT KILL/FBRZE
TURNER WGV LLC                                                    200.89 000433

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00240 6/06/24 9448     202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            4,500.00

DIRECT PURCH.OF MAT-JUN24
6/06/24 9449     202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            6,000.00

DIRECT PURCH.OF MAT-JUN24
7/11/24 9780     202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            6,240.00

DIRECT PURCH.OF MAT-JUL24
AMERICAN PRECAST STRUCTURES, LLC                               16,740.00 000434

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00170 9/27/24 9096206  202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            6,043.55

TRAILMARK DR LNDSCP-SEP24
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             6,043.55 000435

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00022 8/29/24 215457   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            8,662.25

TRAILMARK EAST PRCL PH3
8/29/24 215490   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *           15,530.66

TRAILMARK PH12 CEI(WA#70)

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/30/24 215525   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *           10,720.00
TRLMRK DR-PACETTI RD-DSGN

ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                    34,912.91 000436
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00127 9/09/24 1203027  202410 300-13100-10100                                     *              500.00

PACETTI ROAD MAST ARM GEO
ECS FLORIDA, LLC                                                  500.00 000437

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00241 7/15/24 2097383  202410 300-13100-10100                                     *              975.00

DIRECT PURCH.OF MAT-JUL24
8/15/24 2104356  202410 300-13100-10100                                     *           23,121.00

DIRECT PURCH.OF MAT-AUG24
8/15/24 2104462  202410 300-13100-10100                                     *              300.00

DIRECT PURCH.OF MAT-AUG24
FERGUSON WATERWORKS                                            24,396.00 000438

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00185 8/27/24 APP#16   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *        1,330,220.88

TRAILMARK EAST PRCL PH3
8/27/24 APP#18   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *           52,454.25

TRAILMARK PHASE 12-AUG24
9/25/24 APP#17   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *          286,391.75

TRAILMARK EAST PRCL PH3
9/25/24 APP#19   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *           30,255.60

TRAILMARK PHASE 12-SEP24
JAX UTILITIES MANAGEMENT INC                                1,699,322.48 000439

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00181 9/23/24 3453279  202410 300-13100-10100                                     *              164.50

PROJECT CONSTRUCT - JUL24
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                    164.50 000440

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00104 7/08/24 416216   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            1,450.00

TRAILMARK PHASE 12 MAILBX
ONSIGHT INDUSTRIES LLC DBA                                      1,450.00 000441

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00164 9/30/24 APP#2A   202410 300-13100-10100                                     *            6,152.00

TRAILMARK PH12 LIFT STAT.
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                                6,152.00 000442

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00038 10/08/24 1098823E 202409 330-53800-43200                                     *               22.60

801 TRAILMARK DR - SEP24
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                22.60 000443

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00066 6/21/24 32534    202406 320-53800-47400                                     *              115.00

RPLC TREADMILL SCRN CNSLE
ALWAYS IMPROVING LLC                                              115.00 000444

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   7
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/15/24 00257 9/30/24 101824   202410 320-53800-47200                                     *              350.00
MAGIC SHOW - 10/18/24

WILLIAM K GWALTNEY                                                350.00 000445
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00031 10/01/24 619312   202410 310-51700-71000                                     *            2,373.90

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#21
10/01/24 619312   202410 310-51700-72000                                     *              485.44

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#21
MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.                                2,859.34 000446

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00170 10/01/24 9102257  202410 320-53800-46600                                     *            3,870.00

STRM CLN-RMV DBRS/BLW CRB
10/08/24 9105115  202410 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,062.27

RPLC BACKFLOW/RPZ/WRP/INS
10/15/24 9107966  202410 320-53800-46600                                     *            2,750.00

HURRICANE MILTON-RMV DBRS
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                             7,682.27 000447

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00254 8/09/24 1873     202408 330-53800-49100                                     *            2,900.00

RESERVE ANALYSIS PRJ#2095
COMMUNITY ADVISORS LLC                                          2,900.00 000448

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00008 10/01/24 91007    202410 310-51300-54000                                     *              175.00

SPECIAL DISTRICT FEE-FY25
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY                                175.00 000449

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00022 10/03/24 215982   202409 310-51300-31100                                     *            2,851.25

GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#78)
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                     2,851.25 000450

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00001 9/15/24 187      202410 310-51300-31700                                     *           10,000.00

FY25 ASSESSMENT ROLL CERT
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,750.00

MANAGEMENT FEES OCT24
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-35200                                     *              105.00

WEBSITE ADMIN OCT24
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-35100                                     *              157.50

INFORMATION TECH OCT24
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-31300                                     *            1,060.00

DISSEMINATION FEE OCT24
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-51000                                     *                2.50

OFFICE SUPPLIES
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-42000                                     *                5.30

POSTAGE
10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-42500                                     *              168.75

COPIES

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   8
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/01/24 188      202410 310-51300-41000                                     *               81.34
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                               15,330.39 000451
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00235 9/04/24 6701166  202409 310-51300-48000                                     *               65.92

NOT.OF MEETING 09/11/24
GANNETT FLORIDA LOCALIQ                                            65.92 000452

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00218 10/15/24 6890818  202410 330-53800-46501                                     *            2,089.62

6817.4LB AZONE/486LB ACID
HAWKINS INC                                                     2,089.62 000453

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00214 9/28/24 8287     202409 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,725.00

STEAM CLN BATHROOM/FLOOR
KEEN ON KLEAN LLC                                               1,725.00 000454

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00222 10/15/24 1557     202409 330-53800-41000                                     *               40.00

CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE DIR.
10/15/24 1557     202409 330-53800-49100                                     *               85.04

MILEAGE-MOVIE NIGHT/BINGO
10/15/24 1557     202409 320-53800-49100                                     *                9.98

ONPLACE 10% FEE - SEP24
10/15/24 1557     202409 320-53800-49100                                     *               99.84

MOO-LD BUSINESS CARD REPL
ONPLACE LLC                                                       234.86 000455

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00256 9/30/24 ONSITE-2 202409 320-53800-12100                                     *            3,819.75

MTHLY ONSITE 09/16-09/30
REALMANAGE LLC                                                  3,819.75 000456

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00084 9/30/24 24-57020 202409 330-53800-46000                                     *            2,512.50

SVC CALL-RPR LGHT.DMG BRD
9/30/24 24-57028 202409 330-53800-46000                                     *            8,231.00

RPLC CTRL PNLS/LAPTOP/KIT
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                            10,743.50 000457

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00164 4/15/24 202934   202404 320-53800-46600                                     *            3,500.00

TORNADO CLEANUP-04/11/24
TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                                3,500.00 000458

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00170 10/21/24 9110547  202410 320-53800-47600                                     *              560.00

HURRICANE-RMV DMGED TREE
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC.                               560.00 000459

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00258 10/16/24 36098021 202410 300-15500-10000                                     *            1,011.03

CORN MAZE/GENERATOR 11/23
BOUNCE IT OUT EVENTS                                            1,011.03 000460

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   9
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/28/24 00237 10/25/24 2559     202410 300-15500-10000                                     *            1,800.00
POOL SERVICES NOV24

10/25/24 2559     202410 330-53800-46501                                     *              219.86
22LB TRICHLOR/2.5GAL BLCH

10/25/24 2559     202410 320-53800-47800                                     *              300.00
HURRICANE-CLEANUP HEL&MIL

C BUSS ENTERPRISES INC                                          2,319.86 000461
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00096 10/16/24 21       202410 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00

REV.AMORT SER2015 11/01
10/16/24 21       202410 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00

REV.AMORT SER2016A 11/01
10/16/24 21       202410 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00

REV.AMORT SER2017A 11/01
10/16/24 21       202410 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00

REV.AMORT SER2020 11/01
10/16/24 21       202410 310-51300-31300                                     *              100.00

REV.AMORT SER2021 11/01
DISCLOSURE SERVICES LLC                                           500.00 000462

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00173 10/23/24 1775     202410 320-53800-12300                                     *              110.20

EVENT MONITOR 10/12/24
10/23/24 1775     202410 320-53800-12300                                     *              137.75

EVENT MONITOR 10/19/24
ELITE AMENITIES NE FLORIDA LLC                                    247.95 000463

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00249 10/20/24 6        202410 300-15500-10000                                     *              200.00

MUSICAL BINGO 11/01/24
GARY A WHITAKER                                                   200.00 000464

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00214 10/22/24 8345     202410 320-53800-46700                                     *            2,945.00

JANITORIAL SERVICE OCT24
KEEN ON KLEAN LLC                                               2,945.00 000465

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00222 10/23/24 1564     202410 320-53800-12200                                     *            9,500.00

ONSITE AMENITY OCT24
10/23/24 1564     202410 320-53800-12200                                     *            1,208.68

ADDITIONAL PAYROLL OCT24
ONPLACE LLC                                                    10,708.68 000466

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00055 10/28/24 10282024 202410 300-20700-11000                                     *          138,773.00

REIMB.CHECK-CURB DAMAGE
SIX MILE CREEK CDD C/O USBANK                                 138,773.00 000467

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00217 8/27/24 410785A  202408 330-53800-46000                                     *              244.99

ADD 3 PORT GIGABIT SWITCH
VILLAGE KEY AND ALARM INC                                         244.99 000468

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE  10
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK C GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/29/24 00164 3/29/24 61201817 202403 320-53800-46600                                     *           15,124.50
LFTSTATN&BRDGE-PINE/BAHIA

3/29/24 61201818 202403 320-53800-46600                                     *            9,856.00
COMM.AREA-LAGER/HANDWATER

3/29/24 61201819 202403 320-53800-46600                                     *            2,931.25
LFTSTATN-SILT FENCE RMVL

TREE AMIGOS OUTDOOR SERVICES INC                               27,911.75 000469
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK C              2,218,150.01

TOTAL FOR REGISTER            2,218,150.01

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 













































































































































































































































REQUISITION NO. 84 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 84

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

ETM 
First Citizens 
ABA Routing # 
Jacksonville, FL 
Account # - England, Thims & Miller, Inc 

$8,662.25 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable):

Trailmark East Parcel - Phase 3 CEI (WA#73) Invoice 215457 (August 2024) 

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$ 8,662.25 Assessment Area 2 - Phase 3C Subaccount 

$___ _  Assessment Area 3 - Phase 3 Subaccount 











REQUISITION NO. 74A 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 74A

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

ETM 
First Citizens 
ABA Routing # 
Jacksonville, FL 
Account # - England, Thims & Miller, Inc 

$ 15,530.66 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable):

Trailmark Phase 12 - CEI (WA#70) Invoice 215490 (August 2024)

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$ ___ _ Assessment Area 2 - Phase 3C Subaccount 

$ 15,530.66 Assessment Area 3 -Phase 3 Subaccount 





























REQUISITION NO. 76A 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 76A

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

ETM 
First Citizens 
ABA Routing # 
Jacksonville, FL 
Account # - England, Thims & Miller, Inc 

$10,720.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable):
Trailmark Drive at Pacetti Road-Traffic Signal Design Services (WA#79) Invoice
215525 (August 2024)

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$ Assessment Area 2 - Phase 3C Subaccount 
--- -

$ 10. 720.00 Assessment Area 3 - Phase 3 Subaccount 















REQUISITION NO. 87 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June I, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 87

(B) Wire Instructions;
Ferguson Enterprises, LLC
Bank of America
900 W. Trade Street, Charlotte, NC 28173 

Account name: Ferguson Enterprises, LLC 
Account number: 
ABA/routing number (ACHs only): 
ABA/routing number (wires only):
Swift Code (international wires only): BOFAUS3N

(C) Amount Payable: $ 24,396.00 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable): Direct Owner Purchase - Trailmark East Parcel
Phase 3

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$ 24.396.00 Assessment Area 2 - Phase 3C Subaccount 

$ Assessment Area 3 - Phase 3 Subaccount 
-----

The undersigned hereby further certifies that obligations in the stated amount set 
forth above have been incurred by the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a 
proper charge against the 2023 Acquisition and Construction Account and the subaccount, if 
any, referenced above, that each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection 
with the acquisition and construction of the 2023 Project and each represents a Cost of the 2023 
Project, and has not previously been paid. 













REQUISITION NO. 83 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized tenns used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 83

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

Wire Tran sf er Instructions: 
Jax Utilities Management, Inc. 
Truist Bank 
214 North Tryon St. 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
ABA:  
Beneficiary: JAX UTILITIES MANAGEMENT INC 
(Business Account Title) Account#:               
Routing#:  

$ 1,330,220.88 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable): Trailmark East Parcel Phase 3, Application No. 16
(August 2024)

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$_1,330,220_!? Assessment Area 2 -Phase 3C Subaccount 

Assessment Area 3 -Phase 3 Subaccount 

The undersigned hereby certifies that obligations in the stated amount set forth above have 
been incurred by the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
2023 Acquisition and Construction Account and the subaccount, if any, referenced above, that 
each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and construction 



















REQUISITION NO. 73A 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized tenns used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 73A

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

Wire Transfer Instructions: 
Jax Utilities Management, Inc. 
Truist Bank 
214 North Tryon St. 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
ABA:  
Beneficiary: JAX UTILITIES MANAGEMENT INC 
(Business Account Title) Account#:                 
Routing#:  

$ 52,454.25 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable): Trailmark Phase 12, Application No. 18 (August 2024)

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made: 

$ Assessment Area 2 - Phase 3C Subaccount 
-----

$ 52,454.25 Assessment Area 3 - Phase 3 Subaccount 

The undersigned hereby certifies that obligations in the stated amount set forth above have 
been incurred by the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
2023 Acquisition and Construction Account and the subaccount, if any, referenced above, that 
each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and construction 

1 























REQUISITION NO. 88 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July I, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 88

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

Wire Transfer Instructions: 
Jax Utilities Management, Inc. 
Truist Bank 
214 North Tryon St. 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
ABA:  
Beneficiary: JAX UTILITIES MANAGEMENT INC 
(Business Account Title) Account#:                 
Routing#:  

$ 286,391.75 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable): Trailmark East Parcel Phase 3, Application No. 17
(September 2024)

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$_286.391.75 Assessment Area 2-Phase 3C Subaccount 

$ ___ _ Assessment Area 3 - Phase 3 Subaccount 

The undersigned hereby certifies that obligations in the stated amount set forth above have 
been incurred by the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
2023 Acquisition and Construction Account and the subaccount, if any, referenced above, that 
each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and construction 

1 

















il:tl8S 
'Joo· IJ)·IO\ 

REQUISITION NO. 77 A 
(2023 Acquisition and Construction Account) 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

$10,515,000 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2023 Project Area) 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007 (the "Master 
Indenture"), as amended and supplemented by the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture between 
the District and Trustee, dated as of June 1, 2023 (the Master Indenture as amended and 
supplemented is hereinafter referred to as the "Indenture") (all capitalized terms used herein shall 
have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 77A

(B) Name of Payee:

(C) Amount Payable:

Wire Transfer Instructions: 
Jax Utilities Management, Inc. 
Truist Bank 
214 North Tryon St. 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
ABA:  
Beneficiary: JAX UTILITIES MANAGEMENT INC 
(Business Account Title) Account#:                     
Routing #:  

$ 30,255.60 

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due and
payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs oflssuance,
if applicable): Trailmark Phase 12, Application No. 19 (September 2024)

(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement is to be made:

$ Assessment Area 2 -Phase 3C Subaccount 
-----

$ 30.255.60 Assessment Area 3 -Phase 3 Subaccount 

The undersigned hereby certifies that obligations in the stated amount set forth above have 
been incurred by the District, that each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 
2023 Acquisition and Construction Account and the subaccount, if any, referenced above, that 
each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition and construction 

1 





















REQUISITION NO. 90 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

(ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA} 

$2,640,000 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 202l(AA3, Phase 2) 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U. S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of July 1, 2007, as supplemented by a Tenth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2021 ( collectively, the "Indenture"; all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 90

(B) Name of Payee: Kutak Rock, 
LLP ABA# 
First National Bank of Omaha 

A/C #  

(C) Amount Payable: Total: $ 164.50

(D) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount
is due and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or,
state Costs of Issuance, if applicable): Professional services related to
project construction- Invoice 3453279 (June-July 2024)

(E) Fund or Account from which disbursement to be made:

Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Series 202l(Assessment Area 3, Phase 2) 

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the District,

2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Phase 1 Acquisition
and Construction Account;

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition
and/or construction of the Project;

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Project which has not previously been
paid.

-1-
57170458;1 





KUTAK ROCK LLP 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 

Telephone 404-222-4600 
Facsimile 404-222-4654 

Federal ID 47-0597598 

September 23, 2024 

Six Mile Creek CDD 
Governmental Management Services - St. Augustine 
Suite 114 
475 West Town Place 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Re: Six Mile Creek CDD - Project Construction 

For Professional Legal Services Rendered 

06/20/24 

07/26/24 

W. Haber

W.Haber

TOTAL HOURS 

0.20 

0.50 

0.70 

TOT AL FOR SERVICES RENDERED 

TOT AL CURRENT AMOUNT DUE 

47.00 

117.50 

Check Remit To: 

Kutak Rock LLP 
PO Box 30057 

Omaha, NE 68103-1157 

ACH/Wire Transfer Remit To: 

ABA # 
First National Bank of Omaha 

Kutak Rock LLP 

NC#  
Reference: Invoice No. 3453279 

Client Matter No. 18323-2 
Notification Email: eftgroup@kutakrock.com 

Invoice No. 3453279 
18323-2 

Review and respond to inquiry 
regarding requisition 
Prepare agreement for alley way 
milling and repaving 

$164.50 

$164.50 

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND/OR WORK PRODUCT 









































































































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       REVERIE

BANK D REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/04/24 00009 8/20/24 W68582   202408 320-53800-43000                                     *            2,916.15
RPR WIRE/RPLC GFI/PHOTOCL

AMERICAN ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING,INC                             2,916.15 000216
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00018 9/01/24 6129     202409 340-53800-46500                                     *            2,060.00

POOL MAINTENANCE SEP24
FSJ POOL SERVICES LLC DBA AMERICA'S                             2,060.00 000217

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00017 8/27/24 6849379  202408 340-53800-46501                                     *              727.00

2659.3LB BLK AZONE/FREIGH
HAWKINS INC                                                       727.00 000218

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00022 8/26/24 59350436 202408 340-53800-46800                                     *               75.00

MTHLY PEST CONTROL AUG24
MCCALL PEST CONTROL                                                75.00 000219

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00023 6/25/24 10983121 202406 320-53800-12200                                     *               72.60

FIELD OPER INSUR - JUN24
6/25/24 10983121 202406 340-53800-12100                                     *              726.00

MGMT/ADMIN INSUR - JUN24
7/05/24 10985471 202406 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,056.80

ONSITE ADMIN 06/15-06/28
7/05/24 10985471 202406 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,011.92

MGMT/ADMIN 06/15 - 06/28
7/19/24 10987498 202407 340-53800-12100                                     *            1,861.21

ONSITE ADMIN 06/29-07/12
7/19/24 10987498 202407 320-53800-12200                                     *            2,945.37

MGMT/ADMIN 06/29 - 07/12
8/02/24 10991777 202407 320-53800-12200                                     *              384.62

FIELD OPER 07/13 - 07/26
8/02/24 10991777 202407 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,153.50

ONSITE ADMIN 07/13-07/26
8/16/24 10992946 202408 320-53800-12200                                     *              391.62

FIELD OPER 07/27 - 08/09
8/16/24 10992946 202408 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,097.74

ONSITE ADMIN 07/27-08/09
8/16/24 10992946 202408 320-53800-12200                                     *            2,897.18

MGMT/ADMIN 07/27 - 08/09
REVERIE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION INC                            18,598.56 000220

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00055 8/31/24 664235   202408 320-53800-46200                                     *            8,114.43

REVERIE-LNDSCPE MNT AUG24
8/31/24 664238   202408 320-53800-46200                                     *            1,307.57

PHASE 2-LNDSCPE MNT AUG24
RUPPERT LANDSCAPE LLC DBA                                       9,422.00 000221

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       REVERIE

BANK D REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/04/24 00005 8/19/24 556887-1 202408 340-53800-43100                                     *               15.16
255 RUSTIC MILL DR-AUG24

8/19/24 556887-1 202408 340-53800-43100                                     *            2,923.13
35 RUSTIC MILL DR - AUG24

ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   2,938.29 000222
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00013 9/01/24 8981-B   202409 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,164.00

MTHLY LAKE MAINT SEP24
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,164.00 000223

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/04/24 00030 8/26/24 8889/4   202408 340-53800-46000                                     *               25.17

BLK/WHITE SPRY PNT/DUCTTP
TURNER WGV LLC                                                     25.17 000224

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00051 8/31/24 28366375 202408 340-53800-46000                                     *              180.00

SV CALL-A1 CMPRSR/SP1 PRS
9/06/24 28386344 202409 340-53800-46000                                     *            1,493.00

RPLC SUCTION LINE-TRANSDU
AIR-MAX HEATING & COOLING INC                                   1,673.00 000225

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00057 4/17/24 AAAO6857 202404 340-53800-34600                                     *              850.00

100LASER ETCH/100BLNK CRD
COMMUNITY CONTROLS                                                850.00 000226

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00002 9/01/24 2409-RT  202409 320-53800-47700                                     *              482.00

REV-PET STATION SVC SEP24
DOODY DADDY                                                       482.00 000227

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00056 8/28/24 85591    202409 340-53800-61000                                     *            6,616.00

10 POOL UMBRELLA/10 BASES
EBEL INC                                                        6,616.00 000228

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00050 9/01/24 JAK09240 202409 340-53800-46700                                     *            1,399.89

JANITORIAL SERVICES SEP24
JANI-KING OF JACKSONVILLE                                       1,399.89 000229

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00055 8/31/24 664237   202408 340-53800-46200                                     *            2,737.07

AMENITY CTR-LNDSCPE AUG24
RUPPERT LANDSCAPE LLC DBA                                       2,737.07 000230

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/10/24 00030 9/05/24 8945/4   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *              338.31

LDDR/CLN PAD/LED/CAUT.TAP
TURNER WGV LLC                                                    338.31 000231

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00038 9/06/24 7539     202409 340-53800-46000                                     *            2,660.00

PRS.WSH POOLDECK/ENTR CAN
ALL ABOUT WATER, LLC                                            2,660.00 000232

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       REVERIE

BANK D REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/17/24 00004 8/12/24 745006   202408 340-53800-34500                                     *               40.00
ADDITIONAL RESIDENT AUG24

8/12/24 745006A  202409 340-53800-34500                                     *               40.00
ADDITIONAL RESIDENT SEP24

HIDDEN EYES LLC DBA ENVERA SYSTEMS                                 80.00 000233
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00015 9/04/24 25243    202409 300-15500-10000                                     *           40,022.14

FY25 PROPERTY INSURANCE
EGIS INSURANCE ADVISORS LLC                                    40,022.14 000234

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00007 9/15/24 619297   202409 310-51700-71000                                     *            1,891.99

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#21
9/15/24 619297   202409 310-51700-72000                                     *              386.90

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#21
MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.                                2,278.89 000235

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00023 8/30/24 10998053 202408 320-53800-12200                                     *              384.62

FIELD OPER 08/10 - 08/23
8/30/24 10998053 202408 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,035.30

ONSITE ADMIN 08/10-08/23
8/30/24 10998053 202408 320-53800-12200                                     *            2,734.88

ONSITE ADMIN 08/10-08/23
REVERIE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION INC                             5,154.80 000236

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/17/24 00030 9/10/24 8972/4   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *               24.98

MOUNT TAPE/RUG GRIPPER
9/12/24 8984/4   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *               37.58

ADVANCE INT SG WHT/BRUSH
TURNER WGV LLC                                                     62.56 000237

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/24 00008 9/16/24 CC09013  202409 340-53800-46900                                     *              358.00

8 ROLLS/CASE-900 GYM WIPE
COMMERCIAL FITNESS PRODUCTS, INC                                  358.00 000238

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/24 00004 9/02/24 745478   202409 300-15500-10000                                     *            3,590.61

ALARM MONITOR SRVC OCT24
HIDDEN EYES LLC DBA ENVERA SYSTEMS                              3,590.61 000239

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/24/24 00030 9/19/24 9022/4   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *                9.58

GLASS CLEAN CLOTH/WINDEX
TURNER WGV LLC                                                      9.58 000240

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/30/24 00016 9/22/24 44616    202409 340-53800-34600                                     *              225.00

QTRLY FIRE ALARM MNTR SEP
DYNAMIC SECURITY PROFESSIONALS INC                                225.00 000241

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       REVERIE

BANK D REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/30/24 00005 9/19/24 556887-1 202409 340-53800-43100                                     *               15.16
255 RUSTIC MILL DR-SEP24

9/19/24 556887-1 202409 340-53800-43100                                     *            2,168.43
35 RUSTIC MILL DR - SEP24

ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   2,183.59 000242
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/30/24 00030 9/23/24 9044/4   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *               60.94

ELMT GRD EXT/CEMENT/BRUSH
TURNER WGV LLC                                                     60.94 000243

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00002 10/01/24 2410-RT  202410 320-53800-47700                                     *              482.00

REV-PET STATION SVC OCT24
DOODY DADDY                                                       482.00 000244

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00050 10/01/24 JAK10240 202410 340-53800-46700                                     *            1,399.89

JANITORIAL SERVICES OCT24
JANI-KING OF JACKSONVILLE                                       1,399.89 000245

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00023 9/13/24 11002154 202409 320-53800-12200                                     *              384.62

FIELD OPER 08/24 - 09/06
9/13/24 11002154 202409 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,050.22

ONSITE ADMIN 08/24-09/06
9/13/24 11002154 202409 320-53800-12200                                     *            2,659.72

BLDG MAINT 08/24 - 09/06
REVERIE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION INC                             5,094.56 000246

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00055 9/30/24 672514   202409 340-53800-46201                                     *            6,515.10

FALL ANNUAL FLWR CHNGEOUT
9/30/24 672521   202409 340-53800-46201                                     *            5,848.20

2052 ANNUAL FLOWERS-AMNTY
RUPPERT LANDSCAPE LLC DBA                                      12,363.30 000247

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00013 10/01/24 9091-B   202410 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,164.00

MTHLY LAKE MAINT OCT24
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,164.00 000248

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/15/24 00030 9/27/24 9070/4   202409 340-53800-47500                                     *                2.99

TACKS NKL 5/16X3/8" PK40
9/30/24 9089/4   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *              147.99

V20 BATTERY/DUSTR/BUG KIL
10/11/24 9153/4   202410 340-53800-46000                                     *               47.98

1000PK/100PK CABLE TIES
TURNER WGV LLC                                                    198.96 000249

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00018 10/01/24 6193     202410 340-53800-46500                                     *            2,060.00

POOL MAINTENANCE OCT24
FSJ POOL SERVICES LLC DBA AMERICA'S                             2,060.00 000250

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       REVERIE

BANK D REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/21/24 00028 10/15/24 109599   202410 340-53800-46000                                     *              145.00
ANNUAL MNT/CERT/TRIP FEE

APARTMENT FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE                               145.00 000251
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00016 10/15/24 44714    202410 340-53800-34600                                     *              492.50

SVC CALL-RPLC BATT/RESET
DYNAMIC SECURITY PROFESSIONALS INC                                492.50 000252

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00017 10/03/24 6881866  202410 340-53800-46500                                     *            1,019.00

2610.9LB AZONE/100LB ACID
HAWKINS INC                                                     1,019.00 000253

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00058 7/17/24 2019     202407 320-53800-46401                                     *              200.00

REMOVE TABLE/UMBRELLA
LAKE AND POND REMEDIATION INC                                     200.00 000254

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00007 10/15/24 619323   202410 310-51700-71000                                     *            1,905.07

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#22
10/15/24 619323   202410 310-51700-72000                                     *              373.82

FITNESS LEASE PAYMENT#22
MUNICIPAL ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.                                2,278.89 000255

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00022 9/30/24 59365058 202409 340-53800-46800                                     *               75.00

MTHLY PEST CONTROL SEP24
MCCALL PEST CONTROL                                                75.00 000256

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00055 9/30/24 670726   202409 320-53800-46200                                     *            8,114.43

REVERIE-LNDSCPE MNT SEP24
9/30/24 670727   202409 340-53800-46200                                     *            2,737.07

AMENITY CTR-LNDSCPE SEP24
9/30/24 670728   202409 320-53800-46200                                     *            1,307.57

PHASE 2-LNDSCPE MNT SEP24
RUPPERT LANDSCAPE LLC DBA                                      12,159.07 000257

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/21/24 00030 10/07/24 9126/4   202410 340-53800-46000                                     *               19.99

TIE DOWN ORG 1"X10' 4PK
TURNER WGV LLC                                                     19.99 000258

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00018 10/21/24 6222     202410 340-53800-46501                                     *            2,350.00

HEATR DIAG/SVC BOILER/CLN
10/22/24 6220     202410 340-53800-46501                                     *            1,351.48

INST.NEW YASKAWA CONTROLL
10/22/24 6253     202410 340-53800-46501                                     *              234.00

SVC CALL-RMV/VERIFY PUMP
FSJ POOL SERVICES LLC DBA AMERICA'S                             3,935.48 000259

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN 10/29/24          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 09/01/2024 - 10/31/2024 ***       REVERIE

BANK D REVERIE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/28/24 00039 9/09/24 321582   202409 340-53800-46000                                     *              531.00
UTILIZE 2 CALCISOLVE/CLN

HGH PURCHASER INC.                                                531.00 000260
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00023 9/25/24 11005106 202409 340-53800-12100                                     *              726.00

MGMT/ADMIN INSUR SEP24
9/27/24 11006031 202409 320-53800-12200                                     *              384.62

FIELD OPER 09/07 - 09/20
9/27/24 11006031 202409 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,167.39

ONSITE ADMIN 09/07-09/20
9/27/24 11006031 202409 320-53800-12200                                     *            2,983.85

BLDG MAINT 09/07 - 09/20
10/11/24 11010324 202409 320-53800-12200                                     *              384.62

FIELD OPER 09/21 - 10/04
10/11/24 11010324 202409 340-53800-12100                                     *            2,060.00

ONSITE ADMIN 09/21-10/04
10/11/24 11010324 202409 320-53800-12200                                     *            2,835.00

BLDG MAINT 09/21 - 10/04
10/22/24 11012076 202410 340-53800-12100                                     *              726.00

MGMT/ADMIN INSUR OCT24
REVERIE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION INC                            12,267.48 000261

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/28/24 00034 7/24/24 3581     202407 340-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SWTCH SET-MANNUAL/RESET
SUNBELT GATED ACCESS SYSTEMS OF FL                                200.00 000262

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK D                164,794.67

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              164,794.67

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 













































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Proposal for Extra Work at

Six Mile CDD Trailmark

October 14, 2024
Page 1 of 3

St Augustine, FL  32092

St Augustine, FL  32092
475 W Town Pl Ste 114

805 Trailmark Drive Six Mile CDD
Greg Kern

Billing Address
To
ContactSix Mile CDD Trailmark

Project Description

Project Name

Property Address
Property Name

Six Mile Cdd- Hurricane Milton tree clean up

General tree

Scope of Work

TotalMaterial/DescriptionUoM/SizeQTY

$5,950.00Back Creek Oak Grove Area

Remove 2 large fallen trees, 2 large half trees, and
remove large debris on ground 4" or greater that fell
during storm as of 10-14-24

LUMP SUM1.00

Images

Oak Grove 1 Oak grove 2

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 5811 County Rd 305, Elkton, FL 32033 ph.  fax
This proposal is valid for thirty (30) days unless otherwise approved by Contractor's Senior Vice President



Page 2 of 3

October 14, 2024

Six Mile CDD Trailmark

Proposal for Extra Work at

Oak grove 3 oak grove 4

Oak grove 5 Oak grove 6

Service Line

460800520JOB#

SO# 8534177

300

For internal use only

$5,950.00Total Price

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 5811 County Rd 305, Elkton, FL 32033 ph.  fax
This proposal is valid for thirty (30) days unless otherwise approved by Contractor's Senior Vice President



October 14, 2024
Page 3 of 3



Proposal for Extra Work at

Six Mile CDD Trailmark

October 14, 2024
Page 1 of 2

St Augustine, FL  32092

St Augustine, FL  32092
475 W Town Pl Ste 114

805 Trailmark Drive Six Mile CDD
Greg Kern

Billing Address
To
ContactSix Mile CDD Trailmark

Project Description

Project Name

Property Address
Property Name

Six Mile Cdd- Fpl dead trees

General tree

Scope of Work

TotalMaterial/DescriptionUoM/SizeQTY

$3,360.00Dead tree removal/ North Fpl area

Remove 2 dead trees still standing by large power line
east of oak grove and flush cut stumps low.LUMP SUM1.00

Images

Dead trees by FPL- Oak Grove Area

Service Line

460800520JOB#

SO# 8533924

300

For internal use only

$3,360.00Total Price

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE

 5811 County Rd 305, Elkton, FL 32033 ph.  fax
This proposal is valid for thirty (30) days unless otherwise approved by Contractor's Senior Vice President



October 14, 2024
Page 2 of 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Personnel & Equipment Experience Understanding Scope of RFP Financial Capacity Price Reasonableness of ALL 
Numbers

This category addresses the
following criteria: skill set and
experience of key management and
assigned personnel, including the
project manager and other
specifically trained individuals who
will manage the property; present
ability to manage this project;
proposed staffing levels; capability
of performing the work; geographic
location; subcontractor listing;
inventory of all equipment; etc.
Skill set includes certification,
technical training, and experience
with similar projects. Please
include resumes, certifications,
etc., with proposal. Please also
provide evidence of the proposer’s
ability to meet deadlines and be
responsive to client needs.

This category addresses past &
current record and experience of
the Proposer in similar projects;
volume of work previously awarded
to the firm; past performance in any
other contracts; etc.  

This category addresses the
following issues: Does the
proposal demonstrate an
understanding of the District’s
needs for the services requested?
Does it provide all information as
requested by the District including
pricing, scheduling, staffing, etc.?
Does it demonstrate clearly the
ability to perform these services?
Were any suggestions for “best
practices” included? Does the
proposal as a whole appear to be
feasible, in light of the scope of
work? Did the contractor use the
forms provided from the Project
Manual in responding to the
proposal?

This category addresses whether
the Proposer has demonstrated that
it has the financial resources and
stability as a business entity
necessary to implement and
execute the work. Proposer should
include proof of ability to provide
insurance coverage as required by
the District as well as audited
financial statements, or similar
information.  

A full twenty-five (25) points will be
awarded to the Proposer submitting
the lowest bid for Parts 1 – 4 (the
Contract Amount). AN AVERAGE
OF ALL FIVE YEARS PRICING is to
be considered when awarding
points for pricing - THE INITIAL
TERM AND THE FOUR ANNUAL
RENEWALS. All other proposers
will receive a percentage of this
amount based upon a formula
which divides the low bid by the
proposer’s bid and is then
multiplied by the number of points
possible in this part of the Price
evaluation.

Up to fifteen (15) points will be awarded
as to the reasonableness of ALL
numbers, quantities & costs (including,
but not limited to fertilizer quantities,
mulch quantities based on Contractor’s
field measurements) provided,
including Parts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6, as
well as unit costs from the additional
schedules.

Proposer's Total Score

Proposer 20 20 15 5 25 15 100

1
Brightview

2
Down to Earth

3
Duval Landscape

4
The Greenery

5
Koehn Outdoor

6
Ruppert (Tree Amigos)

7
United

8
VerdeGo

9
Yellowstone

Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Landscape & Irrigation Maintenance Serices Evaluation Criteria

Request for Proposal



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and effective as of the ___
day of ___________, 202_ (the “Effective Date”), by and between SIX MILE CREEK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose government
established pursuant to Section 190, Florida Statutes (“Owner”) and WILLIAM CRONIN AND
ELAINE CRONIN, husband and wife, and KYLE WILLIAM CRONIN, an individual
(collectively, “Licensee”).

RECITALS

A. Owner is the owner in fee simple of that certain real property located in St. Johns
County, Florida, being more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Lake
Parcel”) which contains a recreational lake and associated picnic areas (collectively, the
“Lake”) intended for use by Patrons, as such term is defined in Owner’s Amenity Facilities
Policies.

B. Licensee is the owner in fee simple of that certain real property located adjacent
to the Lake Parcel being more particularly described in Exhibit B attached hereto (the “Licensee
Parcel”).

C. Owner desires to grant to Licensee, and Licensee desires to accept from Owner, a
non-exclusive license to use the Lake, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are true and correct, form a material part of
this Agreement, and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.

2. Grant of License.  Owner hereby grants to Licensee a non-exclusive license (the
“License”) to use the Lake in common with Patrons, at its sole risk, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement. Licensee may permit any of its family members that
permanently reside on the Licensee Parcel, to use the Lake in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement (collectively, the “Permitted Users”). For the avoidance
of doubt, the Permitted Users are only granted those rights that are granted to Licensee.

2.1. Licensee’s and the Permitted Users’ use of the Lake pursuant to this
Agreement shall, at all times, be subject to federal, state, and local laws, together with the any
rules, restrictions and regulations promulgated by Owner and Trailmark Homeowner’s
Association, Inc., a Florida corporation (the “HOA”) from time to time with respect to the Lake
and the Lake Parcel (collectively, the “Lake Rules”).  Licensee hereby agrees to abide by and
comply with and agrees to ensure the Permitted Users abide by and comply with, all Lake Rules,

1
4889-0827-0049.8



as the same may be revised from time to time. For the avoidance of doubt, Licensee and the
Permitted Users shall have the same rights and privileges granted to the Patrons pursuant to the
Amenity Facilities Policies, including, without limitation, the guest policy privileges.

2.2. Licensee agrees that the License shall not be deemed to create any estate,
easement or lease of the Lake or the Lake Parcel, or any portion thereof, and that the only interest
obtained by Licensee hereunder shall be in the nature of a legal license. The License is personal
to Licensee and except as expressly set forth herein shall not constitute a covenant running to the
benefit of the Licensee Parcel.

3. Non-Exclusive.  The License and all rights granted herein shall be non-exclusive.
Owner and all Patrons shall continue to enjoy the use of the Lake. Licensee shall not and shall
ensure that the Permitted Users do not unreasonably interfere with the use of the Lake by Owner
and Patrons as a result of Licensee’s exercise of its rights hereunder.

4. No Obligation to Provide Lake Access.  Licensee’s and the Permitted Users’ right
to use the Lake, in each case, is granted only to the extent enjoyment of and access to the Lake is
provided by Owner to the Patrons, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring
Owner to continue to provide such access and enjoyment to the Lake to the Patrons.  Owner may
alter, remove, modify or cease to offer access to the Lake to Patrons at any time, in Owner’s sole
discretion, and, to the extent Owner ceases to offer access to the Lake to the Patrons, Licensee’s
and the Permitted Users’ right to use the Lake shall also cease.

5. Limitation of Liability. The use of Lake shall be at the sole risk of Licensee and, if 
applicable, the Permitted Users. In no event shall Owner be held liable for damages or otherwise
in connection with Licensee’s or the Permitted Users’ use of the Lake, including without
limitation, any loss or damage to Licensee’s property whether caused by fire, acts of any other
users, or for any other reason whatsoever. The provisions of this Section 5 shall survive the
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

6. Termination.  If Licensee fails to keep or perform any covenant or condition of
this Agreement, Owner may, at its option, terminate this Agreement immediately in which case
Licensee’s and the Permitted Users’ rights under this Agreement shall cease.  This Agreement
shall automatically terminate in the event that the Licensee Property is not owned in whole or in
part by at least one of William Cronin, Elaine Cronin and Kyle William Cronin or any of their
family members.  

7. Miscellaneous.

7.1. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with
the internal laws of the State of Florida.

7.2. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and cannot be amended or
modified except by a written agreement, executed by each of the parties hereto.

2
4889-0827-0049.8



7.3. No Recording.  Licensee shall not record this Agreement or a short form
notice or memorandum of this Agreement in any public records and any such recording by
Licensee shall constitute a default by Licensee under this Agreement.

7.4. Not a Public Dedication.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to be
a gift or dedication of any portion of the License Area to the general public or for the general
public or for any public purposes other than as specifically set forth herein, it being the intention
of Owner and Licensee that this Agreement shall be strictly limited to and for the purposes
herein expressed.

7.5. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall, for all purposes, be deemed an original and both such counterparts, taken together,
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank

3
4889-0827-0049.8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as
of the date set forth above.

OWNER:

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of
special-purpose government established pursuant to
Section 190, Florida Statutes

By: ______________________________________
Name: Jim Oliver
Title: District Manager

LICENSEE:

______________________________________
WILLIAM CRONIN

______________________________________
ELAINE CRONIN

______________________________________
KYLE WILLIAM CRONIN

[Signature Page to License Agreement]
4889-0827-0049.8



Exhibit A

Lake Parcel Legal Description

LEGAL TO BE ADDED

[Exhibit A to License Agreement]
4889-0827-0049.8



Exhibit B

Licensee Parcel Legal Description

LEGAL TO BE ADDED

[Exhibit A to License Agreement]
4889-0827-0049.8



0
Table Insert

Changes:

0
Table Delete 0

Add 

Intelligent Table Comparison: Active

Table moves to

23

0

Summary report:
Litera Compare for Word 11.7.0.54 Document comparison done on

10/24/2024 7:07:27 AM

Table moves from 0

Delete 

Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.)

3

0

Original DMS: nd://4889-0827-0049/5/Cronin - Land Swap - License
Agreement.doc

Embedded Excel 0

Move From

Format changes

0

0
Total Changes:

Modified DMS: nd://4889-0827-0049/8/Cronin - Land Swap - License
Agreement.doc

26

Move To

Style name: Default Style



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Alex Boyer 

Sept 2024 

Facility Manager Report 

 

 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   2 

 
To: Six Mile Creek CDD          Board of Directors          Via E-mail 
      Jim Oliver                          District Manager             Via E-mail 
      Wes Haber                        District Attorney               Via E-mail 
       
 
 

Facility Usage 
 
 
 
Administrative Projects 

• Staff continue to add new residents to community website, e-mail list, and access 
control software. 

• Staff continue to provide new owners with mailbox keys and community 
welcome packets. 

 

Proposals 
 
 
 

Maintenance Projects Completed 
• fob readers back up on running 

• emergency backflow irrigation fixed next to new restrooms 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Maintenance Projects in Process 
• Basketball hoop replacement-rescheduled due to the storms 

 
 

Board Discussion Items 

• N/A 
 
 


	Agenda
	III.            A.        Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report
	B.        Supplemental Assessment Resolution, 2025-01
	C. Resolution 2025-02, Ratifying Ancillary Documents Related to Series 2024 Bond
	IV.       Discussion Regarding License Plate Reader
	V.        Brightview Report
	VI. Sitex Report
	VII. A. Engineer Items
	B. 1.         Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & Associates for Fiscal Year 2024 Audit Report
	2. Sitex Aquatics for Aquatic Maintenance Services for Fiscal Year 2025 (TrailMark)  
	3.         Agreement with Jax Utilities Management, Inc. for Concrete Services
	            C.        Approval of Minutes of the September 11, 2024 Meeting
	D.        Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2024 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the Period Ending September 30, 2024
	E.         Assessment Receipt Schedule
	            F.         Check Register
	VIII.    Consideration of Proposals from Brightview for Landscape Improvements
	IX.       Consideration of Proposals for Landscape & Irrigation Maintenance Services
	X.        Discussion of License Agreement Regarding Recreation Pond
	XII. D. 1.         Operations (RealManage)- Report



